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1 OPENING PRAYER AND STATEMENTS OF
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

2 APOLOGIES AND REQUESTS FOR LEAVE OF ABSENCE

3 PRIOR NOTIFICATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

4 CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES

Confirmation of the Council Meeting Minutes held on the 26 October 2021 and the
Annual Council Meeting Minutes held on the 4 November 2021.

5 PRESENTATIONS

6 PETITIONS

7 PUBLIC QUESTION TIME

8 ADMISSION OF URGENT BUSINESS
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9.1

PLANNING PERMIT APPLICATIONS

Planning Application PLA20/0143 at 23-29 Parker Street Templestowe
Lower (Templestowe Hotel) for an amendment to Planning Permit
PL15/025406, for partial demolition and the construction of buildings and
works to the southern fagade, construction of decks, enclosing the
balcony to the north of the building, variation to the red line area for the
serving of liquor, internally illuminated business identification signage,
vegetation removal, an amendment to the permit preamble and the
addition of new conditions to the permit.

File Number: IN21/646

Responsible Director:  Acting Director City Planning & Community

Applicant: Squareback

Planning Controls: General Residential Zone, Schedule 3 (GRZ3), Heritage
Overlay, Schedule 130 (HO130)

Ward: Ruffey Ward

Attachments: 1 Decision Plans 4

2 Legislative Requirements 4
3 Map of Objectors (confidential)

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
Purpose

1. This report provides Council with an assessment of an application to amend a
Planning Permit submitted for the land at 23-29 Parker Street, Templestowe Lower
(Templestowe Hotel). This report recommends approval, subject to conditions. The
application is being reported to Council as the application has been called in at the
request of Councillors.

Proposal
2. Planning Permit PL15/025406 was issued on 27 September 2016 for:

e Buildings and works for alterations and additions (at basement level)
associated with an existing hotel,

e Use of land to sell and consume liquor —variations to an existing liquor
licence (red line plan and hours of operation).

This permit was amended on the 15 August 2017.

3. This application seeks to amend the permit preamble to include the removal of
vegetation, the construction and display of internally illuminated business
identification signs and removal of reference to buildings and works ‘at basement
level’.

4. The applicant proposed to amend the existing permit conditions, most notably
relating to the hours of operation and patron numbers for the proposed Decks 1
and 2 along with restricting the use of external sound amplification equipment to the
deck areas.
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5. Itis proposed to include new conditions requiring the proposal to be in accordance
with the applicant’s acoustic report, the provision for noise limiters to restrict music
volume and the provision for an amenity/patron management plan to control the
hours of operation, patron numbers and management of noise to Deck 1 and 2.

6. Partial demolition and buildings and works are proposed to the modern building
addition along the southern facade (south-western section) of the hotel. The
original 1868 hotel fagade will remain largely unchanged, with the exception of
some minor reinstatement works proposed.

7. Further additions are proposed to the northern aspect of the hotel, comprising the
construction of two decks for outdoor dining, enclosing the balcony adjacent to the
gaming room and the provision of an outdoor smoking room.

8. Other items proposed include increasing the red line area and extending the hours
for the sale and consumption of liquor, signage and removing a tree.

Consultation/ Notification

9. Notice of the application was given pursuant to Section 52 of the Planning and
Environment Act 1987 by way of:

o Letters to all adjacent and nearby properties;
e Erecting a notice to the James Street frontage; and
e Erecting a notice to the Parker Street frontage.
10. Six submissions were received, and the notification concluded on 3 February 2021.

11. The objections included concerns primarily relating to:

e Privacy impacts and overlooking from the proposed decks;

Traffic and car parking implications;

¢ Noise associated with patrons departing the premise late at night;

¢ Noise emanating from the proposed decks during the hours of operation;
e The proposed hours;

e The provision of illuminated neon signage on the northern fagcade to James
Street;

e The maximum proposed patron numbers;
e Compliance with Condition 12 of the existing Planning Permit;
e Conditions of the original permit not being met; and

e The proposed removal of Condition 1 and 1A from the existing Planning
Permit.

12. A consultation meeting was held on 4 March 2021, to review the proposal.

13. Subsequently, the application was amended by the applicant on 31 March 2021, to
address some of the issues raised at the consultation meeting.
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14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

This amendment proposed a number of changes to the permit, mainly the retention
of Condition 1 and 1A, the provision for noise limiters within Decks 1 and 2 to limit
music to a maximum of 88 decibels in accordance with the recommendations of
applicant’s acoustic report, the provision of a use (amenity/patron) management
plan, limiting patron numbers to 300 patrons in the function room, bistro and
associated dining areas (including Deck 1 and 2) and the inclusion of music to be
played on Deck 1 and 2.

The main changes to the plans in this amendment included Sign D being amended
to a backlit sign, noise limiters adjacent to the outermost speakers to Decks 1 and
2, the western end of Deck 1 and eastern end of Deck 2 being constructed of a
sound insulating material and an updated colour and materials schedule to provide
further details of materials to be used for Decks 1 and 2.

Further changes as part of the amendment were made to the Planning Report,
confirming the intention for the roof to Deck 1 and 2 to remain open after 10pm. An
updated Acoustic Report submitted by the applicant provided a further assessment
of music levels by undertaking a 3D noise model assessment for the proposed
decks.

Further notice of the application was given, by sending letters to adjoining and
nearby properties, all objectors and erecting notices on the land.

Three submissions were received, and notification concluded on 18 August 2021.
Further concerns were raised in relation to the following:

e The provision for music to be played on the deck areas;

e The noise impacts on the amenity of the surrounding residential area;
e The proposed operating hours;

¢ On-going littering by patrons of the premise;

e Noise concerns associated with the roofs to Deck 1 and 2 remaining open
after 10pm;

¢ Absence of a management plan at this stage of the planning process;

e Inadequate existing boundary fencing heights to limit off-site noise and light
spill impacts to the existing adjoining residential allotments.

Accordingly, a total of nine submissions were received over the two notice periods
from a total of 6 objectors.

The location of the objectors are shown on a map in Confidential Attachment 3.

Key issues in considering the application

22.

The key issues for Council in considering the proposal relate to:

e Planning Policy Framework;
e Buildings and Works;
e Liquor Licence;

e Signs;

Item 9.1
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e Vegetation Removal;
e Objector Concerns.
Assessment

23. The proposed buildings and works, liquor licence (red line area) changes, signage
and vegetation removal is generally consistent with the relevant objectives,
strategies and policies of the Manningham Planning Scheme.

24. The noise impacts from the proposed deck areas have been considered by an
independent acoustic engineer engaged by Council and are considered to be
acceptable, subject to further conditions. Council Officer’s also sought it reasonable
to include further conditions which reduce the hours of operation of the outdoor
decks and requiring the roof to remain closed after 10pm each evening.

25. An updated acoustic assessment will be required to be submitted by the applicant
prior to the commencement of the use. The requirement for an amenity/patron
management plan will also ensure the on-going management of the site and
proposed decks.

Conclusion
26. This report concludes that the proposal complies with the relevant planning policy

in the Scheme, and should be supported, subject to additional conditions that seek
to minimise off site amenity impacts.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
A. Having considered all objections issue a NOTICE OF DECISION TO AMEND
A PLANNING PERMIT in relation to Planning Application PLA20/0143 at 23-

29 Parker Street, Templestowe Lower for:

Preamble Amended (new/modified additions underlined)

e Partial demolition, buildings and works for alterations and additions
associated with an existing hotel;

e Use of the land to sell and consume liquor- variations to an existing
liquor licence (red line plan and hours of operation)

e Construction and put up for display internally illuminated business
identification signs:

e Vegetation removal

Subject to the following conditions (new/modified additions underlined)-

Amended Plans

1.  Within three months of the permit issue date, or prior to the
commencement of the use, whichever occurs first, amended plans must
be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority.
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1A.

1B.

When approved, the plans will then form part of the permit. The plans
must be drawn to scale with dimensions and two copies must be
provided. The plans must be generally in accordance with the plans
submitted with the application TP01, TP02, TP03, TP04 & LCO1 Rev. A
prepared by Enth Degree Architects Pty Ltd, received on 21 September
2015 but modified to show:

1.1 Amended existing ground and basement floor plans, accurately
showing existing conditions generally in accordance with the layout
of the existing red line plan under Liquor Licence 31914456, with the
existing balcony north of the gaming area depicted as ‘No Public
Access and no storage’ on the ground floor plan;

1.2 The proposed floor plan of the basement must clearly show the extent
of the proposed extension to the basement level, fully dimensioned in
metres;

1.3 Plan showing the extent of any demolition or excavation works, fully
dimensioned in metres (where applicable);

1.4 Deleted;
1.5 Deleted;

1.6 The external access ramp to the outdoor area to be depicted as
emergency and disabled access only;

1.7 The existing vegetation around the outdoor function area to be
retained;

1.8 The location of any new lighting for the outdoor function area, to be
fixed no more than 1.5 metres above the existing surface level;

1.9 The erection of a new 2.5 metre high brick fence on the common
boundary between the subject land and 23 Ruffey Street,
Templestowe Lower.

Before the development and use commences, further amended plans must
be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. When
approved, the plans will then form part of the permit. The plans must be
drawn to scale with dimensions and two copies must be provided. The
plans must be generally in accordance with the plans submitted with the
application (Enth Degree Architects Pty Ltd, job number 1408, dated
January 2017) but modified to show:

1A.1 Specification of the external materials and finishes of all new
buildings and works, to blend with the existing finishes of the Hotel.

1A.2 The new doors between the function room and entrance and entrance
and outdoor area to be of a self-closing nature.

1A.3 Deletion of the notation regarding entry to the function room via
existing doors.

Before the start of the use and development approved under Amendment to

Planning Permit PLA20/0143, amended plans drawn to scale and
dimensioned must be submitted via email and approved by the
Responsible Authority. When approved the plans will then form part of the
permit. The plans must be generally in accordance with the decision plans
(prepared by Enth Degree Architects, job number 1408, dated 20 April
2021), but modified to show:

Item 9.1
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1B.1 A notation to indicate that the roof, and all external windows, louvres

and openings to Decks 1 and 2 remain closed after 10pm every
evening to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority:

1B.2 A notation to indicate that noise limiters will be installed within 1m of

all speakers to Decks 1 and 2, to ensure that any music does not
exceed 88 decibels, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority;

1B.3 A notation to indicate that all fixed and operable windows and louvres

meet a minimum acoustic rating of Rw25 to Decks 1 and 2.

1B.4 A notation to indicate that no live entertainment is permitted on the

decks.
1B.5 A notation that the awning along the western wall of the extant 1868

hotel building is to be removed.

1B.6 Details of the signage for off-site patron management in accordance

with the Patron/Amenity Management Plan approved under this
permit, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority;

1B.7 A notation to indicate the use must be in accordance with the

Patron/Amenity Management Plan approved under this permit.

1B.8 An amended material and colour schedule to include details of the

proposed signage pillars to the north of the existing building.

Use Management Plan

2. Prior to the use commencing, a Management Plan for the function area
must be submitted and approved by the Responsible Authority, outlining
measures and procedures regarding the sale and consumption of liquor
by patrons associated with the function room. Including, but not limited
to:

2.1 Management of the hours of operation of the internal and external
areas of the function room;

2.2 Measures to limit and address anti-social behaviour of patrons on
site;

2.3 Details of all staffing arrangements, including numbers and working
hours of security staff;

2.4 Measures to limit and address patron behaviour upon dispersal of
patrons after a function ceases;

2.5 Standard procedures to be undertaken in the event of a complaint;

2.6 Noise control measures containing the following information:

o Identification of all potential noise sources associated with the
function room, including air-conditioning, exhaust fan systems and
security alarms.

e Details of the provision of music, including the frequency and hours
of entertainment.

e The location of any existing noise sensitive areas, such as residential
uses in close proximity to the venue.

e Measures to be undertaken to address all noise sources identified,
including on and off site noise attenuation measures.

2.7 Management of the outdoor function area to include:

e Only to be utilised by patrons of functions;
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e To be used only for smoking purposes after 10:00pm;
e To be monitored by hotel staff at all times when in use.

Endorsed Plans

3.

Hours

The approved use, development, vegetation removal and signs as shown
on the approved plans must not be altered without the written consent of
the Responsible Authority.

Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the
use may only operate between the following hours:

4.1 Function Room (internal)

e Sunday & Good Friday Between 10 am and 11pm
e Anzac Day (not being a Sunday) Between 12 noon and lam the
following morning

e Anzac Day (Sunday) Between 12 noon and 11pm
e Monday to Thursday Between 7 am and 11pm
e Friday to Saturday Between 7 am and lam the following

morning except Good Friday

4.2 Function Room (outdoor area)

¢ Monday to Saturday Between 7 am to 10 pm
e Sunday Between 10 am to 10 pm

4.3 Decks1and?

e Sunday & Good Friday Between 10am and 11pm

e Anzac Day Between 12pm and 11pm

e Monday to Thursday Between 7am and 11pm

e Friday and Saturday Between 7am and lam the following

morning except Good Friday

Patron numbers

5.

Except with the prior written consent of the Responsible Authority, the
maximum number of patrons permitted throughout the function room,
bistro and associated dining areas including the external decking areas
(Decks 1 and 2) must not exceed 300 patrons at any one time. Further,
the maximum patrons must not exceed the following at any one time:

5.1 88 patrons to Deck 1: and
5.2 54 patrons to Deck 2.

Amenity/Patron Management Plan

6.

Before the commencement of the use and development approved under
Amendment to Planning Permit PLA20/0143, an Amenity/Patron
Management Plan _must be to and approved by the Responsible
Authority. When approved, the plan will then form part of the permit. The
plan must include:

Item 9.1
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6.1 Staffing and security arrangements for the premises designed to
ensure the orderly arrival and departure of patrons, including the use
of crowd controllers;

6.2 Signage display and location to be used to encourage responsible off-
site patron behaviour;

6.3 The training of staff in the management of patron behaviour:

6.4 Measures to control noise emissions from the outdoor dining and
smoking areas:

6.5 Measures to manage patron behaviour in the outdoor dining and
smoking areas;

6.6 Measures to manage patron dispersal;

6.7 Staff communication arrangements:

6.8 Details of any management measures required to control noise
emissions from the premises. (e.q. operation of volume limiter if

installed);

6.9 The nomination of the person responsible for the implementation of
this management plan;

6.10 Measures to ensure that excessive noise is not generated;

6.11 Measures to ensure that patrons who depart the premises late at
night, do so in a manner not likely to cause noise disturbance to
nearby residents;

6.12 A documented complaint response procedure to include the provision

of a:

6.12.1 Contact point during hours of operation;

6.12.2 Investigation and assessment process;

6.12.3 Record management of complaints and corrective action

taken to resolve the concern.

7. The Amenity/Patron Management Plan must be implemented to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. The patron management plan
must not be modified unless with the further written consent of the
Responsible Authority.

Patron Management

8. The operator of the use must ensure that patrons who depart the
premises late at night, do so in a manner not likely to cause noise
disturbance to nearby residents.

Car Park Management

9. Therear entry to the carpark from James Street must be closed between
the hours of 10:00pm and 7:00am to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

Vegetation Management

10. The vegetation surrounding the outdoor function area, as shown on the
endorsed plans, must be maintained to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority.
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Acoustic Measures

11. Before the use and development approved under Amendment to
Planning Permit PLA20/0143 commences, an amended Acoustic Report
must be submitted to and approved by the Responsible Authority. When
approved, the Acoustic Report will be endorsed and form part of the
permit. The Acoustic Report must be generally in accordance with the
Acoustic Report submitted with the application (prepared by Clarity
Acoustics, Revision 1, dated 25 June 2021), but modified to provide an
assessment of the smoking area, with any acoustic _measures and
recommendations __incorporated _into the design and/or _the
amenity/patron management plan.

12. Prior to the commencement of the use approved under Amendment to
Planning Permit PLA20/0143 (or such further date approved in writing by
the Responsible Authority), a report prepared by a suitably gqualified
acoustic consultant must be provided to the Responsible Authority that
details how the noise limiters have been calibrated and confirms that all
amplification associated with the decks is connected to the limiter, and
will comply with the Environment Protection Regulations and Noise
Protocol including times when windows and roofs are opened and
closed. The limiter must be capable of logging noise levels continuously
with records made available to the Responsible Authority on request. All
acoustic_measures approved under this permit must be maintained
thereafter at all times to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Management Plans

13. The acoustic report and management plans approved under this permit
must be implemented and complied with at all times to the satisfaction of
the Responsible Authority, unless with the further written approval of the
Responsible Authority.

Maintenance

14. Buildings, paved areas, drainage, landscaping and all external areas
must be maintained to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Amenity

15. The use must be managed so that the amenity of the area is not
detrimentally affected, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority,
through the:

15.1 Transport of materials, goods or commodities to or from the land;
15.2 Storage of goods and wastes;

15.3 Appearance of any building, works or materials;

15.4 Emission of noise, light, vibration, odour & dust.

16. All external plant and equipment must be appropriately located and
screened, including acoustic treatment or placed in soundproof housing,
to reduce noise to a satisfactory level to the Responsible Authority.

17. Noise levels emanating from the land must not exceed the requirements
of the Environment Protection Regulations 2021 (under the Environment
Protection Act 2017) as may be amended from time to time, to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.
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18. External sound amplification equipment or loudspeakers are only to be
used in association with Deck 1 and 2, and must not affect the amenity of
the area, to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

19. External lighting must be desighed so to limit loss of amenity to
residents of adjoining properties to the satisfaction of the Responsible
Authority.

20. Garbage and recycling storage areas must be maintained in a neat and
tidy condition to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Signhage

21. Without the written consent of the Responsible Authority, the approved
signs must not:

21.1 Be altered in any way (including the location, size, and structure).

21.2 Contain intermittent or flashing light;

21.3 Contain a degree of illumination/lighting that causes glare/distraction
to motorists or an unreasonable loss of residential amenity.

22. Except with the written consent of the Responsible Authority, the
approved internally illuminated signs must only be illuminated during
the following times:

22.1 All _signs to the northern facade of the building must only be
illuminated between 5pm-11pm on Sunday-Thursday, Good Friday
and Anzac Day and between 5pm-lam on Friday and Saturdays
(except Good Friday);

22.2 All other internally illuminated signs must only be illuminated during
the operating hours of the existing hotel.

23. The approved sign/s including all structures and advertising material
must at all times be maintained in good order and condition to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

Sale and Consumption of Liguor

24. The layout of the red-line are as shown on the endorsed plans must not
be altered without the written consent of the Responsible Authority.

25. The sale and consumption of liquor must not occur outside of the
endorsed red-line area without the written consent of the Responsible

Authority.
26. The sale and consumption of liquor must be managed so that the

amenity of the area is not detrimentally affected, to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority.

Heritage (Demolition)

27. Demolition is only permitted to sections of the building(s) as identified in
the approved plan. The remainder of the building(s) must be retained in
its entirety to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority. No fabric of
retained portion(s) of building(s) must be removed unless further written
consent is provided by the responsible authority.

Permit Expiry

28. This permit will expire if one of the following circumstances applies:
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28.1 The use and development is not started within two (2) years of the
date of this permit;

28.2 The development is not completed within four (4) years of the date of
this permit;

The Responsible Authority may extend the periods referred to if a request is
made in writing by the owner or occupier either before the permit expires or in
accordance with Section 69 of the Planning & Environment Act 1987.

28.3 The use and development authorised by Amendment to Planning
Permit PLA20/0143 must be completed to the satisfaction of the
Responsible Authority within four (4) years of the issue date of this
amendment;

28.4 The construction and/or putting up for display of the signs approved
by Amendment to Planning Permit PLA20/0143 must completed within
four (4) years of the issue date of this amendment;

28.5 The vegetation removal approved by Amendment to Planning Permit
PLA20/0143 must completed within four (4) years of the issue date of
this amendment.

29. The approved signs expire 15 vears from the issue date of the
Amendment to Planning Permit PLA20/0143.

30. Upon expiry of the approved signs, all signs and structures built
specifically to support or illuminate them must be removed, to the
satisfaction of the Responsible Authority.

2. BACKGROUND
2.1 The application was submitted to Council on 6 October 2020.

2.2 Arequest for further information was sent on 30 October 2020, raising a number
of concerns with the proposal.

2.3 The application was amended on 23 December 2020, to include an additional red
line area for the sale and consumption of liquor and vegetation removal.

2.4 The application was amended again on 14 January 2021, to include additional
details of the building on the plans.

2.5 All requested further information was received on 14 January 2021.

2.6 Notice of the application was given for a two week period, which concluded on 3
February 2021.

2.7 A consultation meeting was held on 4 March 2021.
2.8 Following the consultation meeting, the application was amended on 30 March

2021. The main changes to the proposal as part of this amendment are as
follows:
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2.9

2.10

2.11

2.12

2.13

2.14

2.15

¢ Amendments to the permit including the retention of Conditions 1 and 1A,
the provision for noise limiters within Decks 1 and 2 to limit music to a
maximum of 88 decibels in accordance with the recommendations of the
applicant’s acoustic engineer, the provision for an amenity/patron
management plan, limiting patron numbers to 300 patrons in the function
room, bistro and associated dining areas (including Deck 1 and 2) and the
provision for music to be played on Decks 1 and 2.

e Amendments to the plans - Sign D being modified to a backlit sign, noise
limiters to Deck 1 and 2, the western end of Deck 1 and eastern end of
Deck 2 to be constructed of sound insulating material and an updated colour
and material schedule to provide further details of materials to the decks.

e Further changes as part of the amendment were made to the Planning
Report, confirming the intention for the roof to Decks 1 and 2 to remain open
after 10pm. The applicant’s updated Acoustic Report provided a further
assessment of music levels by undertaking a 3D noise model assessment.

A request for further information was sent on 28 April 2021, which raised a
concern regarding the noise generation from the proposal on the surrounding
residential properties.

The requested further information was received 23 July 2021.

Notice of the amended application was given for a two week period, which
concluded on 18 August 2021.

The statutory timeframe for considering a planning application is 60 days, which
fell on 11 October 2021.

The land is subject to Section 173 Agreement (Instrument AJ027249K) in relation
to Planning Permit PL10/021713, which approved a two lot subdivision.

The proposal will not impact on the requirements of the above mentioned Section
173 Agreement.

The land is not affected by a Registered Restrictive Covenant.

Planning History

2.16

There have been a number of past permits issued at the subject land relating to
buildings and works, signage, gaming and subdivision.

Existing Planning Permit

2.17

2.18

Planning Permit PL15/025406 was issued on 27 September 2016 for:

¢ Buildings and works for alterations and additions (at basement level)
associated with an existing hotel,

e Use of land to sell and consume liquor —variations to an existing liquor
licence (red line plan and hours of operation).

Specifically, this Planning Permit gave approval for:

¢ Alterations to the internal layout of the existing basement;
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Construction of buildings and works to rearrange the layout and extend the
basement to the south;

Modification to the licensed area;

Restricting live or amplified music in the outdoor area adjacent to the
function room;

Hours of operation of the existing liquor licence altered to match the bistro
and gaming areas.

2.19 This Planning Permit was amended on 15 August 2017 and included the
following main changes:

Inclusion of ‘partial demolition’ in the permit pre-amble;
Partial demolition of a wall on the northern and eastern sides;

Replacement of the existing door on the northern wall with new double glass
doors;

Addition of a pergola/canopy over the new double glass doors;
Replacement of existing grate vents on the northern wall with a window;
Addition of new internal walls to create an entry space;

Partial extension of the building on the eastern side;

Relocation of the existing external entry/exit door to the function room;
Addition of a new external access door from the entry to the outdoor area;
Reconfiguration of the existing ramp;

Deletion of Condition 1.4 and 1.5;

Addition of Condition 1A.

2.20 The existing Planning Permit includes a condition (Condition 4) that restricts the
use to the following hours:

Function Room (internal)

o Sunday & Good Friday Between 10 am and 11pm

o Anzac Day (not being a Sunday) Between 12 noon and lam the
following morning

o Anzac Day (Sunday) Between 12 noon and 11pm
o Monday to Thursday Between 7 am and 11pm
o Friday to Saturday Between 7 am and lam the

following morning except Good Friday

Function Room (outdoor area)

o Monday to Saturday Between 7 am to 10 pm

o Sunday Between 10 am to 10 pm
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2.21 Further existing conditions require use management practices for the function

area, limitations around patron numbers, the operator to manage the departure of
patrons, the closure of the James Street access between 10pm-7am and
preventing the use of external sound amplification equipment or loudspeakers.

3. THE SITE AND SURROUNDS

The Site

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

3.5

3.6

3.7

The subject land has an area of approximately 9347mz2 with boundaries bordering
Parker and James Streets. The site and immediate surrounds are within the
General Residential Zone (Schedule 3).

The site has a street frontage of 97.21 metres to Parker Street and 80.25 metres
to James Street, 100.74 metres to the western boundary and a stepped boundary
alignment to the east.

The land is occupied by the Templestowe Hotel, a split level public bar/hotel
originally known as “Sheahan’s Hotel”. The hotel was established in 1868. The
hotel is part single storey (to the Parker Street frontage) and part double-storey to
the rear, facing James Street to the north. The historic hotel is constructed of
weatherboard with hipped roof of corrugated iron with gable ends. The bottle
shop and the remainder of the hotel is a modern construction, with flat and part
mansard roof form. The hotel is listed on the Victorian Heritage Database being
of local significance as an early timber hotel.

The hotel comprises a symmetrical timber, corrugated iron gable roofed building
with a skillion verandah set between two projecting gables. The hotel has been
subject to a number of extensions and renovations over the years, and has been
substantially altered from its original state. Part of the original building facing
Parker Street was preserved when the hotel was remodelled and extended in
1964.

The site is sparsely vegetated throughout, generally limited to the site boundaries
and to the perimeter of the hotel building.

An extensive area of on-site car parking is located to the north, east (in-part) and
west of the hotel.

The hotel comprises a Bistro with an associated buffet and centralised bar, public
sports bar with associated gambling facilities, function room facilities, a drive-
through bottle-shop and associated beer cool room, party room, amenity facilities
and a gaming room.
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Figure 1: The site

The Surrounds

3.8 The Yarra River and associated parklands (Finns Reserve) are located
approximately 1 kilometre to the north and north-west of the subject site,
accessible via the Ruffey Trail.

3.9 Approximately 50 metres to the east of the site along Parker Street is the
intersection of Parker, High/Ruffey Streets. Located approximately 800 metres
east of this intersection is the Templestowe Village Activity Centre, comprising a
variety of shops and restaurants along Anderson and James Streets. The
Manningham Templestowe Leisure Centre and Templestowe RSL are located on
the periphery of this centre.

3.10 The hotel is located in an established residential area, with the site sharing direct
interfaces with private residential properties to the north-east, east and west. The
Fronditha Lower Templestowe Aged Care facility is also to the west, along Parker
Street.

3.11 There are some non-residential uses including a veterinary clinic and panel repair
premises within proximity to the site to the east, along Parker Street.

3.12 Details of the residential abuttals are described as follows:

Direction Address Description

North-East 24 James Street | This lot is directly north-east of the car
park and contains a single-storey brick
dwelling.

East 26 James Street | This lot is a partial abuttal to the east
and contains a double-storey dwelling.
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East 23 Ruffey Street | This lot is directly east of the car park
and contains a single-storey brick
dwelling.

East 2/21 Ruffey This lot is directly east of the car park

Street and contains a two storey dwelling.

East 33-35 Parker This lot is directly east of the hotel and

Street has access to Parker and Ruffey Street.

The lot contains a single-storey
veterinary clinic.

West Units 2, 3, 4 and | These lots are directly west of the hotel,
5at 12 Omar partly adjacent to the drive-through
Street bottle-shop. The dwellings are all two-
storey.
West 12 James Street | This lot is directly west of the car park
and contains a single-storey brick
dwelling.

All abutting properties listed above are located within the General Residential
Zone (Schedule 3) and are not affected by any planning overlays.

4. THE PROPOSAL
4.1 Details of the proposed amendments to the plans and permit are set out in the
table below:

AMENDMENT TYPE DETAIL OF PROPOSED CHANGES
Amendment to the plans

¢ Addition of a playroom located to the east of
the drive through bottle shop at ground floor
level;

e New decorative balustrade screens to the
side of the existing front courtyard;

e Two outdoor decks located to the north of
the building;

e Enclosure of the balcony located to the
north of the gaming room;

e A smoking area located to the north of the
gaming room, to be enclosed on all sides,
with an open roof;

e Display of internally illuminated business
identification signage;

e Variation and extension of the red line area;

e Vegetation removal;

e Internal alterations.

Amendment to permit pre-

amble To include:

e Construction and put up for display
internally illuminated business identification
signage;
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¢ Remove vegetation.

To remove reference to alterations and additions

‘(at basement level)'.

Proposed amendments to
conditions

e Amend Condition 5 to include reference to

the decking areas;

¢ Amend Condition 12 to include reference to
the outdoor area of the function room.

Proposed additional
conditions

Amend the existing permit to include the following

conditions:

¢ No more than 88 patrons on Deck 1 at any

one time.

e No more than 54 patrons on Deck 2 at any

one time.

e Decks 1 and 2 must only be used between the
following times:
e Monday to Saturday between 7am and lam;
e Sunday and Good Friday between 10am
and 11pm;
e Anzac Day between 12pm and 11pm.

e The use of Decks 1 and 2 must be in
accordance with the endorsed Acoustic
Assessment Report.

e The installation of noise limiters to Decks 1 and
2 to ensure that any music does not exceed 88
decibels, measured at a distance of 1 metre

from the speaker.

¢ Prior to the use commencing, a Management
Plan for the decking areas must be submitted
and approved by the Responsible Authority,
outlining measures regarding the operation and
use of the decking areas, including, but not

limited to:

¢ Management of the hours of operation;
¢ Management of the patron numbers within

each decking area;

¢ Management of the noise control measures.

4.2 Details of the location, size and type of signage is detailed in the table below:-

Sign | Location Wording Size Type

A | Southern fagade to ‘The Tempy Hotel’ | 1.92m x | Internally
Parker Street, 1.098m illuminated (neon)
adjacent to the Business
proposed play room identification
addition

B Upgrading the existing | Updating the hotel | 4.5m x Internally
Pylon Signage on the | logo, inclusion of 1.7m illuminated
eastern side of the fox sports 'Iogo (existing) Business
south-western access | and inclusion of identification
from Parker Street the words ‘outdoor

decks’
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C | Tothe proposed pillar | ‘Function Room’ 5.93m x | Internally
north of Deck 2 0.34m illuminated
Business
identification

D | Tothe proposed pillar | ‘Sheahan’s Room’ | 1.98m x | Internally
to the north of future 0.69m illuminated
smoking area and

outdoor function room Business
identification
area
E | Eastern facade, ‘Gaming Lounge 4.88 x Internally
adjacent to the entry Entry’ 3m illuminated
to the gaming room Business
identification

4.3 The following internal alterations are proposed:

The removal of the play room from the south-east corner of the building to a
more central location that connects between the upper bistro and sports bar.

The bistro area (upper and lower) remodelled and by removing the buffet
area and replacing it with a bar that wraps around the kitchen and into the
sports bar. This also includes a new reception area.

Reshaping and upgrades to the Gaming Room and associated bar.
A new kitchen area.

The size of the beer cool room linked to the drive through bottle shop
reduced.

5. LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS

5.1 Refer to Attachment (Planning & Environment Act 1987, Manningham Planning
Scheme, other relevant legislation policy)

5.2 A planning permit is required for the proposal under the following Clauses of the
Manningham Planning Scheme:

Clause 32.08 General Residential Zone (Schedule 3) - A permit is required
to construct a building or construct or carry out works for a use in Section 2
(Food and Drink premises- Hotel).

Clause 43.01 Heritage Overlay (Schedule 130) - A permit is required to
demolish or remove a building, construct a building, construct or display a
sign and remove a tree.

Clause 52.05 Signs- A permit is required to construct or put up for display
internally illuminated business identification signs.

Clause 52.27 Licensed Premises- A permit is required to use land to sell or
consume liquor where the area that liquor is allowed to be consumed or
supplied under a licence is to be increased.

5.3 Section 73(2) of the Planning and Environment Act 1987 limits Council’s
assessment to only the amendment request:
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73 (2) If the responsible authority decides to grant an amendment to a

permit subject to conditions, the conditions must relate to the
amendment to the permit.

6. REFERRALS

External

6.1 There are no statutory referrals required as part of the application.

Internal

6.2 The application was referred internally to Council’s Heritage Advisor. Comments
are summarised as follows:

The proposed additions to the northern facade are supported.

The proposed buildings and works to the west of the extant 1868 hotel
building and partial demolition on the southern facade are supported.

Notations are required on the plans to ensure the existing awning along the
western wall of the extant 1868 hotel building is removed.

The applicant has indicated that a Cultural Heritage Management Plan is
not required for the proposal.

The proposed vegetation removal and signs are considered acceptable from
a heritage perspective.

6.3 The application was referred to an independent acoustic consultant engaged on
behalf of Council to review the applicant’s submitted Acoustic Report. Their
comments are summarised as follows:

The monitoring location, duration and conditions appear satisfactory.

Permit conditions should be amended to reflect the policy reform and
update any obsolete policy reference.

It is recommended to include a condition requiring the closure of all
windows, louvres and openings on the deck facades from 10pm, all nights
of the week.

All fixed and operable windows and louvres must meet a minimum acoustic
rating of Rw25.

A report prepared by a suitably qualified acoustic consultant must be
provided to the Responsible Authority prior to the commencement of the use
to detail how the noise limiters have been calibrated. Ensuring that all
amplification associated with the decks is connected to the limiter, including
times when windows are opened and closed.

Noise limiters must be capable of logging noise levels continuously with
records made available to the Responsible Authority upon request.

No live entertainment is allowed on Deck 1 and 2.

The applicant’s Acoustic Report only provides noise modelling results, but
does not actually show any noise modelling undertaken. The source levels
selected appear reasonable and generally consistent with standard practice.
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6.4 The application was referred internally to Council’s Planning Compliance Unit.
Their comments are as follows:

e There are no objections to the proposal.

e The addition of planning controls will assist in handling any issues that may
arise (e.g. operating hours, patron numbers and requiring the decks to be in
accordance with the applicant’s submitted Acoustic Report).

7. CONSULTATION / NOTIFICATION

7.1 Notice of the application was given by way of:
e Letters to all adjacent and nearby properties;
e Erecting a notice to the James Street frontage;

e Erecting a notice to the Parker Street frontage.

7.2 Six submissions were received, during the notification period which concluded on
3 February 2021.

7.3 The objections include concerns primarily relating to:
e Privacy impacts and overlooking from the proposed decks;
e Traffic and car parking implications;
¢ Noise associated with patrons departing the premise late at night;
¢ Noise emanating from the proposed decks during the hours of operation;
e The proposed hours;

e The provision of illuminated neon signage on the northern fagade to James
Street;

e The maximum proposed patron numbers;
e Compliance with Condition 12 of the existing Planning Permit;
¢ Conditions of the original permit not being met;

e The proposed removal of Condition 1 and 1A from the existing Planning
Permit.

7.4 A consultation meeting was held over Zoom on 4 March 2021.

7.5 Subsequently, a Section 57A Amendment was lodged on 31 March 2021 to
address some of the issues raised at the consultation meeting.

7.6 The main changes to the permit as part of the amendment included the retention
of Condition 1 and 1A, the provision for noise limiters within Decks 1 and 2 to limit
music to a maximum of 88 decibels in accordance with the applicant’s acoustic
report, the provision for an amenity/patron management plan to be required,
limiting patron numbers to 300 patrons in the function rom, bistro and associated
dining areas (including Decks 1 and 2), and including the provision for music to
be played on Decks 1 and 2.
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7.7

7.8

7.9

7.10

7.11

7.12

8.1

8.2

8.3

The main changes to the plans as part of the amendment included Sign D being
amended to a backlit sign, noise limiters adjacent to the speakers on Decks 1
and 2, the western end of Deck 1 and eastern end of Deck 2 being constructed of
a sound insulating material and an updated colour and material schedule to
provide further details of materials to be used to Decks 1 and 2.

Further changes as part of the amendment were made to the Planning Report,
confirming the intention for the roof to Decks 1 and 2 to remain open after 10pm.
An updated Acoustic Report prepared by the applicant provided a further
assessment of music levels by undertaking a 3D noise model assessment for
Deck 1 and 2.

Notice of the application was given, by sending letters to adjoining and nearby
properties and erecting notices on the respective frontages of the subject land.

Three submissions were received, and the notification concluded on 18 August
2021.

The objections included further concerns relating to:
e The provision for music to be played on the deck areas;

¢ The cumulative noise impacts on the amenity of the surrounding residential
area as a result of the proposal;

e The proposed operating hours;
¢ On-going littering presumably by patrons of the premise;

¢ Noise concerns associated with the roof remaining open after 10pm to
Decks 1 and 2;

¢ Absence of a management plan at this stage of the planning process;

¢ Inadequate existing boundary fencing heights to limit off-site noise and light
spill impacts to the existing adjoining residential allotments.

Accordingly, a total of nine submissions were received over the two notice
periods from a total of 6 objectors.

ASSESSMENT

The assessment of the proposed application to amend a Planning Permit is
limited to only the changes proposed.

The proposal has been assessed against the relevant state and local planning
policies, the zone and the relevant particular provisions and general provisions of
the Scheme.

The assessment is made under the following headings:

e Planning Policy Framework;

Buildings and Works;

Liquor Licence;

Signs;

Vegetation Removal;
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e Objector Concerns.

Planning Policy Framework

8.4

8.5

8.6

8.7

8.8

8.9

8.10

8.11

8.12

8.13

Clause 13.02-1S Bushfire Planning is relevant to the proposal as the
Templestowe Hotel is located within a Bushfire Prone Area and falls within a use
category for which bushfire risk should be considered.

In assessing bushfire risk, consideration can cover people, property and
community infrastructure. Where risk is identified, appropriate bushfire protection
measures can be required to be implemented to address such risk.

The applicant submits that the site will be appropriately managed through patron
and vegetation management. Furthermore, the proposed building additions will
be constructed to comply with the relevant BAL Rating requirements as part of
the building regulations, thus minimising the risk to human life.

As part of the use of the land for dining, alcohol consumption and gaming
purposes, the hotel provides an evacuation management plan.

Finns Reserve, to the north-west and the Ruffey Creek Linear Park to the east
are the closest landscape features that may present a bushfire risk to the hotel.
The reserve is located approximately 100m from the subject site and the park
approximately 80m. The hotel building is even further setback. There is a buffer
of a number of roads and relatively dense residential lots between the site and
reserves, as well as a large paved car park.

The site is within the coverage of Fire Rescue Victoria and is relatively close to a
fire station on Williamsons Road. The subject land contains minimal vegetation.

There are three, well-spaced, points of vehicular access. Two are to Parker
Street, with the first being a two-way accessway at the south-western corner with
access to the drive-through bottle shop and the second, being a one-way
vehicular access providing entry only from Parker Street at the south-eastern
corner. The third vehicular access is at the rear of the site, providing an entry/exit
point to the north, via James Street. The dual entry/exit arrangement enables
patrons to safely evacuate the premises, if required, in the event of a fire.

Taking into consideration all of the above and recognising that the proposed use
will not cause an increase in overall patron numbers within the hotel at any one
time, the proposal does not unreasonably increase the risk to human life relating
to the possible impact of a bushfire.

Clause 13.05-1S Noise Abatement has as its objective “To assist the control of
noise effects on sensitive land uses” and this is intended to be achieved through
ensuring ‘that development is not prejudiced and community amenity is not
reduced by noise emissions, using a range of building design, urban design and
land use separation techniques as appropriate to the land use functions and
character of the area’.

The noise emissions being assessed in this instance are from the proposed deck
areas, which are located at least 28 metres to the closest residential interface,
being designed to an acceptable acoustic rating of Rw25 (subject to condition).
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8.14

8.15

8.16

8.17

8.18

8.19

8.20

8.21

8.22

8.23

Noise mitigation measures have been proposed by the applicant to reduce the
potential amenity impacts. Details of the key measures proposed are as follows:

e Music levels in Decks 1 and 2 must not exceed a maximum of 88 decibels;

e The walls proposed to the western side of Deck 1 and eastern side of Deck
2 to be constructed of a material with a minimum sound insulation rating of
25 dB Rw, being free of any holes and gaps;

e The closable louvres and windows to the western, northern and eastern
fagade of Deck 1 must remain closed after 10pm;

e The closable louvres and windows to the western and northern facade of
Deck 2 must remain closed after 10pm.

These measures have been thoroughly reviewed by an independent Acoustic
Engineer on behalf of Council and have been deemed reasonable and
acceptable from an acoustic perspective, subject to conditions that are further
discussed below.

The operation of the decks are also restricted to further limit the off-site noise
impacts, through limiting the number of patrons on Deck 1 to 88 and Deck 2 to
54, installing noise limiters within the deck areas to monitor music, introducing a
management plan for the deck areas and constructing the decks of acoustically
treated material.

However, the proposal to allow the roof of the decks to remain open after 10pm is
considered unreasonable given their proximity to the sensitive residential
interfaces. A permit condition will therefore require the roofs to be closed after
10pm on all evenings to further reduce the potential noise impacts, especially
from patrons.

Conditions will be required in accordance with the recommendations of Council’s
independent Acoustic Engineer, including the closure of all louvres/windows and
openings from 10pm each evening.

A further condition will require the roof to remain closed after 10pm to each deck,
a further acoustic assessment and amenity/patron management practices for the
proposed smoking area, to ensure any noise emanating is appropriately
minimised and managed.

No live entertainment will be permitted on the decks.

An assessment of the noise impacts from the use of the car park was considered
necessary due to the proposed operating hours of the deck exceeding those set
out on the existing permit for internal and external functions. Although this was
requested it has not been submitted with the application.

As such, it is considered reasonable to reduce the potential noise impacts by
restricting the operating hours of the decks to be in line with the internal function
room. This is considered reasonable given the closure of the deck roofs will
enable the decks to be deemed as internal spaces.

The existing hours of operation for the hotel exceed the operating hours for the
existing internal function room (as allowed by a permit condition).
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8.24 It is proposed to use the deck areas in association with the existing hotel

8.25

8.26

8.27

8.28

8.29

8.30

8.31

8.32

8.33

8.34

8.35

operating hours however it is considered that the operating hours of the deck
areas should be in conjunction with the existing operating hours of the internal
function room.

The applicant has not undertaken or provided an assessment of the noise
impacts of the car park and as such the additional hours and potential increased
activity/use of the decks are considered to be excessive and detrimental to the
overall amenity of the surrounding residential area.

As such, conditions will require that proposed operating hours of the decks to be
in line with those approved under the existing permit for the internal function area
as follows:

e Monday to Thursday: Between 7am and 11pm;
o Friday to Saturday: Between 7am and lam (the following morning);
¢ Sunday and Good Friday: Between 10am and 11pm;

¢ Anzac Day: Between 12pm and 11pm.

The existing conditions relating to the noise levels emanating from the land will
be updated to reference the new Environment Protection Regulations 2021
(formally the Environment Protection Act 2017).

Clause 13.07-1S Land Use Compatibility seeks “To protect community amenity,
human health and safety while facilitating appropriate commercial, industrial,
infrastructure or other uses with potential adverse off-site impacts.”

Following on from the above discussion, Council Officers have determined that
the proposal has been designed in manner to appropriately minimise any adverse
off-site impacts (by way of conditions).

Clause 17.02-1S seeks to encourage development that meets the community’s
needs for retail, entertainment, office and other commercial services.

The Templestowe Hotel is accessible via the existing bus routes along Parker
Street and is within an established residential area. As a long established and
well-presented entertainment venue with a variety of services and functions, the
hotel is well supported by local and wider spectrum patronage.

The construction of the deck areas assists in diversifying the operations of the
hotel and provides outdoor dining facilities that are otherwise limited by the
current operations and layout of the hotel.

Clause 19.02.4S seeks to provide “fairer distribution of and access to, social and
cultural infrastructure.”

As previously discussed, the hotel is well located on a main road, with access to
public transport and existing bike and pedestrian links.

The proposal seeks to improve the social infrastructure of this precinct through
providing additional outdoor dining facilities. The hotel is easily accessible for
people of limited mobility, ensuring there is an ability to service a variety of
patronage, in terms of age and physical ability.
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8.36

8.37

8.38

8.39

8.40

8.41

8.42

8.43

8.44

8.45

The objectives of Clause 21.11 Heritage aim “To enhance cultural heritage
through the retention and protection of significant buildings”.

The proposal is supported from a heritage perspective.

A condition will require a notation that the existing awning along the western wall
of the extant 1868 hotel building be removed.

The applicant has provided sufficient information to demonstrate that a cultural
heritage management plan is not required for the proposal.

The historical significance of the site is preserved through ensuring an adequate
link is in place to create a clear distinction between the old and the new, thus,
preserving the heritage significance of the original southern fagade of the hotel to
Parker Street.

The objectives of Clause 22.05 Non-Residential Uses in Residential Areas in a
general sense, seek to:

e Ensure siting, design, scale and appearance of development reflects either
the existing or preferred residential and streetscape character;

e Ensure the layout meets the highest standard of accessibility;

¢ Provide for a high level of privacy and protection from unreasonable
overlooking;

¢ Ensure that residential amenity is not detrimentally affected by the operation
of non-residential uses including the effects of noise, car parking and traffic,
light, odour and waste;

e Encourage design of frontage to offer visual interest and passive
surveillance.

The siting, design and scale of the proposed additions are cohesive with the
existing form, being an appropriate design response to the character of the area.

The provision for a solid wall for the entire eastern wall of Deck 2 and majority of
the western wall to Deck 1 serves to minimise the potential for overlooking into
the adjoining residential allotments. It is acknowledged that the setbacks of the
additions to the respective boundaries are substantial, and thus the potential for
overlooking is nominal.

There is adequate fencing to the northern and southern facades to provide visual
and passive surveillance. Further interest is provided to the design through the
variation in material and colour finishes to the respective perspectives.

The objectives of relevance at Clause 22.06 Eating and Entertainment Premises
Policy seek to:

e Ensure premises are appropriately located having regard to patrons, hours
of operation, location of access points, adequate provision of car parking
and traffic management;

e To ensure the design, scale and appearance of development is consistent
with the residential character and streetscape of the area;

Item 9.1

Page 27



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

e To ensure adequate access is provided for people with limited mobility;

e To ensure residential amenity is not detrimentally affected by the operation
of eating and entertainment premises including the effects of loss of privacy,
noise, car parking and traffic, light spillage, odour and waste.

8.46 The existing premise is well located on a main road with good access to public
transport and the surrounding road network. The proposal in itself is not seeking
to allow any additional patrons on the premises at any one time, thus an
assessment of the car parking and traffic impacts is not required.

8.47 The proposed design respects the residential character of the area.

8.48 The existing split level design and availability of lifts in the hotel enables good
access for people with limited mobility to access the hotel.

8.49 Overall, it is deemed through the provision of an amenity/patron management
plan and restricted operating hours (via conditions) that the proposal will not
adversely impact the amenity of the nearby residential area.

Buildings and works

8.50 The southern fagade is provided with a varied roof heights, which creates visual
interest to the street, whilst ensuring the new additions remain secondary to the
original hotel fagade.

8.51 The deck additions are well integrated into the existing northern elevation, being
generally in line with the existing roof ridge, whilst maintaining sufficient glazing to
provide interest to the fagade.

8.52 The deletion of the balcony and balustrading to increase the internal floor area of
the hotel improves the functionality of this space, whilst minimising any adverse
amenity impacts through confining the addition entirely within the existing
building. The enclosing of the ‘future smoking room’ is of little consequence to the
design, being concealed by the proposed feature pillar supporting the function
room signage.

8.53 Overall the design, height and setbacks of the proposed additions to the hotel are
of a scale and intensity that is compatible with the residential uses and
complement the existing form of the hotel, whilst maintaining the original feature
heritage components.

8.54 A condition will require the material and colour schedule to be updated to include
the finish to the function room signage pillar.

8.55 The internal alterations are minor in the scale of the proposal and
inconsequential from an external amenity perspective. The modifications are
required to ensure the hotel can continue its operation and function within the
requirements of patrons and staff, and are therefore acceptable.

Liquor Licence
8.56 The proposal seeks to amend the hours (to include Deck 1 and 2) and increase

the area that liquor is allowed to be consumed under an existing licence. The
proposed changes to the red line area are outlined in the images below.
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The proposed hours to the external decks are in line with the existing hours
approved for the gaming room and bistro areas under the current liquor licence.
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Figure 2: Existing red line area
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Figure 3: Proposed red line area
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8.57

8.58

8.59

8.60

8.61

8.62

8.63

8.64

8.65

Clause 52.27 (Licensed Premises) seeks to locate licensed premises
appropriately to ensure that the impact on the amenity of the surrounding area is
minimised. In this instance, the Templestowe Hotel is an existing premise,
however an assessment of the appropriateness of the modifications to the red
line area and hours comprising the construction of the outdoor alfresco dining
warrants an assessment of the amenity impacts.

As detailed above, it is considered that the recommended acoustic measures are
sufficient to ensure the impacts to the amenity of the surrounding area will be
adequately minimised, with the inclusion of conditions restricting the openings of
the windows and roofs to the deck areas and reducing the hours in line with the
existing internal function room.

In addition to the discussions above, the cumulative impacts from the proposed
hours, number of patrons and additional operating area (red line area) are
considered unreasonable, due to the proposed hours and the intention for the
roof of the deck areas to remain open after 10pm.

A condition will limit the use of the deck areas to correspond with the existing
hours approved for the internal and external function room at Condition 4.1 and
4.2 of the existing permit. These (conditioned) hours are also consistent with the
current liquor licence for consumption on the licensed premises.

Furthermore, the restriction of patrons through Condition 5 and the additional
conditions limiting the patron numbers of Deck 1 to 88 patrons and Deck 2 to 54
patrons will provide further restrictions to ensure no unreasonable amenity
impacts will result from the proposal.

Existing conditions of the Planning Permit provide restrictions to ensure patrons
departing the premises late at night do so in an orderly manner, and that the
James Street rear entry to the car park must be closed between 10pm and 7am.

A condition will also require an Amenity and Patron Management Plan to be
submitted to and approved by Council, prior to the use of the decks for the sale
and consumption of liquor.

As a result of the above requirements and the implementation of the various
acoustic mitigation measures, the proposal is deemed satisfactory given the
extensive on-site management that the operator is required to adhere to through
the various conditions and the Amenity/Patron Management Plan.

Conditions will be required and updated in accordance with Council’s standard
amenity conditions, to further manage the use.

Signs

8.66

8.67

The application seeks approval for five internally illuminated business signs
associated with the existing hotel.

The Outdoor Advertising Policy (Clause 22.07) promotes fewer signs that are
more effective and ensure consideration of adjacent land uses and existing signs
to protect visual clutter.
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8.68

8.69

8.70

8.71

8.72

8.73

8.74

8.75

8.76

8.77

The policy promotes business identification signs associated with non-residential
uses to be designed in a manner that is clear, well-designed and uncluttered.
llluminated signhs must be located to minimise light spill onto adjoining residential
areas.

The proposal includes the provision of at least one internally illuminated business
identification sign to the northern, eastern and southern interfaces of the hotel.

The northernmost signs ‘C’ and ‘D’ present to the on-site car park, adjacent to
James Street, albeit with an appreciation of this perspective from the adjoining
residential allotments to the east, given its proximity. The proposed ‘Function
Room’ and ‘Sheahan’s Room’ signage to the new pillars is well located to serve
as a form of identification for patrons seeking to access these components of the
hotel from the rear car park, whilst limiting the impacts of potential light spill to the
eastern adjoining residential allotments, given the separation.

The only existing signage to this interface is the existing ‘Templestowe Hotel’ sign
at the entrance to the hotel. Given the size of the signage in comparison to the
building, the provision for three signs comprising lettering only and the limited
visibility from adjoining allotments, the signs are considered acceptable, and do
not result in an excessive clutter of signage to this perspective.

The ‘Gaming Lounge Entry’ sign 'E’ is well located at the entry to the gaming
room being adjacent to the adjoining Veterinary clinic on the eastern adjoining
allotment. This proposed sign is the only one to the eastern fagade, thus being
designed in a manner to avoid visual clutter.

The southern perspective presents to Parker Street, being a main arterial road
and the least sensitive interface in terms of the adjoining land uses. The
easternmost aspect of the fagade is particularly significant, being the original
fabric of the circa extant 1868 hotel building.

The proposed sighage to the existing pylon sign seeks to upgrade the wording
and logos in line with the existing use of the land. The changes are discreet and
provide a good overview for the operations of the site, whilst reducing the
reliance on additional signage throughout by updating existing signs. The
illuminated components are discrete and will ensure passers-by are able to
appreciate each element.

The application proposes sign ‘A’ which reads ‘The Tempy Hotel’, being a 1.92m
high illuminated sign atop the play room addition to Parker Street. The proposed
sign is modest, discreet and complements the design of the building, being
typeface only. The sign is reasonable, given it is associated with the newer
component of the building, whilst being the only sign that identifies the name of
the hotel to the Parker Street frontage.

Conditions will ensure the illuminated components of the aforementioned signage
is appropriately designed to limit impacts to motorists and the amenity of the
surrounding area.

Furthermore, from a heritage perspective the proposed signs (particularly to the
eastern and southern facades) have been designed to ensure the significance,

character and appearance of the heritage place is not adversely impacted, with
the extant 1868 weatherboard component remaining a stand out component of

the respective perspectives.
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Vegetation removal

8.78 Pursuant to Schedule 130 of Clause 43.01 (Heritage Overlay) a permit is required
to remove a tree, as it specifies the heritage place as one where tree controls

apply.

8.79 Consequently a permit is required to remove the small tree/shrub within the
southern setback to Parker Street to facilitate the proposed addition to the
southern facade of the hotel.

8.80 The heritage citation is silent regarding significant trees at the subject land. In any
case, an assessment is required to determine the appropriateness of the removal
to facilitate the additions.

Figure 4- Existing Photinia Serratifolia tree (to be removed)

8.81 The tree in question (as highlighted at Figure 4 above) is located to the south-
west of the proposed play room addition to the southern fagade, being a Photinia
(Photinia Serratifolia).

8.82 An assessment of the historical imagery of the subject land, suggests the tree
may have been planted early in 2009.

8.83 From a heritage perspective, the removal of this tree is inconsequential, given it
forms no significance in relation to this heritage place. The absence of its canopy
will enable a further appreciation for the western wall of the original hotel.

8.84 The removal of this tree is therefore acceptable.

Objector Concerns

8.85 New conditions that reduce the hours of use of the proposed deck areas
generally address the concerns of neighbours in relation to the cumulative noise

impacts on the amenity of the surrounding area from patronage and music noise
emanating from the premise.

8.86 A condition will require the louvres/windows and roof to Decks 1 and 2 to remain
closed after 10pm to reduce the ability for music within the venue to escape.
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8.87

8.88

8.89

8.90

8.91

8.92

8.93

It is proposed to manage the amenity impacts through an Amenity/Patron
Management Plan, particularly at the end of the night when guests are departing
the premise and noise will likely be generated from the car park as patrons’
access vehicles and other transportation services.

Staff training, general patron management and signage can clearly regulate and
limit the use of the decks and smoking area in accordance with the proposed
conditions.

The existing venue also has management limitations imposed by their liquor
licence and existing conditions of the Planning Permit.

The applicant sought to retain Condition 1 and 1A on the permit as a result of
issues raised by objectors at the consultation meeting.

A condition will require garbage and recycling storage areas to be maintained in a
neat and tidy condition to the satisfaction of the Responsible Authority to address
concerns regarding aesthetic impacts to the area from excess littering and waste.

The proposed conditions appropriately limit off-site impacts from the illuminated
signage to an acceptable level.

Council has limited scope to require other aspects raised by objectors, namely,
the provision for higher fencing to the common boundaries.

9. DECLARATION OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

9.1

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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5. LEGISLATIVE REQUIREMENTS
51 PLANNING AND ENVIRONMENT ACT 1987 (THE ACT)

The Planning and Environment Act 1987 is the relevant legislation governing planning in Victoria. The
Act identifies subordinate legislation in the form of Planning Schemes to guide future land use and
development.

Section 60 of The Planning and Environment Act, requires the Responsible Authority to consider the
following before deciding on an application:

. The relevant planning scheme;
The objectives of planning in Victoria;
All objections and other submissions which it has received;
Any decision and comments of a referral authority which it has received; and
Any significant effects which the responsible authority considers the use or development may
have on the environment or which the responsible authority considers the environment may have
on the use or development.

Section 61(4) of the Act makes specific reference to covenants. Under Section 61(4) of the Planning
& Environment Act 1987 the Responsible Authority must not issue a planning permit that would result
in a breach of a registered restrictive covenant.

5.2 MANNINGHAM PLANNING SCHEME

Clauses of the Manningham Planning Scheme the Responsible Authority must consider:
«  Planning Policy Framework

Local Planning Policy Framework

Clause 32.08 General Residential Zone, Schedule 3

Clause 43.01 Heritage Overlay, Schedule 130

Clause 52.05 Signs

Clause 52 27 Licensed Premises

Clause 65 Decision Guidelines

Zones

Clause 32.08 General Residential Zone (Schedule 3)
The purpose of the General Residential Zone is:
. To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework;
. To encourage development that respects the neighbourhood character of the area;
. To encourage a diversity of housing types and housing growth particularly in locations offering
good access fo services and transport;
. To allow educational, recreational, religious, community and a limited range of other non-
residential uses to serve local community needs in appropriate locations.

A permit is required to construct a building or construct or carry out works for a use in Section 2 (Food
and Drink premises- Hotel).

Overlays

Clause 43.01 Heritage Overlay (Schedule HO130)
The policy purpose is:
. To implement the Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework;
« To conserve and enhance heritage places of natural or cultural significance,
. To conserve and enhance those elements which contribute (o the significance of heritage
places;

Iltem 9.1 Attachment 2 Page 44



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

. To ensure that development does not adversely affect the significance of heritage places;
. To conserve specified heritage places by allowing a use that would otherwise be prohibited if
this will demonstrably assist with the conservation of the significance of the heritage place.
The requirements of this overlay apply to both the heritage place and its associated land:

Schedule 130 outlines the following requirements:

Heritage External Internal Tree Outbuildings  Included Prohibited MName of Aboriginal
Place Paint Alteration  Controls  orfences on the uses may Incorporated = heritage
Controls  Controls Apply? which are Victorian | pe Plan under E
Apply? Apply? not exempt Heritage permitted?  Clause
under Register 43.01-2?

Clau under
the
Heritage
Act
19957

Templestowe
Hotel- 23-29

Parker Street,
Templestowe

A permit is required to demolish or remove a building, construct a building, construct or display a sign
and remove a tree.

Planning Policy Framework

The relevant seclions of the state policy framework are as follows
Clause 13.02-1S Bushfire Planning

The policy objective is:

« TJo strengthen the resilience of settlements and communities to bushfire through risk based
planning that prioritises the protection of human life

The strategy to achieve this is to give priority to the protection of human life by:

*  Prioritising the protection of human life over all other policy considerations;

e [irecting population growth and development to low risk locations and ensuring the
availability of, and safe access to, areas where human life can be better protected from the
effects of bushfire;

o Reducing the vulnerability of communities to bushfire through the consideration of bushfire
risk in decision making at all stages of the planning process.

Clause 13.05-1S Noise Abatement
The policy objective is:
* To assist the control of noise effects on sensitive land uses.

I'he strategy lo achieve this is
» Ensure that development is not prejudiced and community amenity and human health is not
adversely impacted by noise emissions, using a range of building design, urban design and
land use separation techniques as appropriate to the land use functions and character of the
area.

Clause 13.07-1S Land Use Compatibility
The policy objective is:
o TJo protect community amenity, human health and safety while facilitating appropriate
commercial, industrial, infrastructure or other uses with potential adverse off-site impacts.

This clause includes several strategies to achieve this objective, including:
o Ensure that use or development of land is compatible with adjoining and nearby land uses.

Item 9.1

Attachment 2 Page 45



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

*» Avoid localing incompatible uses in areas that may be impacted by adverse off-site impacts
from commercial, industrial and other uses.

* Avoid or otherwise minimise adverse off-site impacts from commercial, industrial and other
uses through land use separation, siting, building design and operational measures.

*  Protect existing commercial, industrial and other uses from encroachment by use or
development that would compromise the ability of those uses to function safely and
effectively.

Clause 17.01-18 Diversified Economy
The policy objective is:
« To strengthen and diversify the economy.

The strategies to achieve this are:

e Protect and strengthen existing and planned employment areas and plan for new employment
areas.

* Facilitate regional, cross-border and inter-regional relationships to harness emerging
economic opportunities.

* Facilitate growth in a range of employment sectors, including health, education, retail,
tourism, knowledge industries and professional and technical services based on the emerging
and existing strengths of each region.

* |mprove access to jobs closer to where people live.

e Support rural economies to grow and diversify.

Clause 19.02-4S Social and Cultural Infrastructure
The policy objective is:
e To provide fairer distribution of and access to, social and cultural infrastructure.

The relevant strategies to achieve this are:

s Identify and address gaps and deficiencies in social and cultural infrastructure, including
additional regionally significant cultural and sporting facilities.

* Encourage the location of social and cultural infrastructure in activity centres.

e Ensure social infrastructure is designed to be accessible.

* Ensure social infrastructure in growth areas, is delivered early in the development process
and in the right locations.

e Plan and design community places and buildings so they can adapt as the population
changes and different patterns of work and social life emerge.

e« Support innovative ways fo maintain equitable service delivery to settlements that have
limited or no capacity for further growth, or that experience population decline.

Local Planning Policy Framework (LPPF)
Municipal Strategic Statement

Clause 21.11 Heritage
The policy objectives are:
« To enhance cultural heritage through the retention and protection of significant buildings,
precincts, trees and landscapes;
« To minimise impacts on heritage places as a result of changes to adjoining land uses and
development.
« To protect sites of archaeological significance.

The strategies to achieve the objectives include:
« [dentify and assess the cultural significance of heritage places and sites of archaeological
significance.
o Discourage the demolition and destruction of heritage places.
* Encourage the retention of heritage fabric in development proposals.
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» FEncourage initiatives that preserve and enhance Manningham's cultural heritage.

*  Protect and enhance the unique heritage values of the Warrandyte Township Heritage
Precinct.

* Require that an assessment be undertaken by a suitably qualified archaeologist, for
development proposals in areas where there is a known or potential site of archaeclogical
significance.

» Consider the preparation of amendments to the Heritage Overlay schedule to allow prohibited
uses, where the use is unlikely to have a detrimental impact on adjoining land and which may
assist with the ongoing preservation of the heritage building.

e Encourage the use of existing buildings in the Heritage Precinct on the north side of Yarra
Street, Warrandyte for a limited range of commercial uses and to discourage the use of the
buildings for any other purpose.

Local Planning Policy

Clause 22.05 Non-Residential Uses in Residential Areas

The policy applies to non-residential uses and encourages the accommodation of a range of non-
residential uses that service the local community needs in residential areas. There is benefit in
clustering non-residential uses to reduce the need for multi-purpose trips, reducing car dependency
and provide opportunities for social interaction. Whilst there is a need for a variety of uses throughout
the municipality to service the needs of the local community, it is acknowledged that non-residential
uses can have the potential to adversely impact on the amenity and character of the area through
high levels of on-site activity, traffic generation, the emission of noise, odour, light and visual disorder
(storage of waste). It is important, therefore, that non-residential uses are discretionary and
responsive to the existing and preferred character, the amenity of the residential location and the
environment and landscape values.

Clause 22 .06 Eating and Entertainment Premises

The policy applies to the use and development of land for eating and entertainment premises. Eating
and entertainment premises should be located within existing activity centres and commercial areas.
There is benefit to supporting these premises in residential areas where they are designed and
landscaped to make a positive contribution to the local area by enhancing amenity, responding to
neighbourhood character and facilitating high levels of mobility. Whilst there is a need for these types
of premises, they must be designed in a manner to ensure that the intensity and hours of operation of
the proposed activity are not detrimental to the amenity of the area.

Clause 22.07 Qutdoor Advertising Signs

The policy applies to the erection and display of outdoor advertising signs and recognises that
advertising signs are an important component of the built environment. While there 1s a need for the
effective identification of businesses, a proliferation of signs, and signs that are poorly sited and
designed, significantly detract from the attractiveness and amenity of the municipality. A clutter of
signs also reduces the effectiveness of individual signs. It is important, therefore, that signs are
displayed in a manner compatible with the character of the surrounding area and which avoids visual
clutter. Advertising signs need to be clear, legible and visually attractive. Signs need to be well
designed and should complement the area, building design, streetscape and any views.

Particular Provisions

Clause 52.05 Signs
The purpose of the policy is:
* Toregulate the development of land for signs and associated structures.
« Joensure signs are compatible with the amenity and visual appearance of an area, including
the existing or desired future character.
*» To ensure signs do not contribute to excessive visual clutter or visual disorder.
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» Toensure that signs do not cause loss of amenity or adversely affect the natural or built
environment or the safety, appearance or efficiency of a road.

A permit is required to construct or put up for display internally illuminated business identification
signs.

Clause 52 27 Licensed Premises
The purpose of the policy is:
* To ensure that licensed premises are situated in appropriate locations
*» To ensure that the impact of the licensed premises on the amenity of the surrounding area is
considered.

A permit is required lo use land to sell or consume liquor where the area that liquor is allowed to be
consumed or supplied under a licence is to be increased.

General Provisions

Clause 65 Decision Guidelines
This clause outlines that before deciding on an application, the responsible authority must consider,
as appropriate:
. The Municipal Planning Strategy and the Planning Policy Framework.
. The purpose of the zone, overlay or other provision.
. Any matter required to be considered in the zone, overlay or other provision.
. The orderly planning of the area.
. The effect on the amenity of the area
. Whether the proposed development is designed to maintain or improve the quality of
stormwaler within and exiting the sile.
. The degree of flood, erosion or fire hazard associated with the location of the land and the use,
development or management of the land so as to minimise any such hazard.
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10 CITY PLANNING & COMMUNITY

10.1 Placemaking Framework

File Number: IN21/687
Responsible Director:  Acting Director City Planning & Community

Attachments: 1 Manningham Placemaking Framework &

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Placemaking is a global movement which supports the process of creating quality
places where people want to live, work, play and learn. Manningham Council has been
involved in placemaking for several years. With the specific challenges presented by
the COVID-19 pandemic and an increasing need to be able to work, play and conduct
business outdoors, the placemaking agenda was recently reinvigorated. As aresult, a
Placemaking Framework has been developed to confirm Council’'s commitment to
creating more connected communities and thriving local businesses.

The Placemaking Framework plans to make our neighbourhoods engaging, creative
and healthy places where people want to be. The Framework aligns with the Council
Plan and Health and Wellbeing Strategy to build connections to support improved
wellbeing, and recognises the potential to deliver on actions associated with Council’s
forthcoming Reconciliation Action Plan.

The Framework defines Council’s intentions for placemaking. It will be used as a tool
for Council staff, developers, community organisations and local people to strengthen
their local community. The Framework will be supported by internal planning, that will
be closely linked to our Capital Works Plan to prioritise and drive our major
placemaking projects across Manningham.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:
A. Endorses the Placemaking Framework in confirmation of Manningham’s
commitment to placemaking as a way of enhancing our urban villages and

outdoor amenity.

B. Notes the Placemaking Framework as an organisational practice model.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 All around the world, communities are seeking a closer connection to place.
Connection is one of the strongest themes emerging from our community
engagement for our Vision and Council Plan.

2.2 Placemaking connects our communities, engage and guide urban planning and
develop our vibrant villages with the current thinking and best practice on making
places work for people.
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2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

2.7

2.8

Council seeks to activate public spaces and stimulate economic and community
activity through good urban design and the re-thinking traditional uses of street
spaces to encourage greater pedestrian activity. Placemaking practice
encourages meeting, socialising, exercising, creativity, and spending money. As
economic exchange generally only happens once people get out of their cars,
stimulating economic activity occurs by encouraging people to ‘stick, stop, stay
and spend’ — not just to pass through.

At the highest level, the goals of placemaking are to strengthen the connection
between people and places, and to improve social, economic and environmental
sustainability and the community’s health and wellbeing.

COVID-19 has had a significant economic impact on businesses and traders.
This is has been especially difficult for those in the hospitality industry, including
restaurants, pubs, cafes, and take away food outlets, as well as for small
business, and our arts industry.

A feature of Plan Melbourne is the 20-minute neighbourhood - where everything
you need is within 20 minutes of where you live - is proving to be a liveability
standard and increasingly a community expectation.

As a result of COVID-19:

e Our neighbourhoods are more important than ever;

e Community connection is vital for wellbeing;

¢ It makes sense to support local business and have good access to community
services and facilities;

e Buy local is increasingly important;

¢ Reduced travel and time saving are becoming more desirable; and

e There is heightened awareness of sustainability goals including the
importance of shade and trees, recycling and waste management, safe places
and easily negotiated footpaths and cycle ways.

Over the last 10 months the placemaking program has delivered:

o 33 activations at Jackson Court and three community arts projects

o 30 separate community-led projects that collaborate with local hospitality
businesses as part of the business, including small community libraries,
Lion Dances and Persian Fire Festivals, environmental workshops,
community walks and Pilates, food festivals and tasting feasts, library
storytelling walks, and coffee workshops.

o Development of outdoor seating at Wonga Park Community Cottage.

o Upgrade of Ayr Street South rejuvenated and activated the shopping strip
into place where local residents want to be.

o Outdoor seating, sighage, umbrellas and plants to stimulate outdoor dining
in several locations.

o Four temporary popup parks in neighbourhood centres, with two remaining
at Tunstall Square and Templestowe Village.

o Re-use of some popup features and furniture such as dice at MC2.

o Internal engagement and development of the Placemaking Framework and
a subsequent strengthening of ideas around inclusion, access, signage,
and alignment with the forthcoming Reconciliation Action Plan.

o Several widely covered stories in print and online about our community
building through placemaking.
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3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

The Placemaking Framework has been developed to outline a set of high-level
principles for the process of undertaking placemaking as an activity. It places
genuine engagement (in alignment with Council’s Community Engagement
Policy), and sound research at its core, and seeks to ensure that the community
will drive the desired outcomes.

Success will come from a shared approach across directorates and operational
units to drive the change required towards a common goal.

Manningham’s Placemaking Framework (“the Framework”) is underpinned by the
following principles:

Led by authentic community engagement and evidence.

Recognises the Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung as primary guardians, keepers and
knowledge holders of Aboriginal cultural heritage and therefore seeks
authentic engagement to enrich the built environment in the placemaking
process.

Starts with local people and is inclusive of the whole community.

Ranges from very small localised projects to large infrastructure
development.

Is multidisciplinary.

Is outcomes focussed and consistently measured for economic and social
impacts.

Encourages innovation and makes it visible and public.

Encourages public art and community participation in creative activations in
places that are important to local people.

Seeks to make people feel happy and safe because they can recognise that
they belong, and their local places are somewhere that they have fun.

Often includes change, or is driven by change. Council will support the
community in making desirable change happen and as a business be
prepared to try new ways of doing things.

Recognises that vibrant connected communities deliver sound economic and
social justice outcomes.

Through the Framework, there are a number of short term strategies that include:

Streamlining permit approval process;

Waiving fees for extending roadside trading permits;

Supporting hospitality businesses utilise outdoor spaces for dining, in line with
COVID-Safe practices;

Provision of outdoor furniture in open areas to support COVID-Safe practices;
and

Accessing funding available from State Government to support these
initiatives.

3.5 The Framework also establishes longer term strategies including:

Activation of urban villages through placemaking initiatives.
Community led interventions to shape a place.
Growth in public art and creative community activations of public spaces.
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3.6

3.7

3.8

4.1

4.2

4.3

4.4

The placemaking program has followed Council’'s Community Engagement Policy
and makes use of the internal Guidelines developed to support that policy. The
placemaking program has extended our community engagement through
authentic engagement and strategies that reach out to the community, rather
than expecting them to come to us. Tactical urbanism (short term action for long
term change) presents creative opportunities for us to engage regularly with our
community. This would support our more strategic shift to deliberative
engagement with a focus on hyper-local to utilise an integrated planning
approach with involvement from all our teams, including social planning,
environment, arts, engineering, traffic etc.

In alignment with the Community Engagement Policy, Council will listen to
perspectives on place, and to the aspirations and ideas of local people. We will
strive to understand what being “on Country” means and engage the Wurundjeri
Woi-wurrung in our significant placemaking projects.

Placemaking sites and priorities will be identified and informed by engagement, to
be reflected in future Capital Works programs. The priorities will enable the ideal
of 20-minute neighbourhoods and achieve an outcome of “living locally”, building
on the objectives identified in the Liveable City Strategy. The development of
priorities for our ‘Vibrant Villages’ has been identified as an action in the 2021-
2025 Council Plan.

IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

The Placemaking Framework will enable outcomes such as:

o Enabling healthy lifestyles and celebrating a healthy environment, taking
into account the needs of the vulnerable citizens in our community.

o Activate an emerging night economy designed to meet the needs of local
people.

o Connecting our residents, and welcome visitors, to our green spaces and
waterways.

o Enable ways of making active transport, walking and cycling connections
accessible and easy to use.

The Framework assists our community in trying to build resilience in the face of
COVID-related socio-economic impacts. The Framework determines that we will
evaluate Manningham’s interventions in order to understand and benchmark the
delivery of public value and help build strong, inclusive and safe communities.

The Framework will also ensure Manningham is keeping pace with its
neighbouring LGAs who are also prioritising placemaking.

The placemaking program involves a process of ongoing monitoring and
evaluation of our partnerships and the short, medium and long-term projects
implemented throughout each of the initiatives stages. At the outset of each
placemaking project, we will determine the measures of success using Council’s
Public Value methodology and understanding baseline criteria such as the
problem that is intended to be solved through placemaking.
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5. IMPLEMENTATION
5.1 Finance / Resource Implications
The placemaking program and resources are funded through operational funding
for a temporary period to the first quarter of 2022 financial year, after which time
the placemaking practices will be embedded across the organisation.

5.2 Communication and Engagement

The Framework involves the ongoing implementation of a communication and
engagement plan.

5.3 Timelines
Once endorsed by Council, the Framework will be embedded throughout

organisation, with targeted team workshops and advisory committee
presentations delivered over the next six months.

6. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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Connected, with a strong
chance of fun.

“Manningham is a peaceful, inclusive and
safe community. We celebrate life with
its diverse culture, wildlife and natural
environment. We are resilient and value
sustainable and healthy living, a sense of
belonging, and respect for one another.”

Manningham'’s Community Vision
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Abbey Rich - Participatory Art Project at Jackson Court, 2021
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Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

Acknowledgment of Country

Manningham Council acknowledges the Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung people as the Traditional
Owners of the land and waterways now known as Manningham.

Council pays respect to Elders past, present and emerging, and values the ongoing contribution
to enrich and appreciate the cultural heritage of Manningham.

Council acknowledges and respects Australia's First Peoples as Traditional Owners of lands and
waterways across Country, and encourages reconciliation between all.
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Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

Image of Placemaking
About the artist and the Manna Gum

The image of Manna Gum leaves and seed capsules by Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung artist

Ash Firebrace conveys the importance of the plant within Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung culture.
Women utilise its leaves to cleanse ground prior to ceremeoenies and it is also used in smoke
cleansing ceremonies and for decoration.

This image has been chosen for placemaking because of the importance of place to the
Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung People who take their name from the ‘wurun' meaning Manna Gum
(Eucalyptus viminalis) found along the ‘Birrarung’ (Yarra River), and 'djeri’. the grub which is
found in or near the tree. Their relationship with the land extends back tens of thousands of
years to when their creator spirit ‘Bunjil' formed the land and all living things.

This Manna Gum reminds us that we are on Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung Country and it recognises
that the natural environment is one of the most valued characteristics of Manningham. The
connectivity of placemaking is evident in the structure of the leaves - it is our connections that
strengthen us and will help is to be a resilient community.

Firebrace's image is representative of the artist's confident graphic style, utilising a muted
black, white and gold colour palette and featuring distinctive angular patterns of parallel lines
and hatching motifs often seen in Wurundjeri art and material culture. This image featured

in Firebrace's solo exhibition Myths and Legends held at Manningham Art Gallery in 2021.
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Figure 1: Community Library - placemaking can be small and bespoke.

Scope of framework

The scope of this Placemaking Framework is to outline for Council and the
community, Council’s approach to the way we understand, design and deliver
our public spaces and community activities for the wellbeing of our community.

This document outlines our placemaking approach, the guiding principles, benefits
and key steps involved in creating vibrant and inclusive local places in Manningham.
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Framework statement
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Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

Connected Communities
and Vibrant Villages

Creating vibrant and inclusive places starts with people. “Placemaking inspires
people to collectively re-imagine and reinvent spaces to become places at the
heart of every community”™.

Manningham will seek to understand its places and spaces through the eyes of its community.
We will implerment our Cormmmunity Engagement Policy. We will utilise creative urban design
and community and economic development principles to support community connections and
enhance local vibrant villages. In Manningham there will be a place for everyone.

GUIDING PRINCIPLES

Manningham's placemaking is underpinned by the following principles:

Placemaking is led by authentic community engagement and evidence.

Placemaking recognises the Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung as primary guardians, keepers
and knowledge holders of Aboriginal Cultural heritage and therefore seeks authentic
engagement to enrich the built environment in the placemaking process.

Placemaking starts with local people and is inclusive of the whole community.
Placemaking ranges from very small localised projects to large infrastructure development.
Placemaking is multidisciplinary.

We will consistently measure outcomes, and economic and social impacts.

Placemaking encourages innovation and makes it visible and public.

Placemaking encourages public art and community participation in creative activations
in places that are important to local people.

Placemaking seeks to make people feel happy and safe because they can recognise
that they belong, and their local places are somewhere that they have fun.

Placemaking often includes change, or is driven by change. Council will support the
community in making desirable change happen and as a business be prepared to try
new ways of doing things.

In supporting placemaking Council recognises that vibrant connected communities
deliver sound economic and social justice outcomes. Placemaking builds social capital
and economic vibrancy.

3 Project for Public Spaces www.pps.org
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Figure 2: Key elements of a successful Place

“Great public spaces are those places
where celebrations are held, social
and economic exchanges occur, friends
run into each other, and cultures mix.
They are the “front porches” of our public
institutions — libraries, field houses,
schools — where we interact with each
other and government. When these
spaces work well, they serve as the
stage for our public lives.”

— Project for Public Spaces
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PURPOSE

The purpose of this framework is to state
Council's commitment to creating more
connected communities and thriving local
businesses. We seek to plan for people and to
make our neighbourhoods engaging, healthy
places where local people want to be.

This framework seeks to clearly define
Placemaking and what it is that Manningham
hopes to achieve. It may be used as a teol for
Council, developers, business, organisations
and local people to strengthen their local
community. The framework embodies both
an intent and a way of working with our
community.

Placemaking is a process for delivering

on our commitments in our Council Plan,
Liveable City Strategy and Health and Well
Being Strategy. We will take a placemaking
dapprodch to the way we conduct our
business as it relates to the design and
activation of our public places.

Placernaking is not a new thing, but it

does seek to solve problems in a new way,
engaging deeply and trying to see places
through the eyes of our community. Council
hopes it will be transformational for the
community and for the organisation.

10
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WHAT IS PLACEMAKING?

Placemaking is a process by which we
shape our public realm by inspiring people
to collectively reimagine and reinvent public
spaces as a place for the community to enjoy
and feel welcome, whether they are locals
or visitors. Placemaking supports creative
patterns of use that build physical, cultural,
and social identities that define a place

and support its ongoing evolution to create
quality public spaces that help contribute to
people’s health, happiness, and wellbeing.
[Source: Project for Public Spaces]

Placemaking:

Seeks to collectively activate public spaces
to stimulate economic and community
activity through good urban design and the
reallocation of redundant or surplus street
space to pedestrians

Encourages meeting, socialising, exercising
and spending money, recognising that
economic exchange generally only
happens once people get out of their cars

Stimulates economic activity by
encouraging people to 'stick, stop, stay
and spend’ - not just to pass through.

At the highest level the goals of placemaking
are to strengthen the connection between
people and places, and to improve social,
economic and environmental sustainability
and the community’s health and wellbeing.
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WHY PLACEMAKING?

Placemaking is a process for delivering on
Council’s core business. It seeks to deliver the
effective use of Council resources through

an even stronger multi-disciplinary and
integrated approach.

The community has high expectations for the
quality and functionality of places that are
important to them. Placemaking engages
deeply and seeks to meet existing and
emerging community aspirations.

Lively and aesthetically pleasing places

build private sector confidence and attract
investrment; an outcome that will support
Manningham's economic sustainability.
Liveability delivers not only for local residents
but for business growth.

Placermaking helps to reinstate a safe and

attractive environment for people to spend
more time in public places both to connect
and to spend money with local businesses.

Placemaking is for People

Placemaking is founded in deep engagement

with our community and is often “community-

led”. We listen to the community first, we
bring in our expertise, and we work together
to deliver.

Qur urban planning recognises that the
pedestrian is the core of transportation and
the centre of all transport modes — as we are
effectively all a ‘pedestrian’ before we get

into a car or onto a bike or public transport.

In many of our streets, it should be considered
that given their physical vulnerability, the
pedestrian should take precedent ahead of
all other modes.

We recognise that people with ambulatory
challenges require special consideration in
order for our places to be safe and accessible
for all. Safe places will always be high on the
placemaking agenda.

1
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“Cities have the capability
of providing something for
everybody, only because,
and only when, they are
created by everybody.”

— Jane Jacobs

Placemaking as a testing ground
for change

Placemaking can alsc be intentionally
temporary, or a testing ground for long
term change.

Placemaking is embedding the principles of
tactical urbanism, which encourages us to
think in more innovative ways.

Communities are locking for short-term,
low-cost, scalable interventions that can
catalyse long-term change. Spaces are
designed as places for people to experience,
and it's those varying, purposeful positicns
that can evolve with the needs of the
community that make a neighbourhood or
city nurturing and attractive places to live,
work and invest.

As we now try to stimulate community
resilience, we will learn from cities around
the world that are getting back to business
in a“living with COVID" context.
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Imagine

Imagine the public value created if we focused
all our skill and energy into a particular place,
even more intensively than our current
collaborations: engagement, urban design,
traffic engineering, communications,
community services, environmental initiatives,
waste management, maintenance, arts and
cultural events, creating connections and
supporting communities in enjoying their
local places and assets. We would then be
able to build, and measure the impact of,

a network of places across Manningham

that help realise the Community Vision:

‘Manningham is o peaceful, inclusive and
safe community. We celebrate life with

its diverse culture, wildlife and natural
environment. We are resilient and value
sustainable and healthy living, a sense

of belonging, and respect for one another.”

PLACEMAKING IN PRACTICE

Urban design and community infrastructure
projects provide the platform for our
placemaking. Our community will lead

the way as we develop inclusive, stronger,
connected local neighbourhoods,

We will prioritise Placemaking projects by
assessing our activity centres and public
spaces and developing a clear plan for action.
The Vibrant Village 10 Year Action Plan will
accompany this document and it will set

out our priority upgrades for our local and
neighbourhood activity centres,

This Vibrant Village Plan and our placemaking
activations will help us deliver on the Liveable
City Strategy and the Healthy City Strategy.
At the same time, organic, community-led
activities will be encouraged to flourish as
they help people feel good about their

local places and support their health and
happiness.

12
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The renewal of cur public places to enhance
community wellbeing is driven by changes
that are already well underway. As
Melbourne's population continues to rapidly
grow from S million today to over & million by
2050, pressure will continue to mount on how
the city can use its land more efficiently as the
urban area expands and increases in density,
whilst private open space diminishes. Public
streets will need to do more than just carrying
vehicles. Suburbs will need to achieve the
city-planning objective of a ‘20 minute city' —
an urban environment where every resident
can access their everyday needs within a 20
minute trip by either public transport, walking
or cycling from where they live.

“‘Growing urban populations
will demand that their streets
serve not only as corridors for
the conveyance of people,
goods, and services, but as
front yards, parks, playgrounds
and public parks” — National
Association of City Transport
Officials (NACTO).
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Placemaking is shaped by many of the commitments in the
Council Plan, particularly those related to community connection
and community wellbeing. Placemaking is grounded in
Wurundjeri Country and it is where the Reconciliation Action
Plan can be enlivened. Placemaking is a way of working with
communities to bring Council strategies to life in a community-
centred way.
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This Framework is supported by a Guideline for Council staff. We will continually
improve our practices and take a placemaking approach to our neighbourhood
activity centres and public places. Our approach is surmmarised below.

When we determine to approach an area from a placemaking perspective, and in a considered
way with a view to renewal and upgrade, we will undertake the following steps to ensure we

are working with our community to improve their connectedness, wellbeing and economic
opportunities. Our approach will be towards the empowerment end of International Association
of Public Participation (IAP2) Spectrum which is our framework that supports our Community
Engagement Policy.

Step 1: Understanding Place

We will undertake background research and analysis to develop a comprehensive
understanding of the place. This will include consideration of ABS data and alignment with
our Council Plan.

Step 2: Imagining Place

We will engage with our community to find out what they love about the place and their
ideas for improving it. We will identify a project or community advocate to lead the process.
We will engage first in order to see a place through the eyes of cur community.

Step 3: Prioritising Ideas

We will work with our community to understand constraints and to rank pricrities and explore
and refine ideas into a shared vision for the place.

Step 4: Planning Place

A Place Plan will identify our community’s vision for the place and the key areas and actions
for improvement. This will include a process to translate the vision into conceptual plans.

Not all Placemaking will involve infrastructure or be large scale. Some will be small community
led activations and we will simply try and find ways to support the community in their projects.

Step 5: Transforming Place

We will implement the Place Plan, which could include improvements to infrastructure and
streetscapes or activations and programming

Step 6: Evaluating Place

Evaluation starts at the beginning of the planning process by identifying cutcomes and
impacts to be measured in relation to placemaking. Ongoing evaluation allows plans and
activations to be refined throughout the process. Key question to be considered at the outset:
how will we measure community and business impacts?

15
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RESPONSIBILITY STRATEGIC CONTEXT

(MULTIDISCIPLARY APPROACH) The Manningham Council Plan 2021-25

Placemaking involves the community, sets out the four year vision for our future
stakeholders and Council working together based on the values, aspirations and priorities
to plan, design, develop, activate, manage our community told us were important

and evaluate spaces, neighbourhoods and to them. Our placemaking approach will
precincts., play an important role in working with ocur

community and stakeholders to deliver on
the overall vision and key strategic objectives
of the Manningham Council Plan.

Placemaking is a long-term, future oriented
process that recognises the unigueness of
a place. It involves listening to the pecple
who live, work, visit, study and play in a

) ) o Key strategic documents to be referenced
place to discover their needs and aspirations.

inour placemaking include:
It uses short and long-term interventions
to build on the place’s existing gualities.

Placemaking will be referenced in many
of Council’s strategic documents. - Health and Wellbeing Strategy

« Council Plan

« Liveable City Strategy

+ Reconciliation Action Plan (RAP)
- Open Space Strategy

+ Public Art Policy

+ Community Infrastructure Plan

- Asset Plan

17
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10-Year Vibrant Villages Plan

The objective of the 10-Year Vibrant Villages
Plan is to prioritise future infrastructure

and urban design upgrades throughout
Manningham's 12 Neighbourhood Activity
Centres and 27 Local Activity Centres. This
will seek to encourage the ideal of 20-minute
neighbourhoods and achieve an outcome

of “living locally" and build on the objectives
identified in the Liveable City Strateqy.

Many activity centres require maintenance
or replacement of public assets and
infrastructure, and intervention to help
improve community infrastructure to
support existing businesses and encourage
future investment.

The Vibrant Villages Plan will provide a

10-Year program of works which prioritises

the centres in most need of attention first

and determine the level of intervention
required (i.e. minor or moderate infrastructure
warks and placemaking activity, or the
development of a major precinct structure
plan to guide future development in the
centre).

Creating and supporting Manningham'’s
local commercial strip or shopping hubs
that people want to visit because of:
Connection with community
- Access Lo services
- Accessibility
Range of business activities
Qutdoor dining
- Activations and events

Pleasant and green village sguares and
‘piazzas”

- Appropriate night time economy
Places where people want te visit and
to invest
Fit for purpose public infrastructure

Safe and inclusive places (including safety
for pedestrians, wormen, children, people
with disabilities etc))

Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

We will develop an assessment and
prioritisation criteria for our vibrant
villages program that includes:

- An understanding of the community's
sense of place

Economic status of each centre
(number of cafes, vacant shops etc))

Planning issues or development
opportunities

State of the streetscape/landscape and
any maintenance issues

- Traffic or drainage issues

Known future development
(live planning permits)

Private vs public land/land tenure

Capital Works Program for the delivery
of infrastructure improvements

Social Planning issues of opportunities
Catchment demographics

We will measure the impact of our
Placemaking interventions in our activity
centres. For example; do traders report an
increase in turnover? Have new businesses
been attracted to the area? Has research

with local people found increased usage of
the local asset/place? This will help us assess
the public value delivered in our interventions.

Item 10.1
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Community-led Placemaking

We will listen ta perspectives on place, and
to the aspirations and ideas of local people.
We will follow the principles and processes
outlined in Manningham's Community
Engagement Policy.

We will connect community and place with
our partners and stakeholders: Libraries,
Neighbourhood Houses, Sporting Clubs,
Community Organisations, and Government
Agencies.

Activations and events are led by the local
community and traders. Activations will be
based on our research and engagement and
will seek to celebrate what is important to
local people. Council's expertise and insights
will be available to strengthen activations.

Place and a Healthy Environment

We will connect people and encourage active
healthy lifestyles: Walk to your local. Have
coffee with friends. Make art together. Ride

yvour bikes. Let your children climb in the park.

Breathe easy under trees. Eat outside in the
sunshine. Keep cars moving slowly in places
where people walk and congregate. Plant
veggies in your local commmunity garden.
We will re-imagine our hard spaces to create
cooler and greener urban environments.

Placemaking also seeks to achieve
sustainability outcomes such as the
introduction of vegetation and soft
landscaping into our urban areas, trees
and canopy cover to provide shade and
reduce the heat-island effect and consider
water sensitive urban design initiatives.

20
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Place Activation and the
Night-time Economy

A planned and emerging night time
economy: Places to connect, read, learn,
create, dance, exercise, eat and drink. Night
time activities designed to meet the needs of
local people. Late nights where people want
them and quiet streets in other places.

Activated places for a COVID-normal context
such as increased cutdoor dining, pop-up
parks and parklets {footpath extensions that
provide mare space and amenity for people
using the streetscape.)

Warren Langley, Immerse, 2008, ceramic tiles
and LED lighting
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Our Natural Places

Open spaces, parks, trails and playing fields
are the centrepieces of life in Manningham,
to be frequently used and enjoyed. We will
take a placemaking approach with our large
scale projects that seek to connect residents
and welcome visitors to our green spaces and
wateravays.

We recognise Wurundjeri Woi-wurrung
Country, and our more recent heritage
through storytelling, interpretive signage,
art, music, community activities and cultural
events. We will work

with our community to protect and nurture
our natural places.

We will use art and storytelling to explore
our natural places and honour the original
owners, as well as to educate and inform
through community participation and
involvernent with the natural environment.

Place to place (by bike, wheelchair, with
pram or by foot: a connected community)

We will look for ways of making active
transport, walking and cycling connections
accessible and easy to use.

Placemaking and everything else
- what makes it placemaking?

Placemaking shares goals and activities
with much of Council’s strategic activities.
What makes it placemaking? It is more
than “business as usual” and a placermaking
project when:

- The project starts with engaging with local
people about a place/neighbourhood/
location, and what it means to them

- The project seeks to renew a local place,
community or asset.

- The geal is to strengthen the connections
and/or create economic cpportunities.

- Thereis a strong likelihood of people
having fun.

21
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Evaluation

At the outset of our Placemaking projects
we will determine the measures of success.
How will we know we have provided public
value? What are the problems we have set
out to solve and what are the indicators that
we can measure to show that we

have addressed the problem?

At its most complicated this is socio-economic
impact assessment. For many projects it

will be clearly defining the problem and
developing indicators of success in order

to measure value.

The use of evidence-based case studies can
help develop business cases to support future
projects and demonstrate the issues and
oppaortunities to the cormmunity, traders,
government agencies and funding partners.

We will apply our public value lens to our
projects and use our measurement of
outcomes to shape future planning both
for places and for Council business.

Related Legislation
Local Government Act 2020

GCender Equality Act 2020
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CASE STUDY 1
Ayr Street South, Doncaster

yoursay.manningham.vic.gov.a u/ayr-street-south

What was the problem?

Ayr Street South was a degraded shopping strip with an uncertain future. The motivation for
the upgrade came from a local trader, interested in revitalising the shopping strip.

What the locals told us

From regular in-person engagement with traders, and an online survey for local residents,
we heard strong agreement that Ayr St South needed a makeover. Overall the community
welcomed the beautifying of the streetscape and the provision of outdoor seating, and they
were keen not to lose any car parks in the upgrade, Existing issues with rubbish led to the
inclusion of a new bin.

What we did

First we wrote a comprehensive engagement plan using Manningham's Community
Engagement Cuidelines that accompany our Community Engagement Policy.

Then we worked with our Communications lead to implement the plan and promote the
project. Council officers from a range of teams, particularly City Design, waorked closely with
traders to ensure all new elements met their needs. Key features include new fencing with
planter boxes and hand rails for the stairs, a wider footpath, and a new permanent public
outdoor seating area to support outdoor dining. We also upgraded the accessible parking
space to meet the standard, and added bike racks and a bin.

New trees and shrubbery have been planted to enhance the area's appeal, and to keep it cooler
inwarmer months. A launch party to celebrate the new shopping strip is also an event for
capturing ideas for a community arts project.
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CASE STUDY 2
Sunday Streets, Melbourne City
Council

participate.melbourne.vic.gov.au/sundaystreets

What was the problem?

Docklands is a notoriously disconnected precinct in Melbourne and is lacking upbeat street
activity and social interaction.

What the locals said

Local people wanted to see the area become more vibrant. Local cormnmunity organisations
partnered with The City of Melbourne to trial Sunday Streets, a program to connect
communities in a fun and friendly way. A pilot was run in the Docklands to get the creative
juices flowing, and citizens filled out a survey on the future direction of Sunday Streets.

What Council did

Melbourne City Council collated the feedback and worked with local communities to plan and
implement Sunday Street projects. As a result, three events took place:

Games for kids, coffee for adults and information stalls for community groups at Boyd
Cormmmunity Hub at Southbank

Kids were encouraged to bring their bike or scooter to decorate and feature in the
Sunday Street community parade at Docklands, while the adults were kept busy with
a speed dating style ‘Meet a Docklander” activity.

In Carlton, community members of all ages came together for a picnic lunch, petting zoo,
a toy swap and Community Cake Off!
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CASE STUDY 3
Aboriginal co-design, Carrum Station

levelcrossings.vic.gov.au/media/news/aboriginal-designs-take-flight-in-carrum

What was the problem?

The challenge was to incorporate First People’s perspective into the creation of this space. The
culture of traditional owners is often invisible in the built environment, despite all planning and
building taking place on First People's land. Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander people often
aren't often engaged early enough (Murawin, 2020).

There is a tendency to focus on the history of buildings, excluding other layers of history.
Aboriginal culture is a lived culture, evolving, growing and an integral part of an ever
changing landscape (Jefa Greenaway, ArchitectureAU).

What the locals said

The Level Crossing Removal's community consultation for the revitalisation of Carrum heard
from the local community that they wanted natural yet functional spaces to gather that could
be enjoyed all year round. A proposed drainage pit at Carrum station offered up an opportunity
to create a yarning circle and Urban Marker following an upgrade to Karrum Karrum Bridge.

What the Victorian Government’s Level Crossing Removal Project did

This project was co-designed with Traditional Owners of the Bunurong and Boon wurrung
peoples. Bunurong Land Council endorsed incorporating their cultural patterns into the
designs. Bunjil, the wedge-tailed eagle, and spiritual creator of the bay is at the top of the
Urban Marker, flying over and protecting Country. The yarning circle at its base is a place to
celebrate and share Country, and have cultural tours and events

25
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CASE STUDY 4
Zaragoza, Spain

pps.org/article/not-empty-plot-finding-opportunity-emptiness-historical-city-zaragoza-2

What was the problem?

Zaragoza, Spain's fifth largest city, was hit hard by the global financial crisis, with extremely
high rates of unemployment, plunging property values. Protesters took to the streets,
demanding jobs and financial support.

What the locals and the government body did

Amid the social unrest, a group of architects, citizens, community organizations, nurseries,
small businesses and city agencies came together to imagine new possibilities for Zaragoza's
citizens.

A mix between an employment initiative and placemaking project employed workers to clean
up the city's many grungy abandoned lots and lift morale for the locals.

‘EstoNoEsUnSolar’ (translation: "this is not an ermnpty site") used classic Lighter, Quicker,

Cheaper strategies; abandoned plots were repurposed into flexible and inviting public
spaces. Each site became a place where spontanecus activity could thrive, including
recreation, gardening, concerts, dance classes, skating, art workshops, and outdoor cinema

26
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The Village Square

A Piazza at the heart of cur local neighbours where people can linger longer to connect,
and to support local businesses.

Street furniture

Often generic and utilitarian, street furniture can be transforrmed to be reflective of a place -
whirmnsical, artistic, temporary or permanent and always functional and accessible.

Smart Cities

Sensors, 5G, the Internet of Things, driverless cars, or virtual and augmented reality — our places
are set to become embedded with smart technology and green infrastructure.

28
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MANNINGHAM

manningham vic.go.au

Waumaien Wo-warang Countey

Signage

lhe purpose of signage is varied: it can herald a sense of arrival or direct, educate or interpret a
place. It can also be attractive, sculptural, creative, or digital, and even an interactive means of
engagement. It can be temporary or permanent and used to "brand” a place according to its
iclentity and functions.

Lighting

Transformative, Highlights assets, such as a beautiful tree or an historical facade. Creates
surprise and drama. Denotes festivity. Can be temporary or permanent, such as festoon, fairy or
up-lighting. Semetimes used tc make places feel safer.

Greening

Embedding a sense of nature and greenery into a space for shade, respite and relaxation. One
important means to respond to Manningham's declared Climate Emergency. Celebrating one
of our most treasured CO"T'H'T“LH'”'E}»’ assets — our green p|C]CC‘S.

29
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Play

Opyportunities to engage with activities purely for fun and enjoyment. Including, but not only for
children.

Celebrating Culture

Through performance and parties, solemn moments and loud events - music, poetry, art,
film and dance can imbue a space with a myriad of moods, vibrancy, and a sense of the
extraordinary.

Food trucks and markets

clustering a variety of traders or a group of vibrant, edgy food trucks to transform a place with
crafty sales, local preduce and the tastes and aromas not otherwise available. Adds interest and
draws a crowd.

30
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Public Exhibition Spaces

Provide spaces as a platform to showcase the local strengths and talent of a place for all to enjoy.

Laneways

Renowned throughout Melbourne as open air gallery spaces, alfresco dining nooks and
exceptional sites for temporary pop-ups and activations, laneways are hidden gems ripe for
discovery. imbue a space with a myriad of moods, vibrancy, and a sense of the extraordinary.

Site specific interventions

Surprise, delight, entertain, green, introduce creative expression - and wait for people to engage.

3]
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Shade structures

For sun safety and comfort. A shade structure can become a sculptural piece, which can add a
‘wow' factor.

Street Art and Community Art

Energising local interactions, utilising all art mediums, for the beautification of public spaces
from laneways to silos, traffic signal boxes to ugly brick walls. Art can be used as an adornment
or tointerpret the cultural and social essence of a place. Art can also be in private places that are
visible to the community, such as apartment lobbies or front gardens in a neighbourhood. Art
can be temporary (Spoonville) or permanent (public sculpture at MC2).

Transport Infrastructure

Adds colour and creative flair to bus shelters and bike racks. Create bike and walking paths with
green elements and points of interest that inspire people to use alternative modes of transport.
Prioritise accessibility and make strong connections between places and modes of transport.

Iltem 10.1 Attachment 1 Page 85

23 NOVEMBER 2021



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

Manningham Placemaking Framework

Workshops and Fun Days

Use a range of engagement tools that can get place-users of all ages and abilities together
to imagine and co-design places using activities, such as brainstorming, walk-throughs,
visualisation and play

Gateways

Provide a sense of welcome and destination with a gateway installation that speaks to your
place.

Gardening

Cardening and growing and sharing local food, is an important component of resilient and
sustainable communities and local food systems. Community gardening has a wide range of
potential benefits for community health and wellbeing, the environment and even the local
economy. Community-based gardening can foster the physical, mental, social and spiritual
wellbeing of our community. Individually, plant a pot of colour flowers or install a hanging
basket.
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Glossary of terms

Placemaking

Placemaking is a holistic, hands-on approach
to creating people centred places for the
health and wellbeing of our community.

It involves the re-imagining and activation

of spaces to create vibrant, memaorable and
social places and precincts where people
feel a sense of belonging.

Placernaking can improve the health and
wellbeing of our community by transforming
small or large spaces, such as car parks,
laneways, local parks, shopping strips,
neighbourhoaods or entire precincts. By
activating spaces that encourage connections,
healthy outdoor activities and safe and
attractive spaces, Placemaking wiill assist in
delivering outcomes described in our
Council Plan, our Reconciliation Action Plan,
and in our Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

Tactical Urbanism

Tactical urbanism encompasses changes and
adaptations to our existing places and city
systems in order to quickly meet the needs
of communities. It can range from using the
space of our streets to prioritise walking and
cycling, to planting community gardens in
empty plots and changing leases in empty
retail properties to support new businesses.
These small and large actions — both from
top-down policy and bottom-up intervention
- represent a significant oppertunity for our
cities to meet the immediate needs of our
response to COVID-19 and to implement
lasting changes that contribute to us solving
the problem of sustainable development.

Tactical Urbanism is often the trial of short
term interventions to support longer-term
change.

Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

20 Minute Neighbourhoods

The 20-minute neighbourhood celebrates
‘living locally'—giving people the ability to
meet most of their daily needs within a
20-minute walk, cycle or public transport
journey from home, with access to safe
cycling and local transport options.

The Green Wedge

Green Wedges are the environmentally
significant areas that lie outside the Urban
Growth Boundary across Metropolitan
Melbourne. The Urban Growth Boundary was
putin place by the Victorian Government in
2002 to contain Melbourne's urban sprawl
and protect our sensitive environment
surrounding the City from over development.

Manningham's Green Wedge is the peri-
urban space made up of trees, parks and
waterways, which is essential to the character
of Manningham and provides protection to
our more rural areas from over development.
This includes Warrandyte, Warrandyte South
and parts of Wonga Park and Park Crchards.

Social Capital

Social capital is defined by the OECD as
“netwarks together with shared norms,
values and understandings that facilitate
co-operation within or among groups".

A connected community, a key goal of our
Council Plan, is one with strong social capital:
people, organisations, clubs and businesses
working together for public benefit.

TOECD (2001). The Well-Being of Nations: The Role of Human and Social Capital, OCECD, Paris. Page 41.

34
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Inclusion (all ages, genders,
abilities, backgrounds and
socio-economic status)

Inclusion is a universal human right. Inclusion
in a placemaking context means creating
places where everyone can feel safe and

be safe, feel valued and respected, and be
connected to our community.

The aim of inclusion is to embrace all people
irrespective of race, gender, economic status,
ability, medical and/or other need. Inclusion
strives for equal access and opportunities for
all, while addressing the barriers that lead to
discrimination and intolerance.

Council is commmitted to ensuring that

all people in our community are treated
with dignity, respect and fairness. We will
uphold our requirements in the Victorian
Government's Gender Equality Act 2021 and
seek ways to make Manningham a safe,
respectful and inclusive community.

Urban Design

Urban design is the design of towns and
cities, streets and spaces. It is the collaborative
and multi-disciplinary process of shaping the
physical setting for life — the art of making
places. Urban design involves the design of
buildings, groups of buildings, spaces and
landscapes, and establishing frameworks

and procedures that will deliver successful
development by different people over time?.

Placemaking looks at urban design through
the eyes of the community and supports
Council’s Liveable City Strategy.

2 udg.org.uk/faboutiwhat-is-urban-design

Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

Complete Streets

Complete Streets are roadways designed,
planned, and implemented to enable safe and
comfortable access for every type of user, and
they are an essential component of creating
healthy and inclusive streetscapes. The term
originated in the USA and is often referred

to in Australia as “shared use” pathways and
streels.

Parklet

A parklet is a footpath extension that provides
maore space and amenities for people using
the streetscape and interventions to increase
outdoor dining.

Place Plan

A Place Plan outlines the shared vision
for place and recommends a range of
short, medium and long term projects. It
may include "concept plans” for further
engagement.

Public Art

Public artis art in public places and installed
on public land. It may be large commissioned
works or community art projects.
Placemaking supports Council’s Public Art
Policy.

35
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Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

References

ABS population projections and relevant Manningham demaographics
(reference data packs prepared for Council Plan)

Walking and Suburbs Report: victoriawalks.org.aufwalking-suburbs/

One step ahead . Planning for Accessible Centres and Connected Stations (Victorian)

Project for Public Spaces {International Practice)

Image references
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dezeen.com/2019/06/28/city-parklets-london-festival-architects-fatkin-mcevoy-patrif

brightside me/creativity-design/21-examples-of-urban-design-we-want-to-see-in-every-city-609460/amp/
trendhunter.com/trends/lucerne-switzerland-uses-games-to-inspired-citizens-to<keep-the-city-clean
trendhunter.com/trends/oublic-furniture

WWW.pps.org/articlefour-top-10-articles-of-2020
justinpluslauren.com/unusual-passages-outdoor-art-in-quebec-city/
hoflab.it/architetturefregestofrazza-umana
melbournephotojournalwordpress.corm/2014/09/06/melbourne-laneways/
outdoordesign.com.au/news-infolexemplary-projects/Changing-Laneways/784 . htm
ignant.com/207/0210/incredible-land-art-installations-by-cornelia-konrads/
pinterest.com.au/pin/AWzWEmafwVOLHaglsdWjUsusYNECY 009G WhHKEsSH2fZ1VNg4edtxfn/
brightside.me/creativity-design/21-examples-of-urban-design-we-want-to-see-in-every-city-609460/armp/
malibutimes.com/news/article_eSf7eaae-al97-11e2-9b57-0019bb2963f4. html
archdaily.com/S58556/tulane-students-upcycle-traffic-signs-into-shade-canopy

plataformaarquitectura.cl/cl/764593 /tetralux-generando-nuevos-espacios-publicos‘en-base-al-reciclaje-
de-cajas-de-leche?ad_medium=gallery
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pinterest.com.au/pin/332140541276784753/
conversations.morelandvic.gov.au/russell-street-community-art-project
archdailycom/944704/100architects-regenerates-pedestrian-bridge-in-shanghai-china-with-colorful-
spaces

brightside mefcreativity-design/21-examples-of-urban-design-we-want-to-see-in-every-city-609460/amp/
archdailycom/921850/utrecht-creates-300-bee-friendly-bus-stops
thelovelydrawer.com/9606-2/#_aSy_p=5786647
archdaily.com/286223/superkilen-topotek-1-big-architects-superflex/5088cd9d28ba0d752a0000db-
superkilen-topotek-1-big-architects-superflex-photo

pps.orgfarticle/beyond-food-community-gardens-as-places-of-connection-and-empowerment
pps.orgfarticle/fa-playful-plaza-bringing-imagination-and-new-life-to-downtown-providence
domusweb.it/en/news/2016/11/21/casa_do_quarteirac_orizzontale htmi

architonic.com/en/project/atelier-adam-nathaniel-furman-gateways/20170643
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Manningham Placemaking Framewaork

Amanda Newman (Artist), Tegether project, 2021, Jackson Court. Commissioned by
Manningham, funded by the Neighbourhood Activity Centre Renewal Fund. (cover image)

Words from the artist about this placemaking project:

“This mural was the result of workshops held in early 2021 with kids who wanted to share their
feelings about the difficult past year.

.. the kids expressed common themes of hope and togetherness in spite of the global
pandemic and lockdown .. The design | created used their own illustrations to portray o girl
who is happy despite the rain - a metaphor for the kids" optimism during the pandemic ..

. the kids were able to use the methods I'd taught them to paint their own artwork onto the
wall. This aspect was an extremely important part of the project, as it gave the kids a tangible
sense of pride in the mural and let them know that their actual voices were being heard and
that they mattered ..

Special thanks to participants Jessica (quotes), Leah and Hannah (original illustrations), Cherry,
Daniel Isaac, Jed, James, Oscar, Sihu, Thomas, Xavier, and Yusut for your incredibly inspirational
ideas, artwork, and hard work.”
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Manningham Council

#& Manningham Council, 6899 Doncaster Road, Doncaster
O 98409333

@ manningham@manningham.vic.gov.au

@ manningham.vic.gov.au

CONNECT WITH US

Y twitter/@manninghamcc

n facebook/manninghamcouncil Interpreter service 9840 9355
instagram/@CityofManningham A | EEEAE | EMnvika [taliano | o | )l
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10.2 Whitehorse Manningham Library Annual Report 2020-2021

File Number: IN21/662

Responsible Director:  Director City Planning and Community

Attachments: 1 Whitehorse Manningham Library Annual Report 2020
2021 8

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation has prepared an Annual
Report for the 2020-2021 year. (Attachment 1)

The Annual Report outlines the Library’s achievements towards the strategic objectives
outlined in the Library Plan and the implementation of the Strategic Resource Plan.

It is recommended that Council receive and note the Whitehorse Manningham
Regional Library Corporation 2020-21 Annual Report (Attachment 1), adopted by the
Library Board on 21 October 2021.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

A. Receive and note the Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library
Corporation 2020-2021 Annual Report. (Attachment 1).

B. Note the Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation 2020- 2021
Annual Report is publicly available via the corporation’s website.

2. BACKGROUND

2.1 The Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation provides public
library and information services to residents and visitors across the cities of
Whitehorse and Manningham.

2.2 Across a network of eight branch libraries (with four branches in Manningham)
and the website, the libraries provide free access to physical and virtual
resources that support lifelong learning and reading.

2.3 Pursuant to Sections 131 to 134 of the Local Government Act 1989, the
Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation has prepared an Annual
Report for the 2019/2020 year. (Attachment 1) The Library Corporation still
operates under provisions of the old Local Government Act.

2.4 The Annual Report outlines the Corporation’s achievements towards the strategic
objectives outlined in the Library Plan and the implementation of the Strategic
Resource Plan.

2.5 The Financial Report was approved by the Library Board at its meeting on 25
August 2021. The Annual Report was adopted by the Library Board at a special
meeting of the Board on 21 October 2021.
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3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

3.2

The Annual Report documents the contributions of the Corporation, its Board,
staff and branch operations throughout the year.

The Annual Report describes the impact of the COVID-19 pandemic on library
services, but also documents the considerable achievements across the year and
the value our community places in library services.

4. COUNCIL PLAN / STRATEGY

4.1

4.2

The Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation has its own Strategic
Plan, underpinned by the following key themes for the period 2017-21.

1. Read, Learn and Discover

Providing resources and programs that encourage life-long learning and
reading for pleasure.

2.  Connect, Collaborate and Participate

Our library provides opportunities for social connection and community
engagement.

3. Experience

We strive for excellence in all aspects of our services to ensure a positive
and responsible experience for all customers.

4.  Value
We apply best practice principles to the way we work to ensure our
services continue to be relevant and sustainable.

A new Library Plan 2021-2024 has been developed and was endorsed at the
Library Board meeting on 21 October 2021. It will guide the directions for the next
four years.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1

5.2

5.3

The Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation provides a highly
valued service to the Manningham and Whitehorse communities. The 2020-21
Annual Report documents the organisation’s deliverables against the adopted
targets and provides a transparent report into the organisations finances and
operations.

The Annual Report acts as a record of the organisation’s tracking against its
2017-21 Strategic Plan and provides the basis for Council’s reporting via the
Local Government Performance Reporting Framework.

It is noteworthy that the Library service continued to deliver modified services
during extended lockdown periods so that residents could continue to collect
books and other materials using ‘click and collect’ or via home delivery.

Item 10.2
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5.4

In early 2021, the member Councils and the Library Corporation commenced a
comprehensive Library Review and the development of a 10 year Strategy. This
work will is still being finalised and is due to be presented to the Library Board in
December 2021. The member councils will be briefed in early 2022. A more
comprehensive summary of the Library Review and Strategy will also be reported
in next year’s Annual Report.

6. IMPLEMENTATION

6.1

6.2

6.3

Finance / Resource Implications

The Annual Report does not, in and of itself, have direct financial implications for
Council however the Financial Report identifies Council’s operating contribution
of $3.93M for the 2020-2021 Financial Year. Attachment 1, p67.

Communication and Engagement

An extensive community survey of 1800 respondents was completed during early
2020.

o 94% of respondents rated the Library as important or very important
o 87% reported that the library impacts them in a positive way

e The top five things for users: items for loan, helpful staff, library website
and online resources, consistent opening hours and the library as a place
to do your own thing.

The 2020-21 Annual Report is published on the Whitehorse Manningham
Regional Library Corporation website.

Timelines

The Financial Report was approved by the Library Board at its meeting on 25
August 2021 and the Annual Report was adopted by the Library Board at a
special meeting on 21 October 2021.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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INTRODUCTION

Welcome to Whitehorse Manningham

Regional Library Corporation’s
(WMRLC) Annual Report 2020/21.

This report details ocur performance for 2020/21

against the strategic themes outlined in our Library

Plan 2017-2021 and our Annual Budget 2020/21. The
report provides an overview of our key achievements and

challenges throughout the past year

WMRLC services an area of 178km?2 located within

Melbourne's outer eastern suburbs.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

OUR COMMUNITY

The Whitehorse Manningham

Regional Library Corporation (WMRLC)
provides public library services to the
neighbouring cities of Whitehorse and
Manningham in Melbourne's eastern
suburbs.

The City of Whitehorse is located 15km east of the
Melbourne CBD and has an estimated population of
178,739. Manningham City Council, to the north of
Whitehorse, has an estimated population of 127,573,
giving the library region an estimated total population of
306,312

TEG ~f

39.1% of our community was born overseas, with 75% o
these peonle speaking 2 language other than English at
nome.

Whitehorse Manningham Libraries is proud of our diverse

community and the services that we provide

Item 10.2
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Our Vision A library open for all to discover a world of possibilities
Our M ission To provide opportunities that inspire our community to read, learn, connect and create.

Our Values Thefdliow ng principles guide the w

» Respect

We acknowledge our diverse community and support equal access to services by all
» Integrity

We are open, honest and accountable in the way we conduct our business
»  Community Drive

Our s and th

ver them are s

ed by th

our community
» Collaboration

Together w lop positive relationships and partnerships that strengthen our

services and their impact.

»  Excellence

\We aim for excellence and strive to find rk and delive

services,

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS

Read, Learn and Discover
More on pages 28

including h
» Participation in statew
'.l .""

» Home-delivery service kept our community connected throughout the

fictoria Reads project that included 613

attend m, Youtube and Facebook events

extended lockdown period

Connect, Collaborate and Participate

More on pages 34

» Back Program de d in collaboration

vith the City of

ouncil and the Box Hill Institute Job

mmunity throught

for Carers Program
proved extremely
» The Pierre Gorman Award project kicked off with a partnership with
Nad

Experience

More on pages 40

Value
More on pages 45

»  Library branding put on Corporation vehicles to increase visibility within

the community

» Launch of the new library website and staff intranet

J21-2025

M2
&

elp inform the ne

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021
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OUR CHALLENGES

Covid-19

s and frequent

=d in the need to

consideration throughout the year

Infrastructure

A number of our phy

ang with thelMember Councils on a long-term

y to improve library infrastructure ac the two

municipalities

g to branch library

Funding

Ensuring that our librar

esp

ond to the ev

anunu

Lr Community

ained financial en

onment

o advocate to our Member Councils and

libraries

Looking Ahead

Whitehorse Manningham Libraries looks forward to

progressing the following in 2021/22:

»  Implementation of a new four-
WML with the Library Plan 2!

pment of a Whitehorse and Manningham

“road map for

Library Strateg

»  Continuing to enact the W

Plan

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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SNAP
SHOT
FAST

FACTS

\While our doors were closed we
ssued 93,176 items to 12,627 library
members and there were 5,550 home
deliveries to vulnerable members of

our community

TOTAL PROGRAM

ATTENDANCE
LIFELONG
LEARNING

° ®
6,424

Attendanceas at
adult programs

R

11,340

Attendances at children's
and youth Programs

DIGITAL ACCESS ALWAYS OPEN

@)
40,449
T 0 online genealogy sessions logged

online learning courses accessed

9,568
n YouTube views of library program presentations
MAGAZINE

s=| 114,298

newspapers and magazines were downloaded

T4 127,179
e

eBook loans

pieces of music downloaded or streamed

me 3,011
g

online stories for children were viewed
through StoryBox

efudiobook loans

: 21,725

® movies streamed

PROGRAMS AND EVENTS PROVIDED ONLINE

T

2,366

attendances at online
children's and youth
programs

G AMMUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

i

9,406

attendances at online adult online programs and
programs and events events on offer for
adults
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LIBRARY USAGE

A =

428,652 2,020,294
Visits to our Branches

CONNECTED TO OUR COMMUNITY

LN B |
—

1,080,905 3,920 5,500

visits to the Facebook followers people for events responded to events

[ibrary website

o, ) €

4,008,636 234 17,936

catalogue searches direct messages eNews subscribers
queries responded to responded to

OUTSIDE THE LIBRARY WALLS

=k A

530 60

Aged-Care and Retirement Facilities to

individual patrons receive a

) visited on a regular basis Outreach Patrons
delivery on a regular basis

wHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES [l
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YOUTH SERVICES 2020/21

Providing quality programs and material to children and teenagers continues to be of high importance to WML, even

in the pandemic. There were a number of challenges that our Youth Services team had to overcome in order to deliver

services in this area throughout 2020/21, ranging from loc 1s to number restrictions, and the delivery of

rograms
s only. Despite this, programs successfully delivered online, outdoors and erson. All of the
venues only. Despite this, programs were successfully delivered online, outdoors and in person. All of th

ed in an outpouring of thanks from children and their families. It

WviL participated in National Simultaneous Storytime virtually and in person. This year's book was Give me

Space by Philip Bunting. It was great to have our guest storytellers from our Library Board = Chair Cr Trudy Skilbeck
and Deputy Chair Cr Michelle Kleinert. Both got into the spirit of things, dressing up as astronauts. The use of a green

screen for our virtual session truly made it seem as though we were transported into space.

['\lmh od-
Wy {ehufn Qi
new  tooks i AN
cuiesl - §jiuono
livalts Mw.w
of  duaspne
Shadows o M
Spfiedale. you

PBEN ANNUAL REPORT - 202072021
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CHAIRPERSON'S

MESSAGE

In my first year as a Library Board
member and Chairperson, | am
particularly proud of the way
Whitehorse Manningham Libraries
has continued to respond during

the Covid-19 pandemic with agility,
creativity and a strong commitment to
customer service.

support. W

remained open and staff worked tirelessly to support

our community remotely by providing virtual programs

n restrictions allow

back to our library branc

munity who Use our services
and practice:

assurance for all using the library services and facilities

contin

e maintained to pr

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

-hieverments this

‘om library members

Board members

|'m ple d to highlight a numbe

Over 2 million collection items were loaned

loans of eBooks increasing by

=d our library branches and 8,885

s joined the library

Owver 93,000 contactless click and collect and

hame-delivery loar ere provided to 12,627 library

members whilst branche to visitors

auring lockdc

d in collaboration
th

Councils

Aanningha

kills Network, provided 14

and sustainable future

council officers

kilbeck

Chair of the Library Board
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This year's Annual Report highlights
the achievements and challenges
experienced through the financial
year T July 2020 to 30 June 2021. The
Annual Report details the Whitehorse
Manningham Libraries performance
against the goals of the Library Plan
2017-2021.

The past year has continued to present challenges

brought about by the Covid-19 pandemic, including the

commitment to delivering a high level of service to our

community throughout this year

in less than budgeted operating income, along with

unanticipated expenditure associated with responding

to the health er

f branch

rthan usual surplus of

52 3. This surplus will be carried f

ard 1 set
the anticipated deficit in the 2( i

s towards both the

-year strategic plan for

e Manningham Libraries and, in collaboration

with our Member Councils, a longer-term vision for

rvices o the municipalities

rection. | am excited by what the

e and ho >an continue

future holds for our se

Ipport our community and the achievement of our

Member Council goals

Sally Both

Chief Executive Officer

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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BOARD MEMBERS

The Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corpaoration is a Local Government Authority with the operations and
responsibilities of the Corporation being defined under the Local Government Act (1989). The Corporation is governed

by the Library Board, which is responsible for overall governance and policy direction.

Ordinary meetings of the Board are held quarterly. Special meetings of the Board are held as required. Agendas
and minutes of Board meetings are published on the WML website. Members of the Board are required to conduct

themselves in accordance with the Code of Conduct for Board Members

The Library Board currently comprises of:

» two Councillors appointed from each Member Council
3 a delegated Officer of each Member Counci
» one Community Representative appointed by each Member Council

Board Meeting Attendance

Whitehorse

Cr Tina Liu 2 2
Cr Trudy Skilbeck & &
Cr Mark Lane = =
Cr Andrew Munroe 2 1
M simaon Mehillan 1 1
Ms Carole Jean = Community Representative 5 5
Ms Terry Wilkinson — General Manager Human Services 3 2
Mr Tony Johnsaon = Acting Director Community Services 1 1
Cr Dot Haynes 2 2
Cr Sophy Galbally 2 0
Cr Stephen Mayne = S
Cr Michelle Kleinert E E
Mr Andrew Day 1 1
Mr lan Keese — Community Representative 5 =
Ms Lee Robson — Group Manager Community Programs 4 4
»  Ms May Hassan acted as proxy for Ms Terry Wilkinson on »  Senior officers of the Corporation support the operation of

16 December 2020

the Library Board and attend meetings of the Board

»  Ms Terry Wilkinson attended her last Board Meeting on 10
March 2021, following her resignation from her position at

the City of Whitehorse.
Ms Sally Both
Mrs Julie Lawes
Mr Jonathan Gosden
Ms Katie Norton
Ms Tracey Olive
Mr Neville Butler

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Chief Executive Officer, WMRLC

Manager Finance, WMRLC

Manager Library Operations, WMRLC

Manager Collections and Information Services, WMRLC
Manager Corporate Services, WMRLC

Manager [CT, WMRLC
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Cr Trudy Skilbeck

City of Whitehorse

Chair from December

City of Whitehorse

from December 2020

CrTina Liu
City of Whitehorse
until October 2020

Cr Andrew Munroe
City of Whitehorse

Deputy Chair until
October 2020

Ms Carole Jean
City of Whitehorse

Community
Representative

Mr Simon McMillan Mr Ton'Johnson

Acting Director
CEO City of Whitehorse Community Services
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THE YEAR IN REVIEW

When reading this table, it should be noted that the 2019/20 and 2020/21 results were severely impacted by the
coronavirus public health emergency. Libraries were closed to the public for significant periods of time and were
subject to number limits throughout.

Library Membership

100,136 102,606
Active members (LGPRF measure) 43,016 39,788 27625 30.6%
12,786 8885 -30.5%

Total members 93,189 +2 8%

New members 15,657
Library Use
Total library visits 1332790 938,943 428652 - 54.3%

Library visits per capita 447 307 1.38 -457%

Information enquiries 158,764 131,186 49608 -622%
Collections

Total number of collection items 384,885 388,523 399,624 +29%
% of collection purchased in the last five years 77% 74% 72% -2%
New collection items acquired 68,858 63,770 56,258 =-118%
Loans

Total loans 3132829 2490332 2,020,291 -1809%
eBook loans (downloads) 50,539 79,740 127179 +59.5%
Total loans of eResources (includes music, 445,690 513,229 530477 +3.7%
magazines, books, audio books, database)

Library Programs

Total number of attendees 81,581 52,873 17,764 - 66.4%
Total attendees at adult programs 11,404 7703 6,424 - 14.4%
Total attendees at children’s/youth programs 70,177 45170 11,340° -749%
Online Library Use

Annual visits to website 1325860 1250416 1,080905 - 13.5%
Web catalogue searches n/a 3336462 4,008,635 +20.1%
Fixed PC sessions 251,537 183,419 946 - 99%
Wireless sessions 585416 396,697 123369 - 689%
Library Staffing

Total EFT 70.64 68.54 70.31 +2.5%
EFT per ‘000 population 022 0.23 =
Community Engagement

Social media engagement (Facebook followers) 3295 3920 +19%
Library eNewsletter subscribers 2 15804% 17,936 +128%
Number of volunteers 158 153 -3%
Volunteer programs 8 8 8

Based on Estimated Residential Population (ERF) of 301,704 in June 201%; 306,372 in June 2019 anad 309,664 in June 2020
Only includes events/programs where bookings were made. Does not include views of online story times or other streamed events.
Subscriber list cleared of members who had not cpened sent newsletters for three years.

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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FINANCIAL
SUMMARY

Overview

Income Sources 2020/21

» Council Contributions

» State Government Grants

2020/21 Expenses

o

Income Sources 2010/21

2020/21 Expenses

Item 10.2 Attachment 1
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Revenue

The Corporation’s total income of $11,530,769 in
2020/21 was derived from:

er Councils

rnment grant
Interest from investments
Grants
Other income

Other income is generated by the Corporation from

the following sources:

» Cverdue charges and reservations
» Pho

»  Meeting

0Py ¢

nd printing services

om hire

»  Saleof products
» Donations

» Library programs and activities

In 2020/21 the Corporation received the following

grants:

b Premiers Reading Challenge §3
» Blackburn IT Upgrade $25,000
> SLV Health and Wellbeing Grant $20,000

» Other 20

Expenses

In keeping with previo ars, the majo

ypenditure we
In 2020/21 tot.

re employee benefits an

| expenditure was 510,891
comprised as follows

J Emp Expenses

» Depreciation
» T Services

> Collection R
> Other exp

Beyond the Doors
Fundraising

and programs. N
administration costs.
Beyond the Doors Fundraising

Opening balance of the fund

Funds raised

Donations received

nterest 872

Total funds raised $4,968.00

Expenditure (ex GST)
Gift of

Total funds expended  $295.09

Funds remaining

$9,342.51

Highlights and Challenges

Reservation charges ceased from 1 July 2020.

Throughout the ¢ riods, meeting rooms
& Unavailable

ith branch closures

Item 10.2
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GOVERNANCE

The Audit Committee

The Audit Committee is

committee to the Libra

Membership of the Audit Committee

compr

Councillor from each Member Council, homina
brary
The Chief E

Auditor attend each committee meeting

oard, and two external independent members

ecutive Officer, Finance Manager and Interna

Audit Committee Members for 2020/21 were:

r Stephen Mayne (from Decemb
Viark Lane (from December 2

»  CrTina Liu (until Octobe )

ohie Galbally (until Octohe

»  Ms Kerrie Jordan, Independent Member

»  Ms Michele Tame, Independent Member

Risk Management

ganisational risks ar

1the Enterprise Risk Register rporation reports
the status of risks and treatment plans to the Audit

Committee and Library Board

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Public Interest Disclosures

In accordanc

Interest D
procedure
Act The Manager Co
Public Interest Disclosur

rporation has not
ectly nor has it received any

od T July 2020

referrals from the Ombudsman for the pe

to 30 June 2021

Freedom of Information

The F

re
with the

rnment departments and authorities. The

es people the right to request documents relating

to their personal affairs. The

an juests inthe p

Information Privacy Act

The Pri
Rect
nfi

y and Data Protection Act 2014 and Health
otect the :

0071 are des

mation of indi

The Chief Executive O
Whitehorse Manningham Libraries

PO Box 3083, Nunawading, 3131
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A, ¥ M5
{777 7~

Libraries
Whitehorse : Change Lives

Manningha
Libraries

nen for de

Documents Available for Inspection

y information s available fo

1, Box Hill, Vi

hours by appointment from 9.00am to 5.00pm

»  Annual Reports for each financial year » names of Board members who submitted returns of

» Annual Financial Statements, including an operating interest during the financia

year and dates returns
statement, a statement of financial position and were submitted

notes to financial statements » names of

yoration officers who were required to
» agendas and minutes for ordinary and special submit a return of interest during the financial year

»f the Library Board held in the previous = submitted

officers appointed under the

in an official
member o
months.

ation

N was a member during the financia

year and details of all membership fees and other

amounts and sel by

ices provided during that yez

each organisation to the Corporation

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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GOVERNANCE AND
MANAGEMENT CHECKLIST

The Tollowing is a list of the Corporation's governance and management contrals. [t should be noted that the impact of

330 of the Local Government Act 2020 is that those sections of the Local Government Act 1989 that were applicable

to an existing Regional Library Corporation continue to apply as if all of those sections had not been repealed until

A

LUal.

[av]

10

Regional Library Agreement (zagreement under
section 196 of the Act that sets out the agreement
between the Cities of Whitehorse and Manningham to
form a regional library)

Library Plan (plan under sections 125 and 197D
of the Act that sets out the strategic objectives of
the Corporation and strategies for achieving the
objectives for the next four years)

Strategic Resource Plan (plan under section 126
of the Act outlining the financial and non-financial
resources required for at least the next four financial
years)

Annual Budget (plan under section 130 of the Act
setting out the services to be provided and initiatives
to be undertaken over the next 12 months and the
funding and other resources required)

Asset Management Plans (plans that set out the
asset maintenance and renewal needs for key
infrastructure asset classes for at least the next 10
years)

Risk Policy (policy outlining the Corporation’s
commitment and approach to minimising the risks to
the Corporation’s operations)

Fraud Prevention Policy (cutlines the Corporation's
commitment and approach to minimising the risk of

fraud)

Procurement Policy (policy under section 1864

of the Local Government Act 1989 outlining the
matters, practices and procedures that will apply to all
purchases of goods, services and works)

Business Continuity Plan (plan setting out the
actions that will be undertaken to ensure that key
services continue to operate in the event of a disaster)

ICT Disaster Recovery Plan (plan setting out the
actions that will be undertaken to recover and restore
|CT infrastructure and capabhility in the event of a
disaster)

Formed in accordance with section 196 of the Act

Date of operation pending confirmation from LGV of
gazetted date

Agreement reviewed and signed by Member Councils
n February 2017, sent to the Minister and gazetted on
27 July 2017,

Adopted in accordance to section 125 and 197D of

the Act.
Date of operation: 1 July 2017

Adopted in accordance with section 126 of the Act

Adopted in accordance with section 130 of the Act.
Date of adoption: 28 May 2020

Date of operation of current plans
Collection Resources July 2017

Asset Register (for non-collection assets). Updated
and maintained on an angoing basis

Date of operation: 20 February 2019

Date of operation of current policy: 3 April 2020

Prepared and approved in accordance with section
186A of the Local Government Act 1989

Date of operation of current policy: April 2020

Date of operation of current plan: V1.8 March 2020
Business Continuity Management Policy and
Framework reviewed June 2019

Date of operation of current plan: ICT Strategy
12 December 2018

Due for review in July 2021

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021
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11

12

20

21

Risk Management Strategy (outlining the
Corporation's approach to managing risks to
operations)

Audit Committee (advisory whose role is to oversee
the integrity of the Corporation’s financial reporting,
processes, to oversee risks to the Corporation's
operations and compliance with applicable regulatory
reguirements)

Internal Audit (independent accounting professionals
engaged by the Corporation to provide analyses and
recommendations aimed at improving governance,
risk and management controls)

Performance reporting framework (a set of
indicators measuring financial and non-financial
performance indicators)

Financial reporting (quarterly statements to the
Library Board under section 138 of the Act comparing
budgeted revenue and expenditure with actual
revenue and expenditure)

Risk reporting (annual reports of strategic risks
to the Corporation’s operations, the likelihood
and consequences of of risks occurring, and risk-
minimising strategies)

Annual report (prepared in accordance with sections
131 and 196 of the Act cantaining a report of
operations and audited financial statements)

Board Member Code of Conduct (in accordance
with section 76C of the Act setting out the conduct
principles and dispute resolution processes to be
followed by Board Members)

Delegations (2 document setting out the powers,
~

duties and functions of the Corporation delegated to
the Chief Executive Officer)

Meeting procedures (a local law governing the
conduct of Library Board meetings and use of the
common seal)

Register of Interests (in accordance with section 81
of the Act, a register of interests declared by Board
members and nominated officers)

Date of operation of current plan: June 2019, reviewed
June 2021

While not required of Regional Library Corporations
under the Act, the committee was established in
accordance with section 139 of the Act.

Committee established: 1998

Audit Committee Charter adopted by Library Board in
May 2016 and reviewed in December 2019.

RSM appointed as Internal Auditor in April 2016 for a
three-year period

New three-year Internal Audit Plan adopted by Audit
Committee August 2019

LGPRF measures reported to Member Councils in
accordance with section 131 of the Act.

Victorian Public Library Performance Indicators
reported to PLV.

Date of operation of current framework: February
2020

Statements presented to the Library Board in
accordance with section 138(1) of the Act.

Date statements presented

26 August 2020, 16 December 2020, 10 March 2021,
26 May 2021

Risk review completed and reported to the Audit
Committee and Library Board in August 2019.

Considered at a Library Board meeting in accordance
with section 134 of the Act.

Date of consideration: 14 October 2020
Reviewed in accordance with section /6C of the Act.
Date of adoption: 16 December 2020

Reviewed in accordance with Section 197B of the Act

Reviewed: 22 August 2018

Meeting procedures local law made in accordance
with section 197F of the Act.

Date local law made: 6 May 2021, Local Law 3
replaced previous Local Laws 1, governing meeting
procedures.

Register maintained in accordance with section 81 of
the Act

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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Library Board
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Manager
Library Operations

Jonathan Gosden

Branch
Operations
\lolunteers
Customer
Service
Qutreach
Services

Manager
Collections &
Information
Services

Katie Norton
|

Information
Services

Library
Collections
Reader
Development
Technical
Services

LMS

Interlibrary Loans
Library Programs

Attachment 1

\

\

Manager
Corporate Services

Tracey Olive

Human
Resources
Staff
Developrment
OH&S
Organisational
Development
Marketing &
Communications
Employee
Relations
Palicy
Development
Records
Management

Manager
Finance

Julie Lawes

Financial
Services
Payroll
WorkCover
Insurance
Meeting Room
Hire
Administration

.

Manager
ICT

Neville Butler

Wide Area
Network
Business
Systems
Systems
Administration
Help Desk
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Staff Profile

As of 30 June 2021, Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation had a total of 122 employees, or 70.31
full-tirne equivalent (FTE), compared with 117 employees, or 68.54 FTE, at 30 June 2020. There continues to be a very
high percentage of staff who are employed in a part-time capacity. Due to Covid-19, recruitment was suspended for a
number of positicns and these remained vacant at the end of June 2020. Most vacancies were filled by the end of June

2021

WML is currently hosting one trainee who has been employed through the VARP (Victorian Apprenticeship Recovery
Package) Scheme designed to assist young people into the workforce following the impacts of the coronavirus health

emergency. This position i1s not included in our staffing tally and will cease in March 2022

Summary of the number of FTE corporation staff by department, employment type and gender

Permanent FT - female

Permanent FT - male

Permanent PT - female
Permanent PT — male
Casual - female

Casual — male

Total

Note that both technical services staff and administration staff also undertake branch services duties on a regular

basis. A high proportion of the workforce continues to be female and employed in a part-time capacity. The technical

services branch is also the home location of programs and Make

Summary of the number of FTE staff categorised by employment classification and gender

Band not applicable

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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RESILIENCE
TRAINING

INDUCTION MENTAL HEALTH
TRAINING TRAINING

STAFF
TRAINING
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Supporting our

di nmunity

with a range of training

»  Resilience training
»  Firstaid
Online compliance training
nduction training

»  Library Planning Workshops

r ol tal Health training

»  Youth Serv

s — sensory story times

A Safe and Healthy Workplace in a Covid-19 Environment

The Corporation is committed to providing a safe and WL have provided staff with a range of options to help

healthy environment for both staff and library users support them through the

wvid pe hese include
This year

and ou

we remained committed to keeping our st

-

access to flexible leave

arrangements

mmunity safe throughout the pandemic. Wi
achieved this by: »

, » online complia

Plan in line with government regulations

ping, implementing and re

learning programs

) - . »  Covid leave under prescribed circumstances
» delivering library events and programs in virtua

£ § ) »  modified rostering
ormats when required
» recruitment of a multimedia support officer 10 assist
» adhering to number restrictions within locations U ”

staff producing online content throughout closure
when required ’ ;

and restricted periods

mmunity throughc

and within government restrictions

=ry and click and collect

rt to staff through EAP and our

WHITEHORSE MANMNINGHAM LIBRARIES  [BE]
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Vlng Symploms
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OUR PERFORMANCE

al 1 ) a

LUERTLRS G CY G ITe B EL A P\ annual statistics evaluated and benchmarkec
collection resources
relevant to the needs of our

diverse community. LGPREF statistics completed

Community survey released on 12 February and closed
on 5 March 2021

Community survey data analysed and reported to
Library Board.

Report provided to the
Library Board on 10 March

2021

Statistics available on My
Council website

1,813 respondents

Report provided to Library
Board on 26 May 2021.

We will celebrate the power
of reading and literature to
enrich lives.

Participation in the Australia Reads Program

Author events held in person and via online platforms

A

Writing workshops held throughout the
support literacy

Lindy Yeats’” Sanctuary Project was installed at
Warrandyte Library

12 November 2020
25 author talks

6 workshops

1 April-7 May 2021

We will provide access to
information services and
programs that support
life-long learning for all in
the community through
our physical, online and
outreach platforms.

Onsite indoor and outdoor program of events held

throughout the year.

A program of online events was held throughout the
year that supported lifelong learning

d in partnership with
vered an average of 93%

Bounce Back program deli
our Member Councils and de
positive feedbac

QOutdoor programs were held during Movember—
January in compliance with Covid-19 regulations

9,992 in-person attendances

207 online adult programs

14 programs, with 577
attendances

9 programs, with 61
attendances

We will deliver programs
and services that foster the
development of literacy to
help strengthen community
competency.

VIL Literacy
ve the Gift of

Continued implementation of the V
Strategy through the deli

Reading Progra

Implementation of the 2019 Youth Services Review

f Care for Carers Program successfully
to an online format.

1000 Books Before School Program continued
throughout the Covid-19 closure period

ised

o

Interrupted due to Covid-19
restrictions

21 programs delivered

Packs posted

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021
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We will deliver programs Pilot program assisting grandparents to connect with Pilot launched
and services that provide n via online stony ing technology - launched
opportunities to explore in closure period.
:Efu?:St and discover the Heritage programs delivered in partnership with 5 programs delivered
. Whitehorse City Council.
Successful Makerspace Programs and events delivered | 66 adult programs, 1033
online and in person throughout the year attendees
We will have skilled staff Recruitment of a specialist Program Instructor to 1 temporary part-time
available to help people support the Pierre Gorman Award program disability worker appointed
access the resources and e mmline lesrnime Alatfarmm intrad mad for ataff amd
. 5 Litmos online learning platform introduced for staff and gistered users
information they need. volunteer training

Niche Academy training made available to all staff - All frontline staff enrolled
specia

OHS Covid-19 training required throughout the health All staff
gency period, delivered in an online format and in

Pivoted to different service-delivery models and staffing 3 lockdowns and restricted
levels throughout the health emergency of 2020/21. environments

WHITEHORSE MANMNINGHAM LIBRARIES  [ptdel
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thm\mwtdWMMMmhwmm“
gobl pandernic, the lirge panoramic drwings and pégnmage walk of The Sunctuwy Project. offer a
estonitive practics wathn nature, encounsging the viewer 1o re-centre, re-calbrate and remember the places
and moments of sancuary found n an untethered, COVIDword during 202010 re-call the green 50008t we
found: 1o re-consider the pace of our over U ves. Wihere did you tow-down n kockoown!

The image exhibied here s of the Victorun ¢oatine at Aye Creek. Inverioch. This drswing was the one of
muny created by artiet Lindy Yeatos during lockdown 2000, Satrg on & wnal dune, Lindy letenad to the sound
of breaking swrf and gulls callry, aw 3 sl murspial mouse make her home amongst e reeds and watched
an cegam egret. wake siowly up the creek in affectied datan. “Here on the Victoran cosstine durng our
COVID molation, | fourd poice and contentment. Everythoy stopped and | beceme Rilly present 10 ny
samoundings: it was such & A In an untethered workd, | felt grounded., | ieamed that vome things are cterrally

i o e and reemid us that *. 13 100 sl pass’” Lindy Yeates
Connecting Our Community Lindy Yeates' Sanctuary Project
with Authors and Influencers Lindy Yeates’ Sanctuary Project examines how the

government’s Covid-19 restrictions afforded moments of

Our doors may have been closed for much of the 2020/2

pause and self-reflection. For many of us with busy lives,

year but this did not stop us from providing some

Yeates'

those moments of pause are so hard to come t:'."v'

ating that
and Literature s -

of paus Igh discrete art installations that act

1,185 attendees. W

0o

the ev

[15]

s w

1+]

re

lockdoy

1. Highlights included

r scale, immersi

rks and identifying suitable

»  Clementine Ford or the works. Warrandyte Library hosted Linc

author of Emoticnal Female Sanctuary Project from 1 April to 7 May 2021

»  DrYumiko Kadota

» Indoor Gardening with Jason Chong

»  Best-selling author Monica Mclnerney

Veet the Mender author Erin Lewis-Fitzgerald

» Introduc ) screen writing with Christian White

»  Crime-writing author, Robin Bov

n a difficult year we were proud to present 391 programs
to adults, with 6,424

were successfully de

ndees. The vast majority of these

vered online.
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COMMUNITY SURVEY

We asked what the community wanted, and over 1,800 people responded! The results of the survey will be used to help
inform the next four-year library plan . The survey was also an opportunity for the community to provide us feedback on
our services throughout lockdown periods

0
RESPONDENTS 2%

Non-users
rer

AL branch)

WERE MADE UP OF...

inthe

‘Returning in person after the long second lockdown, | literally had tears in my eyes because | had missed it
so very much. There is nothing like losing yourself in a sea of possibilities that is a well-stocked library.”

94%
K E Y of respondents rated of respondents

the library service said that the library
F I N D I N G S as important or very impacts themina

What was important to you? - important posttive way

IMPORTANT THINGS

TO LIBRARY USERS REASONS PEOPLE VISIT

» Items for loan » To borrow books and other »  \Website
»  Helpful staff resources »  Click and Collect
»  Library website and online » Foraplace toread »  Online resources
resources » Fora place to work or study (eBooks, eAudic, eMagazines
» Consistent opening hours » Forchildren's or youth activities and Streaming services)
» Library as a space to do your » Tofind information » Home Delivery
own thing »  Telephone Enquiries

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021
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THE MAJORITY OF RESPONDENTS STRONGLY AGREED OR AGREED THAT THE LIBRARY

Impacts their life in
a positive way

Helps them find the
information they need

Encourages themn to
read more

Increases their Impacted their lives in a
knowledge positive way throughout
the pandemic and
lockdown period

&

35% of respondents took the time to
provide us with additional comments.

000
SR

Thank you to the huge number of
people of people who thanked staff
and council for services provided
throughout the pandemic.

Congratulations to WML for a wonderful
offering of services during lockdown. [ ¢
amazed how adaptable the librar
was as well as the additional cl
have been implemented since lockdown.

anges that

WHAT CAN WE DO BETTER?

0o

Increase our collection of
digital resources

Get our message out that
reservations are now FREE

7

Review other fees and charges

Review our programs and the
fimes they are scheduled

Promote our Suggested
Purchase service

were rated 8.13 out of 10.

‘I read so much more
during covid and the
changes the library made -
such as free reservations,
extending borrowing
periods and especially the
amazing home delivery
of books = made SUCH a
positive difference to me
and my family. We are very
thankful for such a great
local library!”

f?'

82% of respondents used the
Library website or online services over
the last 12 months.

What would you like your library to
look like?

» Clean and up-to-date facilities
» Increased seating

» Increased program spaces

» Increased quiet study areas

» Extended and consistent opening
hours

WHITEHORSE MANMNINGHAM LIBRARIES BSISE
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OUR PERFOR
al t abor:

MANCE

g abore d Part

We will work in partnership
with our Member Councils,
community organisations,
service providers,
commercial sectors and
volunteers to deliver
collaborative services.

Sought sponsorship for branding of library vehicles.

Bounce Back program delivered in partnership with
Member Councils and local services.

Wildlife online event in partnership with

Gardens for

Whitehorse

Delivered outreach programs via the Care for Carers
program in Mandarin [anguage

f Whitehorse 2040 Community Vision — disp
and community consultation opportunities

Unsuccessful

577 attendances
2 programs
14 programs delivered in

Mandarin

nformation displayed

We will explore new ways
for people to connect with
technology, ideas and
others through participatory &N
programs, events and
activities.

Digital technology support offered to the community
throughout the Covid-19 closure period.

1ge of digital instruction material is available via the
YouTube channel on an ongoing basis.

Feedback analysed from community survey in relation
to programs.

ntroduction of simultaneous in-person and online

events

38 programs, 587 attendees

114 subscribers

1,813 responses

January 2021

We will create free and safe
physical and online spaces
and services that facilitate
social connection.

Facilities and services reviewed in line with government
restrictions.

Covid-safe plan developed and update
regular basis in line with government d

regulations

ectives and

Auslan interpretation available at all library events by
request.

Risk assessment completed

Covid-safe plan enacted

June 2021

We will communicate with
our community to help
people discover the value of
the library and what it has
to offer them.

Library cars branded to provide mobile advertising

Meals on Wheels delivery service assisted in the
promotion of library services through the closure
period.

Liaison between the two councils and WML
communications throughout the Covid

period

-19 closure

Box Hill 70th anniversary celebrations significantly
impacted by Covid-19 restrictions.

£ Cars Wra l'f-fJFd

Brochures distributed

Multiple communication
platforms

Not achieved
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We will participate in Participation in the virtual Libraries Change Lives 10 September 2021
statewide and national Parliamentary eve
public library initiatives to
increase awareness and
engagement with library
services. Participation on the 4

WML provided statistics and quotes around the value of
libraries to the Libraries Change Lives Campaign

vocate working group CEQ participated
Contributed to PLV state budget submissions.

Participation in the construction of the state-wide MCS on committee

library statistical survey

Participation in the National Simultaneous Storytime 18 May 2021

event

ams made possible through successful | 21 online programs funded
by grants

WHITEHORSE MANMNINGHAM LIBRARIES BSH]
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Partnering with our Member Councils

Whitehorse Manningham Libra

with the City of Whitehorse by

s proud to partner

articipating in the

following community programs

4
4

Homework Help/Tutoring
Bounce Back — Programs to support you during

ockdown

Meals on Wheels = assistance with publicising home
delivery in closure period

Public Art Trail Walk

Gardens for Wildlife

Gardening for small birds

Seniors Week

Caring for your personal treasures — \Whitehorse
Heritage Week

Antigues Roadshow with Abbey's Auctions -
Whitehorse Heritage Week

Discover your family history online — Whitehorse
Heritage Week

Find my Past Information Session — Heritage Week
Schwerkolt Cottage and Museum Complex Tour

Recycling van located at Box Hill Library

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Whitehorse Manningham Librarie

followi

proud partner

with Manningham City Council, participating in the

) community p

rams

Bounce Back — Programs to support you during
lockdown

NAIDOC

Seniors
Adult storytelling place-making event

Community Care — ass

stance with publicising home
delivery in closure period

Art Smart Stories — Manningham Art Gallery
Reconciliation Week activities
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SOUNCEBACK

PROGRAM OF EVENTS TO SUPPORT OUR COMMUNITY DURING LOCKDOWN

Caovid-19 has had a huge impact on us all, whether it be due to work instability, lack of social interaction with family and

friends or Just a general lack of normality in our everyday lives

To support our communities during this time, we put together a program of live online events in August covering four
key areas: employment, money management, health and wellbeing and financial support from council. This program
was a collaboration between Whitehorse Manningham Libraries, our two Member Councils and the Box Hill Institute

Jobs and Skills Network. There were 14 live online programs offered to support our community throughout Covid-19,
attracting 577 attendances.

Online programs that attracted large audiences included

» What's 4 Dinner?
[he Covid job market
Wellbeing: move through change
Home Eats
Budgets Don't Work
Winning Job Interview Techniques
Crafting the perfect resume and cover letter
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OUR PERFORMANCE

al

Our libra

We will implement a Suspension of overdue charges and loan periods Enacted

[ NI e TR Rl throughout closure periods

model that facilitates

o o . Introduction of free reservation system Enacted

positive service interactions

and user experiences. click and ccllect services provided 5,550 home deliveries
throughout the closure period
Live chat via the website introduced throughout the Enacted
closure period.
Library Board endorsed the removal of overdue cha Budget endorsed 26 May
on junior and teenage material, commencing in the new | 2021

financial year.

Results reported to Board
on 26 May 2021

December 2020

Customer survey delivered in February/March 2021 and
results analysed in April/May

We will provide safe,
welcoming and accessible
physical spaces that

Bulleen Library painted

Commenced and due to be
B

completed in August 2021

Wayfinding signage completed at Box Hill and
Nunawading Libraries. Commmenced at Vermont South
Library.

encourage use by all in the
community.

Multilingual signage installed at Box Hill Library Completed

40

We will work towards
creating inspiring and

flexible spaces that adapt

to the changing needs
and expectations of the
community.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

New furniture ordered and installed throughout the
region

Long-term library strategy project commenced -
endorsed by the Library Board and funded by the
Member Councils. Final Repart due in the first quarter

of 2021/22

Book recycling program established with book supplier,
Julian Wood

Plant-based ink used in our printed What's On Guide.

June 2021

Commenced December
2021

February 2021
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We will ensure the Website redeveloped and launched to the public November 2020
library’s digital spaces are
accessible and easy to
navigate.

ntroduction of the WML YouTube channel to deliver Ove
Makerspace and digital training 5

Lite-touch FE kiosks introduced in response to Covid ntroduced October 2020
guidance

AERIIRT TS Eattia el [[W =3 Branch hours modified to accommodate regulations June - Dec 2020
and services that are and guidelines

responsive to community i
expectation and reduce Extended opening hours temporarily offered to enable January 2021

greater access to the library

barriers to access.

Home delivery: transition from a Irer sery

a volunteer model once regulations allowed.

2 DACK 10

We will maintain a Hybrid work arrangements were supported by WML. 2020/21

technology infrastructure
that ensures reliable

Upgrade of the IP telephone system software, March 2021

connectivity, security and
capacity for growth. Completion of Windows 10 SOE on all workstations. December 2020

Blackburn net
grant from W

vork upgrade comple
itehorse Council.

ted, enabled by a November 2020

Decommissioned redundant radio links and obsolete December 2020
satellite equipment and masts removed

We will provide rewarding Re-introduction of some volunteer programs in an July 2020
volunteer experiences that  [Kelgllial=Risltag=1¥
enhanf:e a"d_ SHENEE Recruitment for volunteer roles recommenced January 2021
library’s service offering.

Celebration of our volunteers event transitioned to an 31 attendees

online format due to Covid-19 restrictions
Production of a volunteer appreciation video shared on & volunteers highlighted
social media.

volunt 81 volunt

nduction program developed for returning
using the Litmaos platform

ors registered

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES
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Our Volunteers — Thank You!!
t

all ou

great enthusiasm that v Here's a couple of highlighted quotes from our

fabulous volunteers:

unteers thro

2021. The majority ¢

paused throughout the C

government restrictions meaning they were unable to

function. There w

5 one excep

tion though, that led to

ne interesting outco

you just meet such beautiful people”

am Ciunm —
fvan Giynn —

Zoom twice a week, with Tuesdays and Fridays becoming

a highlight of the locked-down pandemic week for many

= Volunteer for 15

a big time commitrment on my part. But | just
diffe k

hurt me to give up two hours every three weeks to

ere all set to ce

brate with our

think it doesn't

volunteers in per.

on at a morning tea, but unfortunately,

once again C

vid-19 interfered with those plans and we )
had to transition to an online event. It was fabulous to see e

that over 30 people joined us via Zoom to hear the Chair Some fast facts about our volunteers:

d, Cr Trudy Skilbeck and the Deputy

of the Library B

C r Michelle Kleinert sincerely thank all for the

vould not have been
tance and dedication of our

volunt

»  Home Libran g materials to
individual clients, retirement villac
facilitie

wersation Circles = prov

s and ag

Y

w

ling an opportunity to
those learning English to practise their skillsina
friendly group session

»  Conversation Buddy Program — providing one-on-one

toplcs
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OUR
| 4:

We will maintain sound
governance practices and
ensure compliance with
legislative and regulatory
requirements.

We will manage risk
effectively.

We will ensure effective
business processes and
practices are implemented.

We will utilise technology to
streamline operations and
enhance functionality.

PERFORMANCE

Changes to Local Government Act and impact on

2019/20 financial statements presented to the Library
Board.

mplementation of the Election Period Policy

ndependent members of Audit Committee
appointment extended by the Library Board.

Annual Report 2020 endorse

by the Library Board.

Board report 26 August

2020.

Adopted 26 August 2020

eptemnber 2(

2 independent auditors

October 2020

Risk status report presented to the Board and Audit
Committee

with contro

Covid-19 risk register

Measures

oped, alor

Cavid-safe plan developed and reviewed on a regular
basis

Covid-recovery group established
Appointment of a temporary Covid-recovery coordinator
mplementation of the Covid-recovery plan

Review of pandemic response through surveys

Reported August 2020

Ongoing

Ongoing

July 202

July 2020 - January 202
July 2020
2 staff surveys

1 community survey

nternal audit of OHS and WorkCover practices
completed
nternal audit of IT Disaster Recaovery Practices
completed

ntranet updated to a SharePoint platform

June 2021

June 2021

Launched 31 March 2021

Remote access to systems enabled for all staff via VPN
platform

r and development of a new four-year ICT

and action plan commenced

Exploration of opportunities to enhance service delivery
in collaboration with other public library services and
our LMS vendor

July 2020

June 2021

Ongoing
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We will maintain strong
corporate-performance
reporting practices.

We will implement robust
data collection, analysis
and evaluation methods
to measure outcomes and

impacts.

We will Inform and educate
stakeholders on the

value of the library in the
community.

We will be a leader in our
industry by encouraging
staff engagement with
innovation and emerging
trends.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Completion of PLV Statistics and comparative report

presented to the Library Board

2019/20 Annual Report adopted by the Library Board

and submitted to Local Government Victoria.

All LGPRF data submitted to Member Councils

Grant committal reports completed

16 December 2020

Adopted 14 October 2020

June 2021

Feedback on programs provided on a regular basis.

vey completed in March 2027 and
orted to the Library Boare

Board noted 26 May

2,188 feedback forms
recelved

state

VML provided statistics and qualitative data to the
de advocacy campaign promoting the value of

libraries throughout the pandemic.

Library Plan staff workshops held to assist in the
development of the new Library Plan

Successful Give the Gift of Reading Campaign in 2(

Successful PLV submission

for additional funding

4 workshops

0 raised for the 2021

Student placements were suspended throughout

2020/21

Staff participation in sta
forums

ide working groups and

Ongoing
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Grants

Grants give WML an opportunity

to provide services that would not
normally be possible within our current
resourcing. This year we were able to
run two amazing programs as a result
of successful grant submissions. The
pandemic created some challenges for
the delivery of the programs but these
were overcome and, in some instances,
even enhanced their value.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Supporting Carers Locally Grant

In December 2019 we were informed that cur grant
application to provide a 10-month program to support
the health and well-being of local Chinese speaking
carers was successful. The program was launched in
March 2020 but had to pause for a period of time due to
Covid-19 restrictions.

In September 2020 the program kicked off again but
n an online format. This did not prove to be a barrier,
with over 340 attendees at 23 events. Transitioning to

online delivery removed a significant barrier for the target

audience (local Chinese-language speaking carers).
Carers who may not have been able to attend inperson
programs due to their caring responsibilities were able to
participate with ease

Qutcomes

Many participants took time to express appreciation for

the sessions and indic

ated that they were encouraged to

attend future library programs and e

Surveys were held at the end of each session:

» 100% of r dents felt they had the opportunity to

take time jage In a recreational activity

98% of respondents felt the s

sion they attended

gave them the opportunity to learn information/skills

to help them live a healthy life
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& COLLECT

AT N AVRA AN LS B3 S aBsssCinE TR

PICK UP

CLICK & COLLECT ITEMS HERE

Please provide your own bag

N

waw wnl viC gov au
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FINANCIAL REPORT

Auditor-General’s Report........
Certification of the Financial Statements ...

Financial Statements

Comprehensive Income Statement

Balance Sheet

Statement of Changes in Equity ...

Statement of Cash Flows

Statement of Capital Works ...

Qverview

Notes to the Financial Statements
Note 1 Performance against budget.

1.1 Income and expenditure.

1.2 Capital works

Note 2 Funding for the delivery of our services ...

2.1 Council contributions......

2.2 Other grants........

2.3 Other income ...

Note 3 The cost of delivering service
3.1 Employee costs....

3.2 Depreciation...........

3.3 Disposal of assets

3.4 Audit and Finance Costs

3.5 Other expenses ...

Note 4 Cur financial position ...
4.1 Financial assets ....

4.2 Non-financial assets........

4.3 Payables ..

4.4 Provisions

4.5 Financing arrangements

[#]]

Note 5 ASSEtS We Manage ..o ]

5.1 Summary of property and equipment

Note 6 Fecple and relationships ... ... 76

6.1 Board and key management remuneration

6.2 Related party disclosure....... ...

Note 7 Managing uncertainties

7.1. Contingent assets and liabilities .....................7

/2. Financial instruments

7.3. Fairvalue measurement. ..o

/.4, Events occurring after balance date
Note 8 Other matters........

8.1 Reconciliation of cash flows from

operating activities to surplus/(deficit) ... 83
8.2 Superannuation ..., B3
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Independent Auditor’s Report

VAGO

Victorian Auditor-General's Office

To the Board members of Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation

Opinion

Basis for
Opinion

Board
members’
responsibilities
for the
financial

report

| have audited the financial report of Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation

(the corporation) which comprises the:

. balance sheet as at 30 June 2021

. comprehensive income statement for the year then ended

. statement of changes in equity for the year then ended

. statement of cash flows for the year then ended

. statement of capital works for the year then ended

. notes to the financial statements, including significant accounting policies
. certification of the financial statements.

In my opinion the financial report presents fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the corporation as at 30 June 2021 and their financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended in accordance with the financial reporting requirements of
the Local Government Act 1989 and applicable Australian Accounting Standards.

| have conducted my audit in accordance with the Audit Act 1994 which incorporates the
Australian Auditing Standards. | further describe my responsibilities under that Act and
those standards in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Report section

of my report.

My independence is established by the Constitution Act 1975. My staff and | are
independent of the corparation in accordance with the ethical requirements of the
Accounting Professional and Ethical Standards Board's APES 110 Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (the Code) that are relevant to my audit of the financial report in
Victoria. My staff and | have also fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code.

| believe that the audit evidence | have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

basis for my opinion.

The Board members of the corporation are responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of the financial report in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
the Local Government Act 1989, and for such internal control as the Board members
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and fair presentation of a financial report

that is free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial report, the Board members are responsible for assessing the
corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless it is
inappropriate to do so.

Level 31 / 35 Collins Street, Melbourne Vie 3000
T 03 8601 7000 enquiries@audil.vic.gov.ou www.audit.vic.gov.au
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Auditor’s
responsibilities
for the audit
of the financial

As required by the Audit Act 1994, my responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial
report based on the audit. My objectives for the audit are to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial report as a whole is free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable

report assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this financial report.

As part of an audit in accordance with the Australian Auditing Standards, | exercise

professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. | also:

. identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial report, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the corporation’s internal control

. evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board members

. conclude on the appropriateness of the Board members’ use of the going concern
basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the corporation’s ability to continue as a going concern. If | conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, | am required to draw attention in my auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the financial report or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify my opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of my auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
corporation to cease to continue as a going concern.

. evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial report,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial report represents the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

| communicate with the Board members regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant

deficiencies in internal control that | identify during my audit.
¢
MELBOURNE Sanchu Chummar
10 September 2021 as delegate for the Auditor-General of Victoria
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CERTIFICATION OF THE FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

Ty opinion, the accompanying financial statements

have been prepared in accordance with the Local

Government Act 1989, the Local Government (Finance

and Reporting) Reguiations 2074, Australian Accounting

pro

Standards and other mandator fessional reporting

requirements

Sl hum>>

Principal Accounting Officer

Julie Lawes

August 2021

SN AMMUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

In our opinion, the accompanying financial state

fairly the financial transactions of

presents

Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation for

rear ended 30 June 2021 and the financial position of

they
the Corporation as at that date

As at the date of signing, we are not aware of any
circumstances which would render a

y particulars in the

financial statements to be misleading or inaccurate.

We have been authorised by the Library Board and by the

Local Government (Planning and Reporting) Regulations

2014 to certify the financial statements in their final form.

SAL M~

Councillor
Cr Stephen Mayne

Date: 25 August 2021

Yz

Councillor
Cr Mark Lane

Date: 25 August 2021

Chief Executive Officer
Sally Both

Date: 25 August 2021
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COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME STATEMENT

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

2021

Council Contributions 21 9,425,564 8,103,701
State Government Grants 1,822,685 1,778,230
Other Income 23 62,083 254051
Other Grants 22 205,249 222986
nterest from Investments 10815 50813
Total Income 11,526,396 11,409,781
Employee Costs 31 7,068,906 7173351
Depreciation 2 1,156,569 1223012
nformation Technology 340,807 391,503
Audit and Finance Costs 34 32315 44095
Collection Resources 250,234 262,090
Grant Expenditure 206973 101875
Warrandyte Library Expenses 236,719 229483
Other Expenses 35 1,192,034 1,037874
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment 33 405,755 443502
Total Expenses 10,891,212 10,906,985
Surplus for the year 635,184 502,796
Total Comprehensive Result 635,184 502,796

The above comprehensive income statement should be read with the accompanying notes
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BALANCE SHEET

As at 30 June 2021

ASSETS

Current Assets

Cash and cash equivalents 41 2872587
Trade Recelvables 47912
Other assets 4.2 116,641 86,043
Total Current Assets 2056643 3007442
Non-Current Assets

Property and Equipment 9.1 7,882,010 7,310,730
Total Non-Current Assets 7,682,010 7,310,730
Total Assets 10,838,653 10,318,172

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities

Payables 4.3 693,116

Provisions 4.4 1,577,868

Total Current Liabilities 2,270,984

Non-Current liabilities

Provisions 4.4 187,501 180,852
Total Non-Current Liabilities 187,501 180,852
Total Liabilities 2,458,485 2,573,189
Net Assets 8,380,168 7,744,984
Equity

Members Contribution on Formation 3,922,043 3,922,043
Accumulated Surplus 4458125 3,822,941
Total Equity 8,380,168 7,744,984

The above balance sheet should be read with the accompanying notes

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Iltem 10.2 Attachment 1 Page 153



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

Balance at beginning of the financial year 7744984 3822947
Surplus for the year 635,184 635,184
Balance at end of the financial year 8,380,168 4458125

Accumlated
Surplus

2021

$ $

Balance at beginning of the financial year 7242188 3,320,145

Surplus for the year 502,796 502,796

Balance at end of the financial year 7744984 3822941
The above statement of changes in equity should be read with the accompanying notes
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_n 2021

STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Council Contributions 10,368,120 10,014,071
Government Grants 1554515 1,778,230
|nterest Income 15247 77812
Library Fines, FONL income, Grants (gst free) 32,098 255235
Other Income 117,837 244,803
Employee Costs (7,015,651) (7,

Payments to suppliers (inclusive of GST) (2,847 ,509) (2,013,450)
Net GST payments (568,564) (554,420)
Net cash provided by in operating activities 8.1 2,055,693 2,665,844

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

14,000
31.494)

(2,117,494)

548,350

2324237

Proceeds from sale of Equipment 27,000
Payment for Library Stock, Information Technology & Furniture (2,160,601)
Net cash investing activities (2,133,601)
Net increase in cash and cash eguivalents (77,811
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 2872588
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 41 2,794,677

2,872,587

Financing arrangements 4.5

The above cash flow statement should be read with the accompanying notes
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STATEMENT OF
CAPITAL WORKS

For the Year Ended 30 June 2021

I e
s s |

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Library Stock 1,789,523 1,722,400
Furniture and Equipment 106,574 67388
T Replacement 226,859 283231
Motor Vehicles Replacement 37,645 58474
Total Capital Works Expenditure 2,160,601 2,131,493
REPRESENTED BY
Renewal 2,160,601 2131493
Total Capital Works Expenditure 2,160,601 2,131,493

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES

a9

Item 10.2

Attachment 1

Page 156



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

Iltem 10.2 Attachment 1 Page 157



COUNCIL AGENDA

23 NOVEMBER 2021

OVERVIEW

Introduction

The Whitehorse Manningham Regional
Library Corporation was established
under Section 196 of the Local
Government Act 1989 by the Minister
of Local Government on 12 December
1995. The Corporation's headquarters
is located at 1040 Whitehorse Road,
Box Hill.

These financial statements constitute a general purpose
financial report that consists of a Comprehensive
Income Statement, Balance Sheet, Statement of Changes
in Equity, Statement of Cash Flows, Statement of

Capital Works and notes accompanying these financial
statements. The general purpose financial report
complies with Australian Accounting Standards (AAS),
other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board, the Local Government

Act 1989, and the Local Government (Planning and
Reporting) Regulations 20714.

Significant Accounting Policies
a. Basis of Accounting

The accrual basis of accounting has been used in the
preparation of these financial statements, whereby
assets, liabilities, equity, revenue and expenses are
recognised in the reporting period to which they

relate, regardless of when cash Is received or paid

Judgements, estimates and assumptions are
required to be made about the carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. The estimates and associated
Judgements are based on professional judgement
derived from historical experience and various other
factors that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Actual results may differ from these
estimates.

Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised
n the period in which the estimate is revised and
also in future periods that are affected by the
revision. Judgements and assumptions made by
management in the application of AAS's that have
significant effects on the financial statements and
estimates relate to:

»  the determination of depreciation for library
collections, computer equipment and furniture
(refer to note 5.1) and

» the determination of employee provisions (refer to

note 4.4)

Unless otherwise stated, all accounting policies

are consistent with those applied in the prior year,
Where appropriate, comparative figures have been
amended to accord with current presentation, and
disclosure has been made of any material changes to

comparatives
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Impact of Covid-19

On 16 March 2020 a state of emergency was
declared in Victoria due to the global pandemic
COVID-19 virus, known as coronavirus. A state of
disaster was subsequently declared on 2 August
2020. While the impacts of the pandemic have
abated somewhat through the 2020-21 year, the
Corporation has noted the following significant

impacts on its financial operations

Revenue reductions — operating income from user

fees and charges and interest was significantly
reduced, being 75% below the budgeted

amount. Member Council and State Government
contributions received in ful

£

Revenue foregone - averdue charges were

suspended for the majority of 2020/21 due to
periods of closure and restricted operating in

accordance with government orders. Hire of

meeting rooms was similarly impacted. The averall

oss of income was 5187k compared to the
budgeted amount.

Additional costs — additional costs were incurred
to support adjusted services to the community
and COVID safe compliance requirements

Costs included courier for contactless home
deliveries, security guards to manage restricted

entrance numbers, supply of PPE, extra cleaning,

additional employee support services, additional

programming ana 'T]é}[k(?[lr'-;] costs and increased

electronic collection and information resources.
The additional costs for 20/21 which were not

budgetted for was $339K.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Areas of reduced costs include utilities and employee

costs associated with library closures {i e reduced

weekend penalty costs, suspension of recruitment to
vacancies, employees accessing leave without pay or

reduced hours of work)

This has impacted, and continues to impact the
normal operations of the library services. The full

financial impact of COVID-19 is unknown. The

situation and the financial implications for the library

are being closely monitored and managed.
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NOTE 1

Performance against budget

The budget comparison notes compare the Corporation's  The budget figures detailed below are those adopted

financial plan, expressed through its annual budget, with by the Corporation on 28 May 2020. The Budget was
actual performance. The Local Government (Planning based cn assumptions that were relevant at the time of
and Reporting) Regulations 2074 requires explanation of adoption of the Budget. The Corporation sets guidelines
any material variances. The Corporation has adopted a and parameters for revenue and expense targets in this
materiality threshold of 10% where further explanation budget in order to meet the Corporation's planning and

is warranted. Explanations have not been provided financial perfarmance targets for both the short and long-
for variations below the material threshold unless the term.

variance is considered to be material because of its These notes are prepared to meet the requirements of

nature ) )
: the Local Government Act 1989 and the Local Government

(Planning and Reporting) Regulations 2014.

1.7 Income and Expenditure

BUDGET ACTUAL | VARIANCE | VARIANCE
2021 2021 2021 2021
S $ $ %

Council Contributions 0142268 9,425,564 283,296 3%
State Government Grant 1,810,238 1,822,685 12,447 1%
Other Income 253,782 66,456 (187326) 4%
Other Grants 131,175 205249 74074 56% 2
Interest from Investments 44000 10815 (33,185) -75% 3
11,381,463 11,530,760 149,306
EXPENDITURE
Employee costs 7642035 7,068,906 573129 7%
Depreciation 1,106,223 1,156,569 (50,346) -5%
Information Technology 377,200 340,807 36,393 10% 4
Audit and Finance Costs 32,000 32315 (315) 1%
Collection Resources 227,361 250,234 (22.873) 10% 5
Other Expenses 939,640 1,192,534 (253,294) 27% 5]
Grant Expenditure 131175 206973 (75,798) -58% 7
Warrandyte Library Expenses - 236,719 (236,719) 100% 8
l\e‘..loss on disposal of property and 590,120 405755 184365 319 9
equipment
11,045,754 10,891,212 154,542
Surplus for the year 335,709 639,557 (5236)
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(i) Explanation of material variations

Other Income

Rs--“ruafr“mt, ser fees and charges continued to decline. This iIs an industry
wide trend. Due to COVID 19 the library was closed for a number of v S.
During tr and meeting

ed from lib va atron

roomu =] E]:]|.".'|I(.‘(I

for a long

1a number of sr
A S'/‘E:-.(]I'_J[I' grant

for Library Initia

2 Other Grants s project an
library. A Heath and Wellbeing Gran t Was r
$20,000
Interest on Investments includes the interest earned o
and at call accounts and also interest earned on the
3 Interest The interest on LSL is not included in the but \get IC_]L\

trate amount was a lot |

Information

Included in the end of y s fromthe IT capital

rfigure is non capitalised a

4 o budget. Operational savings have been realised following the completion of
Technology
- the network upgrade
Included in this is all itemns that are not capitalised including Electronic
5 Collections Resouces. Additional monies were put into this collection during the
pandemic to increase the ebook collection
Expenditure in Programs and Marketing was higher than anticipated due to
dl" ncrease in the nu Tjt—ru I\t rary programs delivered across the region.
Varrandyte Library is not refle asitis an additional service
5] p 2d by the Corporation at the ningharn y
However the income is reflected as part of Council Contributions. 339K was
expended unexpectedly in relation to COVID 19. Insurance Costs were much
higher than budgeted for due to increases in all insured items.
2 Grants Expenditure :'B'am.s e:r:..pm:.it..l_re was higher than budgeted as the funding that carried over
from 2019,/2020 has been fully expended
. Income and expenditure for Warrandyte Library is not included in the Budget
N Warrandyte Lib R - X E ) - .
8 : preparation as City of Manningham fund this branch outside of the Regiona

Expenses

Library Agreement

Loss on disposal
9 of property and
equipment

The disposal of library stock figures for the budget are an estimate only.
Minor amounts of discarded items are written off on disposal.

64
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1.2 Capital Works

BUDGET ACTUAL | VARIANCE
2021 2021 2021
$ $ $
INCOME
Library Stock 1,732,412 1,789,523 5711 3%
Furniture & Equipment 64635 106,574 41935 65%
Information Technology 210,000 226,850 16,859 8%
Moter Vehicles Replacement 25,000 37,645 12,645 ry p
Total Capital Works Expenditure 2,032,051 2,160,601 28,550
REPRESENTED BY:
Renewa 2,032,051 2,160,601 128,550 6%
Total Capital Works Expenditure 2,032,051 2,160,601 128,550

(i) Explanation of material variations

Furniture and

Equipment

Funds were carried over from 18/20 year for furniture and equipment. The

actual also includes assets that were purchased with the Whitehorse grant

money.

Motor Vehicles

[

Replacement

The budget allows for the changeover costs of vehicles while the actual cost
for 20/27 year was the full vehicle cost
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Item 10.2 Attachment 1

Page 162



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

Iltem 10.2 Attachment 1 Page 163




COUNCIL AGENDA

23 NOVEMBER 2021

NOTE 2

Funding for the delivery of our services

2.1 Council Contributions

Whitehorse City Council
Manningham City Counci

Manningham City Council - Warrandyte

2.2 Other Grants

Local Priorities Grant

Libraries Initiatives Project
Premiers Reading Challenge
Whitehorse Furniture

Pierre Gorman Award
Blackburn IT Uprade

SLY Health and Wellbeing Grant

Other

Council Contributions and Grants are recognised as revenue when
the Corporation obtains control over the funds

2.3 Other Income

Overdue Charges
FPhotocopying Services
Other Service Charges

Sale of Products

Library Programs & Activities
Fundraising

Sundry Income

2]

$ $
5493112 5,307,497
3,649,156 3,525,665
283,296 270,539
8,425 564 9,103701

$ $
85930 93,591
25,000 25,000
35,899 35899
0 20,000

0 25000
25,000 0
20,000 0
3420 23496
205249 2272986

S $
12,370 80439
18152 39633
19,485 78,688

3,913 8,140
2,808 5844
5355 5,758

0 35549

62,083 254051

Revenue for overdue fines and other charges, interest on investments, sale of assets and other income is recognised

at the time of receipt.
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NOTE 3

The cost of delivering services

3.1 Employee Costs

Wages and Salaries
Annual Leave
WorkCover
Superannuation

Staff Training Expenses

Long Service Leav

b.  Superannuation

The Corporation made contributions to the following funds
Defined Benefit Fund

Employer contributions to Local Authorities

Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)

Employer contributions payable at reporting date
Accumulation funds

Employer contributions to Local Authorities

Superannuation Fund (Vision Super)

Employer contributions - other funds

Employer contributions payable at reporting date

$ S
6,192,712 6,307,047
26,84 54,742
25335 30,733
584,612 588,178
53,255 37,084
186,151 55,560
7,068,906 7173351

S $
84,146 87,768
0 0
370,067 380,442
130,399 118,966
500,466 500407
0 0

Refer to 8.2 for further information relating to the Corporation’s superannuation obligations.
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3.2 Depreciation

Library Stock
Furniture and Equipment

Computer Equipment

Motor Vehicles

1156,560 1223012

Refer to note 5.1 for a more detailed breakdown of depreciation and accounting policy.

3.3 Disposal of Assets om0

S $
Library Stock
Proceeds from sale of Library Stock 0 0
Written down value of assets written off (410,067) (442,854)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets (410,067) (442,854)
Furniture and Equipment
Proceeds from sale of furniture and equipment 0 0
Written down value of assets disposed (4,320) 0
Gain/({Loss) on disposal of assets (4,320) 0
Motor Vehicles
Proceeds from sale of mator vehicles 27,000 14,000
Written down value of assets sold (18,368) (14,648)
Gain/(Loss) on disposal of assets 8632 (648)
Total loss on Disposal of Assets (405,755) (443,502)
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3.4 Audit and Finance Costs

Audit fee payable to Victorian Auditor General

nternal audit feas - RSM

Other finance costs

3.5 Other Expenses

Cleaning, Security
Utility Costs
Headquarters Costs
Couriers

Professional Services
nsurance

Office Expenses
Programs and Marketing Costs
Vehicle Maintenance
Fundraising Expenditure
Cowid-19 Crisis costs

Staff Amenities

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

$ S
10,500 10,300
17230 26,270

4,585 7525
32,315 44,095

2021 o020

$ $
202,098 199,925
229,362 226,021
106,292 65121
58,060 48,078
36,678 49,549
70,577 54,860
29,949 50,193
88,346 134,639
18,633 16,366
295 4958
339,317 165,389
13,326 22,874
192,934 1037874
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NOTE 4

Our financial position

4.1 Financial Assets mm

$ $
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash on Hand 1,500 1,200
Cash at Bank 109,544 47 411
Money Market call account 729,106 76,190
Term Deposits 643,635 1,443459
Money Market - restricted LSL 1,310,850 1,304,028
Total financial assets 2,794675 2,872,587

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, deposits at call, and
other highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

4.2 Non-financial assets I

$ $

Other assets
Prepayments 115,556 81427
Accrued Income 1,085 5516
Total other assets 116,641 86943
$ $
Creditors 342,350 672111
Accrued Expenses 350,767 273641
693,116 045,752
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4.4 Provisions I ™

$ $
Annual Leave
Balance at beginning of the financial year 520,582 466,241
Additional Provisions 518,131 546,437
Amounts Used (491,290) (491,698)
Balance at end of the financial year 547 824 520982
Long Service Leave
Balance at beginning of the financial year 1,106,454 1,144,854
Additional Provisions 727107

A

Amounts Used (210,547)

1,106,454

Balance at end of the financial year

(a) Employee provisions

Current provisions expected to be wholly settled within 12 months

Annual Leave 418,852 436,546
Long Service Leave 32,252 17,203
451,104 45374

Current provisions expected to be settled after 12 months

Annual Leave 128,972 84,436
Long Service Leave 997 792 908,299

126,764 992, 73t
Total current employee provisions 1,577.868 1,446,484

Non current provisions

Long Service Leave 187,501 180,052
Total non current provisions 187,501 180,952

Total Provisions
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The calculation of employee costs and benafits includes 4.5 Financing arrangements
all relevant on-costs and are calculated as follows at . . )

The Corporation has the following funding arrangements
reporting date : R .

in place as at the end of the year

Wages and salaries and annual leave

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non m
monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulated sick

leave expected to be wholly settled within 12 months S S
of the reporting date are recognised in the provision for Bank overdraft 20,000 20,000
employee benefits in respect of employee services up Credit card facilities 13.000 13,000
to the reporting date, classified as current liabilities and Total facilities 33,000 33,000
measurad at thelr nominal values.
Liabilities that are not expected to be wholly settled Used facilities 4133 5142
within 12 months of the reporting date are recognised ) a

. _ . Unused facilities 28,867 27858
In the provision for employee benefits as current

33,000 33,000

liabilities, measured at the present value of the amounts

expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled using
the remuneration rate expected to apply at the time of
settlement.

Lang service leave

Liability for long service leave (LSL) is recognised in the
provision for employee benefits. LSL is measured at
present value. Unconditional LSL is disclosed as a current
liability. Conditional LSL that has been accrued, where an
employee is yet to reach a qualifying term of employment,

s disclosed as a non - current liability

Key assumptions: 2021 2020

» discountrate 1.49% 0.87%

» weighted average increasein  9gs5s,  495%
employee costs

»  settlement 7yrs Tyrs

WHITEHORSE MANNINGHAM LIBRARIES  [EE]
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NOTE 5

Assets we manage

5.1 Summary of property and equipment

13,965,017 (7932,733) 6,032,284 1,789,523 (795,959) (410067) 6,615,781
Furniture & I ) . - .
1,880,085 106,574 (8g 93,700
Equipment
Computer _ B : : :
4625093 (4,020,662) 605,332 226,859 (249 734) (1,348) 581,109

Equipment

TOTAL
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a.

Recognition and measurement

of assets

The Corporation has adopted the purchase method
ounting in relation to the measurement of

sition plus any incidental cost attributable to

the acquisition. In accordance with the Corporation's

1limits below have been applied

e asset

within an applicz

me as applied in 2019/2020)

Nil Limit

Nil Limit

Electronic Resources Nil Limit

51,000

Computer Hardware

51,000

Nil Limit

$1,000

Furniture and Equipment

Depreciation of non current assets

Library
equipment, including ¢

(, Mot

values are re sed annually. Depreciation
s recognised on either the straight-line basis or

dirminishing value basis using rates that are, unless

jted, consistent with the prior year

atherwi

Straight Line

Straight Line

Electronic

Re Straight Line

urces

Computer q Ve

Equipment Straight Line

Computer
Hardware

Straight Line

Diminishing

Diminishing

t ) component
of an asset andthe ¢

xceeds the capitalisation

threshold the cost is capitalised and depreciated

The carrying value of the replaced asset is expensed
Land and Buildings

ouncil

The library branches are operated

owned or leased properties. The libraries at Box

Hill, Nunawading, Vermont South and kburn

are operated from Whitehorse Council controlled,

owned and maintained bulldings. The libraries at

in d Bulleen are

Joncaster, The P

vned or leased

perated from buildin
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NOTE 6

People and Relationships

6.1 Board and Key Management Remuneration

a.

Names of persons holding the position of a Responsible Person at the Whitehorse Manningham
Regional Library Corporation for the period 1 July 2020 to 30 June 2021

Key Management Personnel

Councillors
Cr Tina Liu

City Of Whitehorse (to December 2020)

Cr Andrew Munroe

City of Whitehorse (to December 2020)

Cr Dot Haynes
City of Manningham (to December 2020)

Cr Sophy Galbally

City of Manningham (to December 2020)
Cr Trudy Skilbeck
City of Whitehorse (from December 2020)
Cr Mark Lane
City of Whitehorse (from December 2020)
Cr Michelle Kleinert

-

City of Manningham (from December 2020)

Cr Stephen Mayne

City of Manningham (from December 2020)

R AMMNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

Council Representatives

Ms Terry Wilkinson
City of Whitehorse (to April 2021)

Mr Tony Johnson

City of Whitehorse (from April 2021)
Ms Lee Robson

City of Manningham

Community Representatives

Ms Carole Jean

City of Whitehorse

Mrlan Keese
City of Manningham

Chief Executive Officer

Ms Sally Both

W

Corporation

tehorse Manningham Regional Library
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b. Remuneration of Key Management Personnel

Board Members who are Councillors and Officers nominated by the Member Councils do not receive remuneration
from Whitehorse Manningham Regional Library Corporation.

$ $

Total remuneration of key management personnel was as follows:
Short term benefit 188,546 185378
Post-Employment Benefits 16,876 16412
Other long-term benefits 4457 4378
209,879 206,168

Total remuneration of key management personnel persons were within the following band:

Mo MNo
$200,000 - §209959 1
1
d. Senior Officers Remuneration
A Senior Officer is an officer, other than Key Management Personnel, who:
a) has management responsibilities and reports directly to the Chief Executive; or
b) whose total annual remuneration exceeds $151,000
The number of Senior Officers are shown below in their relevant income bands
ncome Range: No No.
$120,000-5129,999 0 2
$130,000-$139,999 2 2
$140000- $749,989 3
5
Total Remuneration for the reporting year for Senior Officers included 703181 666,484

above, amounted to
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6.2 Related party disclosure
a. Transactions with related parties

Revenue

ayments are

Contributions received froam member councils are detailed under 2 1 Council Contributions. Thes
made quarterly in advance in July, October, January and April.

Other Revenue received from Member Councils
Manningham City Counci
Reimbursement of Warrandyte library expenses 283,296 270,539
Additional grants for specific projects 2913 0

Whitehorse City Counci

Additional grants for specific projects 50,000 45,000
Hire of meeting rooms 102
Expenses

Manningham City Counci

Warradyte Library Expenses 229483 229,483

Utilities reimbursement - Doncaster Library 18,500 19,500
Whitehorse City Counci

Headquarters Rental 85,250 51,150

l_thl,::Z;e mbursement - Nunawading, Vermont South and Blackburn 71102 42,540

Homework Support Program 16,500 16,500

b. Loans to/from related parties

No loans were made to or received from related parties.
c. Commitments to/from related parties

There are no commitments in existence at balance date
d. Other Transactions - Peppercorn leases

Manningham and Whitehorse Councils provide library floor space to the Corporation.  Any charges related to the
leasing or maintenance of these branch libraries are not passed on to the Corporation. The councils do not charge
the Corporation for these leases

The Whitehorse Manningham Regicnal Library Corperation leases the headquarters space at the Box Hill and
Nunawading branches for 385,250 (2019/2020 $51,150) per annum from City of Whitehorse on a 3 monthly basis
There is no formal tenancy agreement so it is considered to be an open ended agreement and the charge is not at

commercial rate.

Other related party transactions have been considered and there are no matters to report.
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NOTE 7

Managing uncertainties
7.1 Contingent assets and liabilities
a. Contingent assets

At the reporting date, the Corporation had no
contingent assets (2018-19: Nil)

b. Contingent liabilities
Superannuation

The Corporation has obligations under a defined
benefit superannuation scheme that may resuit In
the need to make additional contributions to the
scheme, matters relating to this potential obligation
are outlined in Note 8.2, As a result of the volatility
in financial markets the likelinood of making such
contributions in future periods exists At this point in
time it is not known if additional contributions will be
required, their timing or potential amount.

7.2 Financial instruments
a. Objectives and policies

T'he Corporation's principal financial instruments
comprise cash assels, term -ZjCIJEJS\lSI recelvables
(excluding statutory receivables) payables (excluding
statutory payables) and bank borrowings. Details
of the significant accounting policies and methods
adopted, including the criteria for recognition, the
basis of measurement and the basis on which
Income and expenses are recognised, in respect of
each class of financial asset and financial liability
is disclosed in the financial statements. Risk
management is carried out by senior management
under policies approved by the Corporation. These
policies include identification and analysis of the
risk exposure to the Corporation and appropnate

procedures, controls and risk minimisation
b. Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future
cash flows of our financial instruments will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. The
Corporation's exposure to market risk is primarily
through interest rate risk with only insignificant
exposure to other price risks and no exposure to
foreign currency risk.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the value of
a financial instrument or cash flows associated
with the instrument will fluctuate due to changes

in market interest rates. The Corporation does not
hold any interest bearing financial instruments that
are measured at fair value, and therefore has no
exposure to fair value interest rate risk. Cash flow
interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows
of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Corporation
has minimal exposure to cash flow interest rate risk
through its cash and deposits that are at floating
rate.

Investment of surplus funds is made with approved
financial institutions under the Local Government Act
1989 We manage interest rate risk by adopting an
investment policy that ensures:

» diversification of investment product,

»  monitoring of return on investment,

»  benchmarking of returns and comparison with
budget.

There has been no significant change in the
Corporation's exposure, or its objectives, policies

and processes for managing interest rate risk or the
methods used to measure this risk from the previous

reporting period

Interest rate movements have not been sufficiently
significant during the year to have an impact on the
Corporation's year end result.
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c. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that a contracting entity will not
complete its obligations under a financial instrument
and cause us to make a financial loss. We have
exposure to credit risk on some financial assets
included in our balance sheet. To help manage this
risk:

» we have a policy for establishing credit limits for
the entities we deal with;

» we may require collateral where appropriate; and

» we only invest surplus funds with financial
institutions which have a recognised credit rating
specified in our investment policy

The credit risk with receivables is very low as it
relates to one member council.

There are no material financial assets which are

individually determined to be impaired

We may also be subject to credit risk for transactions
which are not included in the balance sheet, such as
when we provide a guarantee for another party.

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting
date to recognised financial assets is the carrying
amount, net of any provisions for impairment of
those assets, as disclosed in the balance sheet and
notes to the financial statements. The Corporation
does not heold any collateral.

ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

d.

Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk includes the risk that, as a result of our
operational liquidity requirements or we will not have
sufficient funds to settle a transaction when required,
we will be forced to sell a financial asset at below
value or may be unable to settle or recover a financia
asset.

To help reduce these risks the Corporation:

» have a liguidity policy which targets a minimum
and average level of cash and cash equivalents to

be maintained

» have readily accessible standby facilities and
other funding arrangements in place;

» have a liguidity portfolio structure that reguires
surplus funds to be invested within various bands
of liquid instruments; and

» monitor budget to actual performance on a
regular basis

The Corporation’s maximum exposure to liquidity
risk is the carrying amounts of financial liabilities
as disclosed in the balance sheet and the amounts
related to financial guarantees disclosed, and is
deemed insignificant based on prior periods’ data
and current assessment of risk.

There has been no significant change in the
Corporation's exposure, or its objectives, policies and
processes for managing liguidity risk or the methods
used to measure this risk from the previous reporting
period.

Unless otherwise stated, the carrying amounts of

financial instruments reflect their fair value

Item 10.2 Attachment 1

Page 177



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

7.3 Fair Value Measurement
e. Sensitivity disclos
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NOTE 8

Other matters

8.1 Reconciliation of cash flows from
operating activities to surplus.

Surplus for the year

Depreciation

(Profit)/Loss on Disposal of Fixed Assets

Changes in assets and liabilities
(Decrease)/Increase in Receivables
(Decrease)/Increase in Accrued Income
(Decrease)/Increase in Prepayments
Increase/(Decrease) in Employee Provisions

Increase/{Decrease) in Payables

Net cash provided by operating activities

8.2 Superannuation

The Corporation makes the majority of its employer
superannuation contributions in respect of its employees
to the Local Authorities Superannuation Fund (the

Fund). This Fund has two categories of membership,
accumulation and defined benefit, each of which is
funded differently. Obligations for contributions to the

ra)

)-;;r‘\sc:—d as an expense In the Comprehensive

Fund are re

Operating Statement when they are made or due.
Accumulation

The Fund's accumulation category, Vision MySuper/
Vision Super Saver, receives both employer and

employee contributions on a progressive basis. Employer
contributions are normally based on a fixed percentage of
employee earnings (for the year ended 30 June 2021, this

was 9 5% as required under Superannuation Guarantee
(SG) legislation).

$ $
635,184 502,796

1,156,560 1,223012
405,755 443502
2,584 24170
4432 26799
(34,130) (12,725)
137,933 16,303
(252,635) 441987
2,055,693 2665844

Defined Benefit

The Corporation does not use defined benefit accounting
for its defined benefit obligations under the Fund's
Defined Benefit category. This is because the Fund's
Defined Benefit category is a pooled multi-employer

sponsored plan

There is no proportional split of the defined benefit
liabilities, assets or costs between the participating
employers as the defined benefit obligation is a floating
obligation between the participating employers and the
only time that the aggregate obligation is allocated to
specific employers is when a call is made. As a result, the

level of participation of the Corportion in the Fund cannot

be measured as a percentage compared with other
participating employers, Therefore, the Fund Actuary
is unable to allocate benefit liabilities, assets and costs

between employers for the purposes of AASE 118
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Funding Arrangements

The Corporation makes employer contributions to the
Defined Benefit category of the Fund at rates determined
by the Trustee on the advice of the Fund Actuary.

Atriennial actuarial review for the Defined Benefit
category as at 30 June 2020 was conducted and
completed by the due date of 31 December 2020.

The vested benefit index (VBI) of the Defined Benefit
category of which the Corporation is a contributing
employer was 104.6%. The financial assumptions used to
calculate the VBl were

MNet investment returns
Salary information

5.6% pa
2.5% pa for two years and
2.75% pa thereafter

Price inflation (GPY) 2.0% pa

As at 30 June 2021, an interim actuarial investigation is
underway as the Fund provides lifetime pensions in the
Defined Benefit categary.

Vision Super has advised that the actual VBl at June 30
2021 was 109.7%. The financial assumptions used to
calculate this VBl were

Netinvestment returns  4.8% pa
Salary information 275%pa
Price inflation (GP) 2.25% pa

The VBl is used as the primary funding indicator. Because
the VBl was above 100%, the 30 June 2020 actuarial
investigation determined the Defined Benefit category
was in a satisfactory financial position and that no
change was necessary 1o the Defined Benefit category’s
funding arrangements from prior years.

Employer contributions
Regular contributions

On the basis of the results of the 2020 triennial actuarial
investigation conducted by the Fund Actuary, The
Corporation makes employer contributions to the Fund's
Defined Benefit category at rates determined by the
Fund's Trustee. For the year ended 30 June 2027, this rate
was 9 5% of members’ salaries (9 5% in 2019/2020) This
rate Is expected to increase in line with any increases in
the SG contribution rate and was reviewed as part of the
30 June 2020 triennial valuation.

SEY ANNUAL REPORT - 2020/2021

In addition, the Corporation reimburses the Fund to cover
the excess of the benefits paid as a consequence of
retrenchment abave the funded resignation or retirement
benefit.

Funding calls

If the Defined Benefit category is in an unsatisfactory
financial position at an actuarial investigation or the
Defined Benefit category's VBI 15 below its shortfall

limit at any time other than the date of the actuarial
investigation, the Defined Benefit category has a shortfall
for the purposes of SP3S 160 and the Fund is required

to put a plan in place so that the shortfall is fully funded
within three years of the shortfall occurring. The Fund
monitors its VBl on a quarterly basis and the Fund has set
its shortfall limit at 97%

In the event that the Fund Actuary determines that there
is a shortfall based on the above requirement, the Fund's
participating employers (including the Corperation) are
required to make an employer contribution to cover the
shortfall.

Using the agreed methodology, the shortfall amount is
apportioned between the participating employers based
on the pre-1 July 1993 and post-30 June 1993 service
liabilities of the Fund's Defined Benefit category, together
with the employer's payroll at 30 June 1993 and at the
date the shortfall has been calculated.

Due to the nature of the contractual obligations between
the participating employers and the Fund, and that the
Fund includes lifetime pensioners and their reversionary
beneficiaries, it is unlikely that the Fund will be wound up.

|fthere is a surplus in the Fund, the surplus cannot be
returned to the participating employers

In the event that a participating employer is wound-up,
the defined benefit obligations of that employer will be
transferred to that employer's successor.
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The 2020 triennial actuarial investigation surplus

amounts

An actuarial investigation is conducted annually for

the Defined Benefit category of which the Corporation

is a contributing employer. Generally, a full actuarial
investigation is conducted every three years and

interim actuarial investigations are conducted for each
intervening year. A full investigation was conducted as at

30 June 2020

The Fund's actuarial investigation identified the following
for the Defined Benefit category of which the Corporation
is a contributing employer:

(Triennial) ~ (Interim)
sm Sm

ANVBI surplus $100.00

O

151.30

A total service liability 420000  $233.40
surplus
A discounted accrued 37« 7 80 $756.70
benefits surplus
The VBl surplus means that the market value of the fund's
assets supporting the defined benefit obligations exceed
the vested benefits that the defined benefit members
would have been entitled to If they had all exited on 30
June 2020.

The total service liability surplus means that the current
value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit category
plus expected future contributions exceeds the value of
expected future benefits and expenses as at 30 June
2020.

The discounted accrued benefit surplus means that the
current value of the assets in the Fund's Defined Benefit
category exceeds the value of benefits payable in the

future but accrued in respect of service to 30 June 2020

The Corporation was notified of the 30 June 2021 VB

A0

during August 2021 {2020: August )
There were no contributions outstanding and no loans

issued from or to the above schemes as at 30 June 2021

The expected contributions to be paid to the Defined
Benefit category of Vision Super for the year ending 30

23

June 2021 is $89

The 2021 interim actuarial investigation

An interim actuarial investigation is being conducted

for the Fund's position as at 30 June 2021 as the Fund
provides lifetime pensions in the Defined Benefit category.
It is anticipated that this actuarial investigation will be

A0

completed by October 2021,
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Ij'--..-"l anningf
Libraries

ADMINISTRATION
1040 Whitehorse Road
Box Hill 3128
P 9896 4333

BLACKBURN LIBRARY
Cnr Blackburn and Central Roads
Blackburn 3130

P. 9896 8400

BOX HILL LIBRARY
1040 Whitehorse Road
Box Hill 3128

P 9896 4300

BULLEEN LIBRARY
Bulleen Plaza
Manningham Road
Bulleen 3105

P 9896 8450

DONCASTER LIBRARY
MC Square

687 Doncaster Road
Doncaster 3108

P 9877 8500

NUNAWADING LIBRARY
379 Whitehorse Road
Nunawading 3131

P 9872 8600

THE PINES LIBRARY

The Pines Shopping Centre

Cnr Blackburn and Reynolds Roads
East Doncaster 3109

P 8877 8550

VERMONT SOUTH LIBRARY
Pavey Place

Vermont South 3133

F. 8872 8650

WARRANDYTE LIBRARY
Warrandyte Community Centre
168 Yarra Street

Warrandyte 3113

P 68954250

whiteharsemanninghamlibraries

whitehorsemanninghamlibraries
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11 CITY SERVICES

11.1 Anderson Park Master Plan

File Number: IN21/701
Responsible Director:  Director City Services

Attachments: 1 Anderson Park Master Plan Report &
2 Anderson Park Master Plan Key Directions Document &

=

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

The Pines Activity Centre Structure Plan (2011) includes an action to develop a
management plan for Anderson Park. The Reserve is a dual soccer facility in
Doncaster East that encompasses two bushland areas with high biodiversity
significance. Currently, Anderson Park does not have an endorsed management or
master plan to strategically guide future investment for the facility. In response to this, a
draft Anderson Park Master Plan has been developed. The development of the draft
master plan responds to key actions from Council’s Active for Life Recreation Strategy
2010-2025 (2019 Review) and Public Toilet Plan.

Council officers have developed a draft master plan with input from expert consultants.
Internal and community consultation has been undertaken, with a draft master plan
developed based on the consultation feedback.

The draft master plan proposes a number of actions including:
e Converting the southern soccer pitch to synthetic turf;
e Upgrading sports field floodlighting;

e Improving connectivity through construction of a path network around the
reserve, including formalising the entry from St James Court;

e Construction of a new playground,;
e Construction of a new public toilet; and

e Retention and enhancement of the bushland areas.

meetings in April 2022 for feedback and endorsement.

1. RECOMMENDATION
That Council:

A. Endorses the draft Anderson Park Master Plan for community consultation;
and

B. Notes that the final master plan, incorporating feedback from the
community consultation be presented to Council in early 2022 for
endorsement.

2. BACKGROUND
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2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Anderson Park, located in Doncaster East, is a dual soccer pitch facility that is
tenanted annually by the Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club. The Reserve also has
an additional small sided synthetic soccer pitch, sports pavilion, 2 bushland areas
and other areas of general open space. The Soccer Club are provided with an
annual tenancy of the Reserve and currently field 2 senior men’s teams and 14
boys/girls junior teams, with participation numbers recently seeing an increase.

The Reserve sits within The Pines Activity Centre Structure Plan (2011), which
covers an area that has seen recent significant densification with a number a
residential apartment buildings being constructed. In addition to the Reserve’s
importance as a sporting facility, it is seen as a key piece of open space within
the area to service residents of these apartment buildings.

Consistent with Council’s Active for Life Recreation Strategy 2010-2025 (2019
Review), a draft master plan is being developed to provide ‘great places for
people to recreate in Manningham’ and to ‘provide flexible, multi-use and durable
space for recreation to meet the needs of a growing community’. Furthermore,
the draft master plan responds directly to The Pines Activity Centre Structure
Plan which includes an action to develop a management plan for the Reserve.

Expert consultants have been engaged to develop the master plan and
undertake the various stages of community consultation. Internal and external
consultation has been undertaken which has informed the content of a draft
master plan.

3. DISCUSSION / ISSUE

3.1

Internal Consultation

3.1.1 As part of a collaborative approach to the development of the draft
master plan, a Project Working Group (PWG) has been established that
consists of key staff from across the organisation. Feedback was sought
from the PWG on the facilities currently provided at Anderson Park, with
the PWG also asked to provide recommendations on future facility
development. A significant amount of feedback was received from the
PWG with the feedback including, but not limited to:

a) Include alocal level play space within the reserve.

b) Convert one soccer pitch to synthetic turf, upgrading the remaining turf
pitch, and replacing the synthetic on the existing small sided pitch.

c) Construct a spectator shelter on the northern pitch.
d) Upgrade the sports field floodlights.

e) Upgrade the irrigation systems in conjunction with any sports field
surface upgrade.

f) Additional planting around the reserve, with a particular focus on the
western and northern boundaries.

g) Create better connectivity around the reserve through a path network,
including formalising the entrance from St James Court.

h) Consider removing the pine trees located in bushland 1.

i) Consider a future upgrade to the existing car park, including potential to
formalise the car park as one way traffic.

Item 11.1
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J) Construct a public toilet facility within the reserve, including providing
suitable lighting along the path between the car park and proposed
public toilet.

k) Ensure adequate accessible parking bays are provided.

3.2 Community Consultation

3.2.1 To capture community feedback, the consultant attended Anderson Park

to speak to users of the reserve. An additional onsite consultation was
planned however due to Covid-19 restrictions this was cancelled. As a
result, the majority of the consultation was focused on online
engagement. Using online engagement tools including Council’s social
media, website and Your Say Manningham ensured the community were
given the opportunity to provide input into the future of Anderson Park.

3.2.2 In total 40 responses were received for the online survey through Your

Say Manningham. Respondents were mixed between members of the
Soccer Club and general community members, which is reflected in the
feedback received. In addition to general demographic questions and
guestions around frequency of use, survey respondents were also
asked:

a) What aspects of the park do you like?
b) What are some of the key words to describe the park?

c) What short and long term changes would you like to see at the park?

3.2.3 Responses to these questions resulted in the following key themes

being identified:
a) The reserve has a significant number of dog walkers, who value how
the soccer pitches have enclosed fences.

b) Dog walkers would like to see the open space area or bushland area 1
converted into a fenced off leash dog park.

c) The feeling of being removed from suburbia when you are within the
bushland areas, and that these areas need to be better protected and
maintained.

d) Improved connectivity around the reserve is required.

e) More facilities are needed outside of the sporting facilities, such as
parkour equipment (or similar), a playground, public toilets and more
bins.

f) Additional areas are needed for soccer, including converting the pitches
to synthetic and constructing a new synthetic warm up area.

3.3 Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club

3.3.1 One-on-one meetings were held with the Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club

to better understand their strategic direction, and identify how facility
improvements can facilitate this. Consultation also occurred with the
State Sporting Association, Football Victoria (FV). The Soccer Club and
FV provided the following key pieces of feedback, amongst other
requests/considerations:

a) A third full sized synthetic soccer pitch.
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3.4

3.5

b) Should the above not be feasible, the club and FV were supportive of
converting the southern soccer pitch to synthetic to ensure it caters for
additional participation.

c) Upgrade the surface of the northern pitch.

d) Construction of an additional small sided synthetic pitch.
e) Improved sports field lighting.

f) Construction of shelter for the northern pitch.

Research Reports

3.4.1 A number of independent reports were developed to further understand
the current status of Anderson Park. The reports were also developed to
help strategically justify the addition of recommendations within the draft
master plan. Content from the reports are outlined within the Master
Plan Report (Attachment 1), with a list of the reports that were
developed included below:

a) Accessibility Audit.

b) Traffic Management Report.
c) Arborist Report.

d) Biodiversity Report.

e) Sports Field Turf Report.

f) Lighting Audit.

Key Recommendations

3.5.1 A Key Directions document has been developed which details a number
of key recommendations in response to the community and internal
consultation (Attachment 2). A number of other recommendations have
also been made and are detailed within the Master Plan Report
(Attachment 1). The main recommendations that are listed within the
Key Directions document include:

a) Conversion of the southern soccer pitch to synthetic, to provide a
surface that can handle increased participation in response to the
Soccer Club’s strategic direction and Council’s facility provision targets.

b) Upgrade of the northern soccer pitch as a turf pitch, and construct a
spectator shelter.

c) Upgrade to sports field floodlighting on both pitches.

d) Construction of a new local level playground between the southern pitch
and bushland 1.

e) Construction of a path network around the reserve, including formalising
the entrance from St James Court and installing seating strategically
throughout the reserve.

f) Construction of a new public toilet facility to the south of the sports
pavilion.

g) Staged removal of 8 pine trees from bushland area 1.
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3.6 Ideas Not Recommended

3.6.1 A number of ideas proposed during the consultation phase were
explored however not recommended. These include:

a) Dedicated Fenced Off Leash Dog Area - Feedback was received in
relation to constructing a fenced off leash dog area within the reserve.
This was investigated however is not recommended as the available
space is insufficient. Construction of this facility in the space available
would result in no room to construct a path network, and will also result
in excessive wear and tear on the grassed surface given the confined
space (resulting in mud/dirt instead of grass). Aranga Reserve, which
has a large fenced off leash dog area, is also located within close
proximity of Anderson Park.

b) Additional Small Sided Synthetic Soccer Pitch - Requests from the
Soccer Club to explore the addition of a second small sided synthetic
pitch is not recommended, given the limited space available, and that
there is no demonstrated need for this additional facility.

c) Synthetic Conversion of Both Soccer Pitches - Conversion of both
soccer pitches to synthetic is not recommended. This is primarily due
to restrictions on dogs using synthetic pitches. Given the feedback
received around the importance of Anderson Park for dog walkers, it
is proposed to retain the northern pitch as turf which will allow dog
walkers to continue to use the pitch. Any upgrade to this pitch will
also consider fencing for the entire pitch. The proposed path network
will also offer additional opportunities for dog walkers.

4. COUNCIL PLAN /| STRATEGY

4.1 The draft Master Plan aims to produce relevant outcomes from the Council Plan
2021-25, by creating inviting places and spaces as well as enhanced parks and
open space for the community. The Master Plan also aims to create infrastructure
that is well utilised by the community.

4.2 The delivery of the Master Plan is consistent with Council’s Active for Life
Recreation Strategy 2010-2025 (2019 Review), which aims to provide ‘great
places for people to recreate in Manningham’ and to ‘provide flexible, multi-use
and durable spaces for recreation to meet the needs of a growing community’.
Specifically, the Master Plan responds directly to actions 1.3.6, 1.4.3, 1.5.1, 1.5.2,
3.2.1and 3.2.2.

4.3 The Master Plan also responds directly to The Pines Activity Centre Structure
Plan which includes an action to prepare a management plan for Anderson Park
(action 5.3).

4.4 An objective from Council’s Public Toilet Plan is also achieved through the
Master Plan, with the Public Toilet Plan recommending the construction of a
public toilet facility at the reserve.

5. IMPACTS AND IMPLICATIONS

5.1 The Anderson Park master plan will provide a strategically justified direction for
the Reserve, including key capital works projects for both new and upgrade. The
delivery of the master plan actions is however subject to Council’s capital works
and budget processes.
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6. IMPLEMENTATION
6.1 Finance / Resource Implications

6.1.1 The development of the draft Master Plan is covered within existing
budgets.

6.1.2 A draft cost plan estimate has been developed by the consultant based
on the anticipated outcomes from the draft master plan. In total the cost
plan estimates that implementation of the draft master plan will cost
approximately $3,472,000. The key projects that make up a significant
portion of this cost are:

a) Conversion of the southern pitch to synthetic turf - $835,000
b) Upgrade northern pitch as a natural grass surface - $700,000
c) Upgrade lighting on both sports fields - $500,000

d) Provide an externally accessible public toilet - $250,000

e) Construct local level play space, including netting and paths to the play
space - $500,000

f) Construct new path network throughout reserve - $190,000

6.1.3 A final Cost Plan will be developed alongside the final Master Plan
document, along with a recommended staged implementation plan.
Actual dates for implementation will however vary based on Council’s
capital works and budget processes.

6.1.4 Each sport infrastructure project recommended within the master plan
will be ranked against the Recreation Capital Works Criteria, to
determine where each projects sits on the wider recreation capital works
priority list. This will then determine the proposed dates for each
individual project.

6.1.5 Future funding allocations have already been listed within Council’s 10
year Capital Works program for construction of a new playground
($250,000 in 2022/23) and provision of a public toilet ($150,000 in
2024/25). These amounts will be reassessed as a result of the draft cost
plan.

6.1.6 The development of a master plan will guide decision making and
investment for future improvement within Anderson Reserve with the
opportunity to attract State or Federal funding.

6.2 Communication and Engagement

6.2.1 A detailed community consultation process has been undertaken to
inform the content of the draft master plan (see sections 3.1, 3.2 and
3.3).

6.2.2 Consistent with the Communications and Engagement Strategy that has
been developed for this project, the draft Master Plan will be presented
to the community for comment between late November 2021 and
February 2022. Subject to Covid-19 restrictions, this consultation
process will include but is not limited to:
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a) One on one meetings with key stakeholders, including the Doncaster
Rovers Soccer Club.

b)  Onsite community consultation sessions, designed to engage with
users of the Reserve and gain their feedback on the draft Master
Plan.

c)  Online engagement through Council’s social media, website and
YourSay Manningham.
6.3 Timelines

6.3.1 A copy of the draft master plan will be presented to the Open Space
Committee and Street Scape Committee on 29 November 2021.

6.3.2 It is proposed that the draft master plan will be presented to the Council
meeting on 23 November 2021 prior to community consultation.

6.3.3 Following this, a period of community consultation will commence
between the 24 November 2021 and mid-February 2022 (taking into
account the impact of the Christmas period).

6.3.4 It is anticipated that a final master plan will be presented to EMT for

endorsement in March 2022, followed by the SBS and Council meetings
in April 2022. Implementation of the master plan will then follow.

7. DECLARATIONS OF CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No officers involved in the preparation of this report have any general or material
conflict of interest in this matter.
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Anderson Park Masterplan Report
1. INTRODUCTION
1.1 Purpose and Objectives of Masterplan

The purpose of the masterplanning process is to produce a cohesive plan to guide the long term redevelopment

of Anderson Park {the reserve). The objectives of the process are to:

1.2

Determine the functions of the reserve.

Assess the condition of the reserve and its facilities from a landscape, functional, access, structural,
environmental and safety perspective.

Identify the facility needs of existing user groups and how these needs could be addressed.

Prepare a masterplan for the reserve which contains a prioritised list of development works and
estimates of the costs of these works.

Methodology

The methodology for the development of the masterplan was divided into seven related stages. A brief

summary of the stages is as follows:

Stage 1 - Project Definition Meeting - A meeting and site visit were held with Council staff for the

purpose of clarifying the objectives of the masterplanning process and discussing in the key issues to

be addressed by the masterplan.

Stage 2 - Literature Review - Relevant Council files, strategy documents and operational policies were

reviewed.

Stage 3 — Analysis of Leisure Trends/Demographic Projections — Relevant leisure and demographic

trends were analysed and the implications of these characteristics for the future development of the

reserve were identified.

Stage 4 -Audit of Existing Conditions/Use - The existing conditions at and use of the reserve were

described. This description has the following components:

— A written assessment of the physical condition of the individual components of the reserve

— A plan which illustrates and describes the condition of the components of the reserve (See Plan
A).

Stage 5 - Consultation - User club officials, relevant Council officers, other interested groups and

residents were consulted about their use of the reserve and the improvements that were needed.

Stage 6 — Draft Report - The findings of the previous research were documented in a findings and then

the draft report. Included in this report were details of the works suggested by key stakeholders, an

assessment of the merit of each works item, a set of recommended works and a preliminary

masterplan. Council reviewed the report and suggested deletions and additions were noted. The draft

report and preliminary masterplan were amended in response to the Council feedback.

Stage 7- Final Report — The draft report and masterplan were publicly exhibited and feedback received.

The report and masterplan were amended in response to the feedback and was converted to a final

report.

This report covers Stages 1-6. Stage 7 is still to be undertaken.
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2. ANDERSON PARK (THE RESERVE)

2.1 Open Space Context

2.1.1  Location, components and catchment areas

Anderson Park is a 4.6ha Council owned reserve located off Anderson Creek Road in Doncaster East. |t is an
active/passive reserve and comprises two senior size soccer fields (both are lit, the top field has only one light

tower), a lit small synthetic field, sports pavilion, two sealed carpark areas and two bushland areas. The reserve
is zoned public park and recreation and has an environmental significance overlay.

Plan A - Anderson Park (main facilities)

Anderson Park is bounded by Reynolds Road to the north, Anderson Creek Road and the Onemda Day Training
Centre to the east, The Orchards Baptcare Retirement Village to the south and a commercial building and
houses to the west (see Plan B). A shared walking/bike path runs along the eastern edge of the reserve and
extends north to the Yarra River Trail.
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Plan B = Location of Anderson Park

As a passive/informal recreation space, the reserve caters for the community living in the neighbourhood area
bounded by Blackburn Road, Serpells Road, Mullum Mullum Creek, Long Valley Way, Anderson Creek Road.
Vehicle movement is relatively easy in this neighbourhood area. Pedestrian movement is impeded by two
major roads — Reynolds Road and Anderson Creek Road - which are located on the northern and eastern edges
of the reserve. As an active sporting space, the reserve caters for a larger catchment. The tenant club at the
reserve, Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club, draws the majority of its players from the Doncaster East and

Templestowe suburban areas.
Plan C — Anderson Park, Catchment Zone, Passive Recreation
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2.1.2

Open Space Setting

Thirteen open space parcels are located within one (1) kilometre of the reserve. All are predominantly passive

reserves. Some contain only walking/cycling paths, others contain multiple facilities including play equipment,

basketball half courts, rebound walls and trails. Their details and locations are provided in Table 1 and Plan C.

Table 1 - Nearby Reserves (as crow flies)

Ref | Reserve Distance to Facilities Main function
Anderson Park

1 Matisse Reserve Playground 820m Playground, half court Passive recreation, play

2 Green Gully Linear Park 820m Shared trail Walking, cycling

3 Pines Learning Centre A470m Seniors fitness and play Exercise, play

Playground equipment
4 Pipe Track 960m None Walking
5 Mullum Mullum Creek Linear | 980m Shared trail Walking, cycling
Park

6 Shafter Reserve 520m Play and fitness equipment, Passive recreation, play
basketball half court

7 Happy Valley Reserve 500m Play equipment, half court Passive recreation, play

8 Pinehill Reserve 1000m Play equipment, half court, Passive recreation, play
walking path

] Landscape Drive Reserve 750m Play and fitness equipment, Passive recreation, play
walking paths

10 Whistlewood Reserve 270m Play equipment, half court Passive recreation, play

11 Pineview Reserve 740m Walking path Walking

12 Green Gully Linear Park 740m Playground, basketball Play, walking, cycling
court/hitting wall, shared trail

13 Jenkins Park 570m Play and fitness equipment, Passive recreation, play,
walking paths, shared trail exercise, cycling

14 Moarello Playspace 350m Play equipment, walking path Passive recreation, play

15 Huntingfield Reserve 500m Grass, trees Passive recreation

Plan C— Anderson Park, Catchment Zone, Passive Recreation
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As indicated in section 2.1.1, Anderson Park accommodates soccer fields, bushland areas and walking paths.
The closest venues which contain one or more of these elements are the two recently constructed soccer fields
at Pettys Reserve (1.7kms from Anderson Park), bushland at Green Gully Linear Park (820m) and the walking
path at Jenkins Park (570m).

2.2 Occupancy, current usage and management and maintenance arrangements

Anderson Park is used by the Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club under an annual occupancy agreement with
Manningham City Council. The agreement gives the club access to the soccer field and pavilions between 4pm
and 9pm each weeknight and all day Saturday and Sunday. Although an annual agreement, most of the club’s
use occurs during the winter season.

The management and maintenance arrangements for the reserve are detailed in table 2 below. The table
indicates that six Council Units and the soccer club are involved in the management and maintenance of the

reserve.

Table 2 - Management and maintenance responsibilities
Organisation/Unit Tasks

MCC Recreation Services Allocation of sports fields and pavilions

Liaison with user club

Monitoring compliance with seasonal allocation agreements
Facilities planning and development (inc. capital development submissions)
Provision and maintenance of sports field lighting

MCC Parks Design and development of:

- Drainage and irrigation systems

- Paths

- Fencing

Maintenance of:

- Sports fields, including irrigation and sprinkler systems

- Passive spaces

- Vegetation

- Park furniture and fencing

MCC Integrated Transport Design and maintenance of:
- Paths and safety lighting
- Access roads and parking areas within reserve

MCC Waste Services Collection of rubbish/recycling bins

MCC Building Maintenance Maintenance of buildings

MCC Health Unit Registration of kitchen/kiosk

Doncaster East Soccer Club Compliance with terms of annual agreement relating to maintenance, times of

uses and access
Maintenance of sports field lighting
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3.

3.1

LITERATURE REVIEW

Documents

The following documents/files were reviewed:

3.2

Manningham Council Plan 2021-2025

Manningham Healthy City Strategy 2017-2021

Manningham Active for Life Recreation Strategy 2010-2025
Manningham Open Space Strategy 2014

Manningham Bushland Strategy 2012

The Pines Activity Centre Structure Plan 2011

Manningham Outdoor Sports Infrastructure Policy 2021
Manningham Public Teilet Plan 2020

Eastern Regional Trails Strategy 2018

Eastern Region Soccer Strategy 2007

Anderson Park Facility Audit (Football Victoria 2019)
Anderson Park Sport Turf Access Audit (Sports Turf Consultants 2021)
Anderson Park Ecological Assessment (Practical Ecology 2021)
Anderson Park Access Audit Report (McKenzie Group 2021)
Anderson Park Lighting Audit (Stantec 2021)

Anderson Park Lighting Audit (Rexel 2016)

Doncaster Rovers 5C Strategic Plan 2020-2030

Relevant Information

The documents provide/contain the following information that is relevant to the Anderson Park Masterplan:

The key goals that Council wants to achieve between 2021 and 2025 and actions it will take realise
these goals.

The key strategies that Council will implement to improve the health and well-being of the
Manningham community.

The strategies Council will implement to increase the participation of Manningham residents in
physical activity.

Council's long term strategic plan for the provision, development, management and use of open space
areas in Manningham,

An analysis of open space provision by local area across Manningham.

The approach Council will take to manage the Council owned/controlled bushland areas in
Manningham.

A framework to guide the future development of The Pines Activity Centre, which includes the
Anderson Park precinct.

A set of facility standards for sports facilities in Manningham.

A plan for the future provision of public toilet facilities in Manningham.

Along-term plan for the provision of soccer facilities across Melbourne’s Eastern Region.

Audits of the condition/level of compliance of the flora and fauna, playing fields, lighting and physical
access at the reserve.

Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club’s club development and facility priorities

8
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3.3 Implications of the documents for the Anderson Park Masterplan

The implications are as follows:

. The masterplan should aim to achieve or implement the key goals and tasks of the Manningham
Council Plan, i.e.
—  Enhancing paths and bushland areas and adding more vegetation

Improving safety

Making external facilities disability accessible

Providing suitable public toilet facilities where needed

—  Optimising the use of the reserve
—  Enhancing the reserve’s energy efficiency.
. The masterplan should aim to implement the key strategies of the Healthy City Strategy. i.e.,
—  Providing high quality, welcoming, safe, recreation environments
—  Enhancing the role the reserve can play in creating a more liveable local neighbourhood and
engaging more people in community life.
. The masterplan should endeavour to implement the actions listed in the Active For Life Recreation
Strategy and recognise the principles that underpin these actions, these being:
Increasing the capacity and optimising the use of recreation facilities

—  Enhancing the flexibility of recreation facilities to make them suitable for modified sport
—  Making recreation facilities disability accessible and more multi-use
—  Providing programmable spaces in pavilions.

. The actions in the 0SS that have relevance to Anderson Park should be reviewed in the masterplanning
process and included in the masterplan if still considered valid, being:

— Improving pedestrian and cycling connections around The Pines Shopping Centre through path
upgrades and directional signage

—  Providing two additional playspaces within The Pines precinct to cater for increasing population

—  Protecting significant indigenous bushland in Anderson Park

— Undertaking works to protect and promote the bushland in Anderson Park considering the
potential higher density residential development adjacent to the reserve.

—  Developing a low level playground at Anderson Park.

. The masterplan should investigate the significance of the bushland areas at Anderson Park and, if
justified, include the actions from the Bushland Strategy that are aimed at protecting/restoring
important vegetation areas.

. The masterplan should look at ways to improve connections between the Pines Shopping Centre,
Anderson Park, retirement village and St James Court, as per the recommendations in The Pines
Activity Centre Structure Plan.

. The principles outlined in Outdoor Sports Infrastructure Policy should underpin/the recommendation
contained in the Anderson Park Masterplan; these principles being:

—  Optimum and shared use of facilities
- Multi-use, accessible facilities
—  Environmentally sustainable facilities.

. The Anderson Park Masterplan should make provision an externally accessible public toilet in the
reserve as recommended in the Manningham Public Toilet Plan

. The recommendations in the Eastern Region Soccer Strategy that Anderson Park be upgraded to a
Class A soccer facility suitable for NPL games should be considered in the masterplanning process for

the reserve.
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. The findings of the lighting, ecological, sports turf and access assessments should be included in the
site analysis and the recommendations in the assessments should be considered for incorporation in
the masterplan. These recommendation being: protection of native vegetation patches, upgraded
playing field surfaces, upgraded lighting over the two large playing fields and access compliance works
(signs, strips, ramps etc).

. The Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club’s facility priorities — synthetic field, improved grass surface,
resurfacing of the synthetic field - should be considered for inclusion in the Anderson Park Masterplan.

10
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4.1

4.2

4.3

EXISTING CONDITIONS/SITE ASSESSMENT
Boundary fencing

The section of the eastern boundary between Onemda and Reynolds Road is lined by a 2.5 metre wide
swing pipe gate and ring lock fence. The fence and gate are in good condition. The northern boundary
of the reserve is lined by a ring lock and 5 metre high chain-wire fence. Some sections of the ring lock
fence have been damaged by overhanging or fallen vegetation. The high chain wire has been installed
to prevent soccer balls from leaving the reserve. Itisin good condition.

The predominant fence type along the reserve’s western edge is timber paling. Some sections have
trellis extensions. The southern edge of the reserve is lined by 2 metre high and 5 metre high chain
wires fences [behind the soccer goal). The fencing is in good condition.

The northwest edge of Bushland area 1 has a rock embankment below the grid lock fence. The
embankment is shedding loose rocks onto the adjacent footpath on Reynolds Road.

Entrances/access roads/paths

The main vehicle entrance to the reserve is off Anderson Creek Road. The entrance connects to a large

carpark which in turn connects to a small carpark near the pavilion. The entrance has an open drain

on its southern edge. The drain has been damaged by turning cars and water is ponding in the drain.

Pedestrians can enter the reserve at four formal access points - the main entrance, through breaks in

the fence on the eastern edge of the Bushland area 2, the northwest corner of Bushland area 1 and at

St James Court on the western boundary. Maintenance vehicles can only enter the reserve through

the main entrance or through the pipe gate on the eastern edge of Bushland area 2.

The path network in the reserve consists of:
A gravel path through Bushland area 1 which connects to a concrete path between the small
synthetic field and the main grassed field. This path ends at the covered spectator area at the front
of the pavilion

- Ashort segmental brick paved walking path extending from northwest corner of the large carpark
to the covered spectator area at the front of the pavilion

- Three goat tracks in Bushland area 2 which extend from Anderson Creek Road to the southeast
edge of the second field edge and into the centre of the bushland area

- Goat tracks down the embankments in Bushland area 1.

- A grassed right of way between St James Court and the grassed area on the western edge of the
reserve,

The gravel path in Bushland area 1isin good condition. There is some water erosion and weed growth

and the path narrows to around one (1) metre in width along the western end of the second playing

field. The short, paved walking path is uneven and presents poorly as the main path from the large

car park to the pavilion. The goat tracks and grassed right of way are walkable and in reasonable

condition.

The path network in the reserve provides local residents with connections into the park and through

the park to other areas and sites — such as the Pines Shopping Centre to the north of the reserve and

the retirement village to the south.
Signage

The signage at the reserve consists of:

- Adouble sided finger sign on the street pole on Anderson Creek Road

11

Item 11.1

Attachment 1

Page 205



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

Anderson Park Masterplan Report

- Areserve name sign at the main vehicle entrance
- Rules signs at various locations in the reserve
- Advertising/sponsor signs on the fence on the western side of the playing field.
. The finger sign is small (60mmX100mm) and not easy to see, particularly at night. The reserve name
sign is attractive but again is difficult to see as its colours blend in with the background. The rules and

advertising signs are not visually obtrusive.

4.4 Carparks

. There are two carparking areas in the reserve — the large carpark off Anderson Creek Road and the
small internal carpark immediately east of the pavilion.

. The large carpark consists of two accessible and 149 standard bays. The carparking is sealed and has
kerbing. The asphalt pavement is lifting in some areas and some kerbing is damaged. Some of the
existing drainage gates within the invert channel of the carpark are clogged with silt/earth. This is
limiting their intake.

. The small pavilion carpark consists of 17 standard bays and is sealed and in good condition. It is narrow
(11.2m wide) and has no turning circle.

4.5 Internal fencing

. The fencing in the reserve is extensive and consists of the following:
- Low chain wire fence around the perimeter of the main playing field
- Low chain wire and high chain wire fence around the perimeter of the second field
- Acyclone wire fence separating the large carpark from the rest of the reserve
- High chain wire fence around the small synthetic field and water tanks
- High chain wire fence behind the goals at the southern end of the main field
- Achain wire players’ race from the pavilion to the main field
- A pipe rail fence along the concrete path between the main playing field and the synthetic field.
. Paint is flaking off the fencing in some sections. The cyclone wire fence between the large carpark and
the rest of the reserve has wire protrusions at the top and does not present well (prison-like in
appearance). All the other fencing is in good condition. Some of the fencing, however, may be

obsolete, e.g., fence around the water tanks, the cycle wire fence between the large and small carpark.

12
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4.6 Playing fields

. The reserve has two natural grassed soccer fields and a small synthetic grass field. The main grassed
field is situated to the west of the pavilion. The field is fenced and oriented north-south and its
dimensions are 100 metres X 66 metres with 5 metre run offs. These dimensions meet the Football
Victoria's (FV) size requirements for senior playing fields. The grass surface is uneven and is highly
worn through the centre corridor and goal mouths. It has little weed cover. With respect to soil
nutrient levels, the field’s potassium, calcium and magnesium levels are too low and its phosphorous
level is too high.

. The second grassed field is situated to the north of the main field. The field is fenced and oriented
east-west and its dimensions are 100 metres X 58 metres wide with 3 metre runoffs. These dimensions
(the width) do not meet FV's size requirements for a senior playing field. The grass surface is uneven
but less worn than the main field. It also has little weed cover but is poorly drained. With respect to
soil nutrient levels, the field is moderately acidic and its phosphorous, potassium, calcium and
magnesium levels are too low.

. The irrigation systems on both field are ageing (over 20 years old) and may need renewal.

. The small synthetic field is located between the pavilion and the second grass field. It is 40 metres long

and 30 metres long and is oriented north-south. The surface of the field is worn.

4.7 Lighting

. The main field has eight light towers with 12 (2000 Watt) metal halide lamps. The light poles were
erected in 1999 but appear to be in good condition. A lighting audit undertaken in 2016 indicated that
the lights were producing 119 lux at 0.39 average uniformity. The lux levels are suitable for the
competition levels played at Anderson Park. The uniformity average, however, does not meet the
standard for competition.

. The second field has one light tower with three (2000 Watt) metal halide lamps. The light pole was
erected in 2000 and appears to be in good condition. The 2016 lighting audit found that the light was
producing 39 lux at 0.13 uniformity. These levels are not suitable for junior or senior competition. The
light can provide for basic training, particularly in the vicinity of the light tower.

. The small synthetic field is lit by two towers — one tower with two (1500-2000 Watt) metal halide lamps
and a shared tower with the second field with one (1500-2000w) metal halide directed at the small

13
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4.8

4.8

field. The towers appear to be in good condition. In 2016, the lights were producing 130 lux at 0.47
uniformity. These levels meet competition and training requirements.

The car park is lit by 150 watt sodium lamps on 10-11 metre high concrete poles. The lights meet the
Australian Standard for carpark lighting. The pavilion perimeter and the front undercover area are
illuminated by linear surface mounted batten lamps. They are controlled by a PE-Cell and come on all

night as security lighting.

Grass surrounds

There are flat grassed areas to the north and west of the main playing field and the southern edge of
the second field. These areas have healthy grass cover and are in good condition.
The 5 metre wide grassed space between the small synthetic field and the pavilion is used to store

portable goals. This area is difficult to maintain. The grass is worn and the area is mainly bare clay soil.

Lighting

The main field has eight light towers with 12 (2000 Watt) metal halide lamps. The light poles were
erected in 1999 but appear to be in good condition. A lighting audit undertaken in 2016 indicated that
the lights were producing 119 lux at 0.39 average uniformity. The lux levels are suitable for the
competition levels played at Anderson Park. The uniformity average, however, does not meet the
standard for competition.

The second field has one light tower with three (2000 Watt) metal halide lamps. The light pole was
erected in 2000 and appears to be in good condition. The 2016 lighting audit found that the light was
producing 39 lux at 0.13 uniformity. These levels are not suitable for junior or senior competition. The
light can provide for basic training, particularly in the vicinity of the light tower.

The small synthetic field is lit by two towers — one tower with two (1500-2000 Watt) metal halide lamps
and a shared tower with the second field with one (1500-2000w) metal halide directed at the small
field. The towers appear to be in good condition. In 2016, the lights were producing 130 lux at 0.47
uniformity. These levels meet competition and training requirements.

The car park is lit by 150 watt sodium lamps on 10-11 metre high concrete poles. The lights meet the
Australian Standard for carpark lighting. The pavilion perimeter and the front undercover area are
illuminated by linear surface mounted batten lamps. They are controlled by a PE-Cell and come on all

night as security lighting.
14
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4.9 Built structures and seating
. The built facilities at the reserve consist of a pavilion, concrete terraced steps and metal seats under

an undercover area and a water tank. The pavilion is large by local community sports standards. It has
a floor area of around 850 square metres and comprises four changerooms with amenities, referees’
changeroom, three storerooms, office, committee room, male and female toilets, accessible toilet,
kitchen and coolroom and large social room. The terraced undercover area is also large (200 square
metres and can accommodate around 350 people standing and 200 seated). The pavilion, undercover
area and water tank are in good condition.

. There are no externally accessible public toilets at the reserve. People needing to access a toilet must
enter through the social room in the pavilion.

. There are 18 aluminium benches in the pavilion undercover area which can seat around 200 people.
There are two park benches in the reserve, one near the second field and the other in Bushland area
2. The benches are in good condition.

4.10 Assessment of sports facilities against facility standards (Football Victoria and Manningham City

Council}

. Table 4 on pages 16 and 17 contains an assessment of the sports facilities at Anderson Park against
Football Victoria's Facility Standards for National Premier League level (NPL) and local/community
soccer level venues and Manningham City Council’s Outdoor Sports Infrastructure Policy for district
level soccer venues.

. The assessment indicates that the soccer facilities at Anderson Park meet or exceed the standards for
local/community/ district and NPL soccer in all areas except the following:
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Table 3 = Anderson Park, compliance with facility standards

Local/community/district soccer NPL
Does not meet the standards in the following areas: | Does not meet the standards in the following areas:
- Width of the second field — too narrow for senfor | - Width of the second field - too narrow
soccer - Lux levels on the main field for competition and
Light uniformity on the main field for competition light uniformity on the main field for competition
and training, lux levels and light uniformity on the and training
second field for competition and training, - Lux levels and light uniformity levels on the
- Size of the first aid room second field for competition and training
- Size of the player amenities areas - Size of two players’ change rooms
- Length of the coaches/team benches - Size of the player amenities areas

- Size of match official’'s amenities

- Size of the first aid room
Length of the coaches/team benches
Players’ race not covered
Size of match official’s amenities

- Provision of media room

- Size of covered spectator area

4,11 Disability access issues

. The reserve has the following disability access issues:

- There is no accessible carparking bay in the pavilion carpark. There are two accessible bays at the
north-west corner of the large carpark. The two bays do not comply with the Australian Standard
in that they are not properly signed (elevated blue sign) or delineated by yellow lines

- There is no continuous accessible path travel from the accessible parking bays in the large carpark
to the pavilion

- The accessway from the accessible parking bays is not compliant with respect to grade. The
segmental brick path from the carpark to the undercover spectator area is uneven. The desire
lines/tracks through the bushland areas are not disability accessible.

- The undercover spectator area has no luminance contrast with the surrounding concrete
pavement. There are no turning spaces for wheelchairs in this area or disabled seating (various
heights, arm rests and back rests).

- The lighting over the pathway between the pavilion and the second field is inadequate.

- Thereis no ramp access to the tired spectator seating. The concrete steps at the spectator area do
not have handrails, slip resistant strips or ground surface indicators at the top and bottom of the
stairs.

4,12 Bushland areas/biodiversity

. The bushland areas contain two patches of native vegetation. The vegetation is in good health and
condition. Patch One occurs in Bushland area 1 and includes many large indigenous trees and multiple
smaller indigenous canopy trees. The patch has moderate species diversity with good quality
revegetation. Patch Two occurs in Bushland area 2 and also includes many large indigenous trees and
multiple smaller indigenous canopy trees. The Patch has less species diversity and vegetation quality
than Patch One. It has also been disturbed by the frequent use of the tracks through this bushland
area.

. Two invasive weed species —angle onion and oxalis - occur in the bushland areas in the reserve. Couch
grass is also spreading from the second field into Bushland area 1. The weeds and couch need to be
controlled to protect the patches of native vegetation.
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The rest of the vegetation at the reserve can be described as planted vegetation. It largely consists of
species indigenous to the area. The reserve has no rare or threatened flora species of state or national
significance.

The planted and native vegetation in the reserve provide nesting, foraging, resting and movement
opportunities for birds and mammals. The areas of dense understory vegetation provide shelter,
foraging, protection and nesting opportunities for small birds. They are also important movement
corridors for small ground dwelling and large arboreal mammals. Logs, woody debris and leaf litter in
the bushland area are important materials for reptile foraging and basking and foraging by birds and
small mammal species.

There are nine fauna species recorded within a two kilometre radius of Anderson Park. Two fauna
species have the potential to occur in the bushland areas in the reserve — the Grey-headed Flying Fox
and Powerful Owl. There is insufficient suitable habitat for the Grey-headed Flying-fox to utilise the
habitat within the reserve in large densities. There is insufficient habitat for the Powerful Owl to nest
within the reserve. It requires old growth trees, which are not present. The reserve has no rare or
threatened fauna species of state or national significance.
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Table 4 - Assessment of Anderson Park against Football Victoria’s Facility Standards and Manningham Outdoor Sports Infrastructure Policy 2021

Facility Preferred minimum prevision/size Anderson Park Level of compliance Level of compliance
with standards with standards
NPL District/local/community NPL District/local/
community
Senior level Junior level
PLAYING FIELD AND SURROUNDS
Pitch size 100-105m long 96-105m long 90-105m long Main field — 100mX68m | Main field meets Main field meets
60m-68m wide 60m-68m wide 50m-68m wide Second field- standards standards
100mX58m Second field does not Second field does meet
meet standard (too standard for senior
narrow) competition (too
narrow)
Pitch run-off 3m 3m 3m Main field — 5m Meets standard Meets standard
Second field—3m
Pitch profile Sand base Sand base Sand base Sand base Meets standard Meets standard
Pitch drainage Required Required Required Provided Meets standard Meets standard
Pitch irrigation Automated, efficient Automated, efficient Automated, efficient Provided Meets standard Meets standard

Pitch fencing

1.1m

1.1m

1.1m

Both fields — 1.1m

Meets standard

Meets standard

Covered players’ race

2m wide X 2.2m high
covered race from
change rooms to
playing fields

2.2m high and 2m wide.
Not covered

Does not meet standard
- not covered

Exceeds standard for
community sports -
players race not
required

Technical area

Formally line marked

Marked by cones

Marked by cones

Marked by cones

Meets standard

Meets standard

Field lighting

Competition — min 200
lux, min uniformity 0.6
Training — min 1000 lux

Competition — min 100
lux, min uniformity 0.5
Training —min 50 lux

Competition — min 100
lux, min uniformity 0.5
Training — min 50 lux

Main field — 119 lux,
0.40 uniformity

Second field — 39 lux,
0.13 uniformity
Synthetic field — 130 lux,
0.47 uniformity

Does not meet

standards for:

- Lux levels on the main
field for competition

- Light uniformity on
main field for
competition and
training

- Lux levels and
uniformity levels on
the second field for
competition and
training

Does not meet
standards for:

- Light uniformity on
the main field for
competition and
training

- Lux levels and light
uniformity on the
second field for
competition and
training.
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25m2

undersized

Facility Preferred minimum provision/size Anderson Park Level of compliance Level of compliance
with standards with standards
NPL District/local/community NPL District/loeal/
community
Senior level Junior level
Uniformity levels =
main and soccer fields
do not comply for
training or competition
Lux levels — main field
complies with standard
for training and
competition.
Second field does not
comply for training or
competition.
Goal posts 2X(2.44mHX7.32mW) 2%(2.44mHX7.32mW) 2X%(2.44mHX7.32mW) Both fields Meets standards Meets standards
2X(2.44mHX7.32mW)
Coaches boxes/team 2X(6mX1.2m) 2%(6mX1.2m) 2%(6mX1.2m) Main field - Undersized Undersized
benches 2X(3mX1.2m)
Second field -
2X(2.6mX1.2m)
Ticket booth Required Optional - Not provided Meets standard Meets standard
BUILDINGS
Player changerooms 2x35m2 2%x25m2 2x25m2 25m2, 30m2, 45m2, Two change areas are Exceeds standard for

community sport

Players amenities

2x25m2 (min 3 pans, 3

2x16m2 (min 2 pans, 2

2x16m2 (min 2 pans, 2

11m2, 11m2, 14m2,

All change areas are

Slightly undersized

showers in each) showers in each) showers in each) 14m2 undersized
Match officials rooms 20m2 20m?2 20m2 8m2 Undersized Undersized
Match officials 12m?2 (dedicated Dedicated amenities Dedicated amenities &m2 Undersized Exceeds standard
amenities shower and toilet not required. not required.
required — 2 pans, 2
showers)
First aid room 10m2 (minimum) No minimum, more No minimum, more 9m2 Slightly undersized Not required to provide
than 10m2 than 10m?2
recommended recommended
Media room 15m2 - Not provided Not required to provide
19
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Facility Preferred minimum provision/size Anderson Park Level of compliance Level of compliance
with standards with standards
NPL District/local/community NPL District/loeal/
community
Senior level Junior level
External covered 500 people seated 80-100m2 (standing 20-50m2 200m2 Undersized Exceeds standard
viewing area (300m2). Preferred room for up to 200
tiered seating people)
100m2 75m2
Cleaners 5m2 5m2 5m2 12m2 Exceeds standard Exceeds standard
Store 40m2 15m2 15m2 12m2, 45m2 Exceeds standard Exceeds standard
Kitchen/kiosk 30m2 20m2 20m2 60m2 Exceeds standard Exceeds standard
Social/community 150 Site dependent Site dependent 220m2 Exceeds standard Exceeds standard
room
Public toilets (M/F) 45m2 20m2 20m2 20m2, 20m2 Slightly undersized Exceeds standard
A ible toilet 7m2 7m2 Tm2 8m2 Exceeds standard Exceeds standard
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Plan D - Existing Conditions Plan
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5.

5.1

LEISURE TRENDS/DEMOGRAPHICS

Leisure Trends

There are a number of general leisure trends for active/passive recreation reserves which should be taken into

consideration in the preparation of the Anderson Park Masterplan. These are as follows:

5.2

Traditionally, active sports reserves were mainly and, in some cases, solely used for structured sporting
purposes. This use was during the day on weekends and during the early evenings on weekdays. The
reserves would sit near idle at other times. This trend has changed in recent decades and sports
reserves are now seen as community recreation reserves which provide for both structured and
unstructured recreation. Councils have been active in encouraging this trend by introducing facilities
at reserves that support passive recreation — playgrounds, circuit paths, shade structures, park
furniture, tree planting etc —and being more relaxed about the use of playing fields and courts by social
and casual groups, personal trainers, dog walkers etc.

Generally, adults are remaining fitter and more active until later in life. This is leading to an increased
participation in veteran's sports and more frequent use of open space areas for walking, relaxation and
social activities.

In recent times, sports pavilions are being viewed more as multi-use community buildings.
Changerooms and amenities areas are mainly used for sport but the social areas, meeting rooms and
kitchens are increasingly being used by non-sporting community groups.

Local Councils are increasingly redesigning and adapting their facilities and open space areas to ensure
they are environmentally sustainable and promote universal access, i.e., accessible to people of all
ages, backgrounds and abilities.

Participation by women/girls as players and umpires in traditional male sports such as soccer is
increasing. This participation is being strongly encouraged by Federal, State and Local Governments
(including Manningham). This has implications for the load on the playing fields and the design of the
pavilion at Anderson Park.

More people are choosing to recreate in informal and unstructured ways. As a consequence, activities
such as jogging and walking in parks for exercise and pleasure are becoming more prevalent. Sporting
fields are increasingly being used by organised exercise groups (boot camps etc). This use normally
occurs in the mornings and does not conflict with formal club activities.

The rate of pet ownership, particularly as companion animals for older adults, is increasing. Exercising
dogs in parks, especially at a reserve with fenced fields like Anderson Park, has become a popular
activity.

Increasing dwelling densification, particularly around major public transport routes and activity
centres, is increasing the demand for public open space for active and passive recreation. This is
particularly relevant to Anderson Park as it is situated near The Pines Activity Centre and in an area
where there has and will continue to be significant apartment development.

Demographics

For the purpose of this masterplan, the catchment area for Anderson Park is considered to be the suburb of

Doncaster East. Table 5 provides population projections for the Doncaster East through to 2036. An analysis

of the projection indicates the total population is forecast to increase by 2,030 or 6.1% between 2021 and 2036

All age cohorts will increase numerically except the 20-29 years cohorts. The highest numerical and proportional

increases will occur in the older age cohorts, 70-79 years and 80+ years. The smallest numerical and

proportional movements will occur in the sports playing cohorts, 10-19 years 20-29 years and 30-39 years.
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Table 5 — Population Projections (D ter East)
Forecast years
Age cohorts 2016 2021 2026 2031 2036 +- +%
21-36 21-36
Oto9 3442 3423 3498 3548 3534 111 3.2
10to 19 3557 3983 4037 4003 4026 43 11
20to 29 3807 4446 4371 4461 4427 -19 -0.4
30to 39 3832 4392 4441 4483 4441 49 1.1
40 to 49 3993 4379 4667 4772 4789 410 9.4
50 to 59 3914 4082 4083 4281 4446 364 8.9
60 to 69 3265 3542 3687 3707 3703 161 4.5
70t0 79 2611 2854 3018 3149 3262 408 14.3
80+ 1604 2029 2269 2442 2533 504 24.8
Total 30025 33130 34071 34846 35161 2031 6.1

Table 6 provides a comparison of the demographic characteristics of Doncaster East in the census years of 2006
and 2016 and between Doncaster East, Manningham LGA and Greater Melbourne in 2016. An analysis of the

table indicates that the following:

. Doncaster East has an older population than Greater Melbourne (median age 41 years compared to
31 years).

. Doncaster East's 65+ years cohort increased significantly between 2006 and 2016 (7% increase as a
proportion of the total population).

. Doncaster East has a disproportionally high Chinese population with 1 in 4 people of Asian descent.
Doncaster East's population became less Anglo Saxon in heritage between 2006 and 2016.

. The housing mix is changing. In 2006, 80% of dwellings were separate homes and 20% semi-detached

dwellings/apartments. In 2016, the mix was 68% separate dwellings and 32% semi-detached dwellings

and apartments.

Table 6 — Demographic characteristics; Doncaster East, Manningham and Greater Melbourne

Characteristic Doncaster East Manningham Greater
Melbourne
2006 2016 2016 2016
Total population 26698 28360 116255 4,485,211
Median age (years) 40 41 43 36
Age cohorts (years)
- 5-14 years, % of total 121 11.5 11.3 11.9
- 15-24 years, % of total 14.1 12.7 12.7 13.4
- 25-54 years, % of total 40.3 324 37.6 43.7
- 65+ years, % of total 13 20 22 13.1
Average household size (persons) 2.8 2.8 2.8 I
Median weekly household income ($) 1155 1504 1642 1,542
Cultural background (% of population)
- English - 15 17 20
- Chinese - 27 18 6
— Country of birth — Australia 56 48 56 60
Family composition (% of families)
- Couple with children 53 = 50 48
23
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Characteristic Doncaster East Manningham Greater
Melbourne
2006 2016 2016 2016
Dwelling structure (% of dwellings)
- Separate house 80 68 77 67
- Semi detached 16 23 16 17
- Apartment 4 9 7 15
Household composition (% of households)
- Family 79 80 79 71
- Lone person 17 18 19 23
- Group 2 2 2 6

5.3  Implications for Masterplan

The implications of these leisure trends and demographics for the Anderson Park masterplan are as follows:

. The potential of using the pavilion at Anderson Park for broad community use needs to be considered
when considering any redevelopment works for the pavilion.

. The objectives of environmentally sustainability and universal access should be considered when
framing the redevelopment masterplan for the reserve

. The load on the playing field and pavilion at Anderson Park will continue to grow as the popularity of
soccer and the local population and the informal use of the reserve increases. The masterplan should
contain actions that increase the capacity, durability and flexibility of the playing fields and pavilion.

. The ageing of the local community and the growing popularity of activities such as walking for exercise
and training in groups will increase the demand for the active and passive areas of Anderson Park. This
will heighten the need for enhancement to these areas, such as improved drainage, construction of
paths, installation of park furniture and provision of shade and shelter.

. As the number of semi-detached dwellings and apartments in Doncaster East grows and the new
retirement village to the immediate south of Anderson Park is constructed, more residents will use
reserve as a local park for walking, informal play and gathering with their families and friends. This
also heightens the need for improved passive spaces and durable playing fields at the Reserve.
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6. CONSULTATION
6.1 Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club

Officials from the Club were asked to provide information about the following:

. The history of the club

. Player numbers

. Predictions about future participant/group numbers

. How the facilities at the reserve be improved (not just the group’s facilities).
. Any other matters they wanted to raise.

The Club’s responses were as follows:

. The Club was formed in 1966. Its commenced operation at Anderson Park in 1976. The area was
formerly a paddock.

. The original pavilion was funded and built by the Club in 1982. A fire damaged the pavilion in 2005. It
was rebuilt by the Club at this time.

. The Club participates in competitions run by Football Victoria, Victorian Churches Football Association
Soccer Federation and the Victorian Punjab Federation. It has 2 senior men’s teams and 14 junior girls
and boys teams. Team numbers declined in recent years but are now on the increase.

. In 1994, the club’s top men’s team played in the Victorian Premier League, the highest level of
competition in Victoria. It now plays in State League Division Two — South East, the third highest level
of competition.

. Most of the Club’s players are from Manningham (80-85%). A handful are from outside the municipality
- from as far away as Berwick and Beaumaris. The Club aspires to grow its player numbers to 500
(currently 350). However, its is constrained from doing this as its playing fields are currently used to
near capacity.

. The senior men’s team plays on Friday nights. Games can attract crowds of up to 300. The carpark
fills but is adequate. The carpark also gets heavily used on weekends, particularly Saturdays, when
junior games are being held. It has sufficient to cater for these games.

. The club want its senior teams to be successful and hopefully promoted through the grades. However,
its main focus is currently on growing its girls/junior program.

. The clubs facility needs/wants are as follows:

- Provision of a 3rd field with one synthetic. If not possible, conversion of the main field to synthetic,
erection of a shelter and provision of lights over the whole field

- Upgrade of the second field — resurfacing with Santa Ana couch and topdressing, lights converted
to LED - and eventual conversion to a synthetic grass surface

- Resurfacing of small synthetic field

- Construction of a second small synthetic field

— Concrete pad laid near water tank for storage of goals

— Conversion of grassed area between pavilion and small synthetic field to a spectator area for the
small synthetic field

- Lighting provided along the path connecting main and second field

— Electronic scoreboard erected to serve the main playing field

- Canopy installed over the small synthetic field

— Conversion of electricity supply to solar

- Replacing the cool room in the pavilion
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Security cameras installed around the pavilion

- Bag dispensers and bins provided for dogs.
. Priorities are:

- Resurfacing of small synthetic field

- Conversion of the main field to synthetic and lights converted to LED

- Upgrade of the second field - resurfacing with Santa Ana couch and topdressing, lights converted

to LED

— Construction of shelter for the second field

— Concrete pad laid near the water tank for storage of goals

- Conversion of the grassed area between pavilion and small synthetic field to hard surface area for
storage of goals.

6.2 Local residents

Local residents were invited through an online survey to provide their thoughts on the attributes of Anderson
Park and the improvements that are needed at the park. The survey asked residents to provide information

on/responses to the following:

. How often they use the reserve?

. Had they used the reserve in the last two years and how often?

. What they use the reserve for?

. What aspects of the park they like and the key words they would use to describe the reserve?
. What changes/improvements they would like to see happen at the reserve in the future?

. Other comments they would like to make about the reserve.

A full analysis of their responses is provided in Appendix B. A summary of the main findings of the survey is as

follows:

. 40 residents responded to the survey. 25% use the reserve on a daily basis, 23 (58%) weekly, 4 (10%
fortnightly) and 3 {7.5% monthly).

. 18 (45%) use the reserve to play competitive soccer, 18 (45%) to watch soccer, 17 (43%) to exercise,
11 (27.5%) to walk the dog, 6 (15%) to play with friends and 3 (7.5%) to enjoy the bushland.

. Regarding the aspects of the reserve the respondents like:

— 22 commented about the location, setting, layout and spaciousness of the reserve. Descriptions
such as the ‘park seems removed from suburbia’, ‘quiet oasis amongst a residential area’ and
‘secluded from the main road’ were used. Some liked the size of the reserve, the layout of facilities
and the informality of the paths. One commented that they were disappointed that most of the
indigenous vegetation had been lost

- 9 commented about the soccer facilities. Some said the reserve was a great venue for soccer —
multiple pitches, synthetic grass warm up area, undercover spectator area, canteen, great balance
between sporting pitches and nature areas. One said there was insufficient carparking. One
indicated the reserve is a great facility for children to play and families ta make making social
connections

- 7 commented on the reserve being a great location to walk dogs. They said the fenced fields at the
reserve were ideal facilities for dogs. One indicated that dog walking at the reserve was ‘the key

to her lifestyle’ as she lived in a flat and had no access to private open space.
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. With respect to the key words respondents think of when reflecting on the reserve, phrases such as
‘the soccer field is my home’, ‘the community feel of the soccer fields” and ‘diverse offerings” were
mentioned.

. With respect to changes/improvements that should be made at the reserve:

— 31 respondents suggested that improvements be made to the soccer facilities at the reserve.
Recommended works included:
*= Converting one or both of the natural grass fields to synthetic
* Reconfiguring the layout of the reserve to provide a third large field
*  Widening the second field
* Constructing a second small synthetic field
= Splitting one of the large fields into four smaller fields
* Upgrading the playing surfaces
*  Upgrading the lighting over both fields. LED lamps, solar energy
* Erecting a grandstand
= Extending the high fence at the ends of the second field across the full width of the fields
* Providing a warm-up area with a short running lane next to the main field
* Erecting an electronic scoreboard
* Constructing a shelter/small pavilion for second field
* |mproving the security lighting around the pavilion
* Erecting a canopy over the small synthetic field

- 8 respondents suggested that improvements be made the reserve to make it a better dog walking
venue. Recommendations included:
* Converting the grassed area to the west of the main soccer field to a fenced-in dog walking area
*= Closing any gaps in the fence around the main field to make it a secure dog walking area
* Converting Bushland area 1 to a dog play area

— 7 respondents suggested that the bushland areas be better protected and maintained. Some
wanted more plantings, others wanted debris (broken trees, litter etc.) to be removed and the
areas to be generally cleaned up.

- 6 respondents commented about improving the path network and providing play facilities in the
reserve. One suggested that a parkour facility be erected. One asked that public toilets and more
litter bins be provided at the reserve.

6.3 Council officers

Council officers involved in the planning, management, development and maintenance of Anderson Park were
asked to indicate what they consider to be the role of the reserve, any changes that are occurring around the
reserve that might have implications for the masterplan and the improvements they thought were needed at
the reserve. Their comments were as follows:

. Anderson Park is an important open space area with a diversity of roles. It:

—  Provides for community sport (soccer) and informal play

—  Provides for passive recreation where local residents can walk, ride, spectate, relax and
contemplate

— Is designated as ‘a dog off leash venue’

— s used as a thoroughfare by people walking to and from The Pines Activity Centre and Onemda,
The Orchards Baptcare Retirement Village and the residential area to the south of the reserve

—  Provides a visual break from the commercial and residential properties along Reynolds Road.
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. Residential development will continue to occur around the reserve and the local population will
continue to grow. 3-4 storey apartments blocks are being constructed, the retirement living facility is
being expanded and a new retirement facility is under construction to the immediate south of the
park.

. Traffic flow in the main carpark is meant to be one way. However, it is not formalised. The feasibility
of formalising the one way flow should be investigated. d

. Council has allocated funds in its Capital Works Program to develop a low level playspace at the
Reserve ($250k, 2022/23). This could be located on the flat grassed area to the north of the main field.
. More planting is required on to the western and northern edges of the reserve. A succession plan is

needed for the existing trees in these areas.

. The main field is suitably sized. Its playing surface is uneven and worn from heavy use. The second
field is undersized in terms of width. The ground surface is worn, particularly under the sole light tower.
The north-west corner of the field drops away (the field is nominated for conversion to synthetic in
the Recreation Capital Works Program 2025/26).

. The small synthetic surface is worn and needs resurfacing (nominated for a surface upgrade in the
Recreation Capital Works Program 2025/26). Note; the field should be available for public use.

. The irrigation systems on the grass playing fields are over 20 years old and need review and possible
upgrade.

. There is an exposed PVC pipe in the spoon drain on the east side of soccer field. This needs to be
rectified.

. The lighting over the main field and small synthetic field is adequate. The lighting over the second field

is not suitable — only one pole, low lux levels, poor uniformity (upgrade works nominated in the
Recreation Capital Works Program, suggested year, 2025/26)

. No concerns have been expressed by residents about light spill from the floodlights at the reserve. LED
technology and remote access using maobile phones is currently being tested at other reserves and
could be introduced at Anderson Park

. A gravel path extends from the playing field through Bushland area 1 to Reynolds Road and the Pines
Activity Centre. It is used regularly as a north-south link from Reynolds Road into the park. The
feasibility of installing lights on this path should be investigated.

. There are only two park benches in the reserve. There are some security issues with people loitering
in the pavilion undercover area.

. The bushland areas should be protected and enhanced. Some of the goat tracks should be closed off
and the pine trees carefully removed. No works should be undertaken in the reserve which have the
potential to damage the vegetation, impede regeneration or encourage weed growth.

. Consideration should also be given to the following works:

- Constructing a shelter to serve the second soccer field

- Converting part of the grassed track from St James Court into the reserve to a hard surfaced
pathway

- Creating a loop track around the main soccer field

- Installing a concrete path along the southern edge of the second playing field

—  Converting part of the grassed space between the pavilion and the small synthetic field to a hard
surface area

— Installing an externally accessible public toilet at the reserve. This could be against the south side
of the pavilion (project nominated in Council’s Capital Works Program. $150k, 2024/25).

—  Installing suitable lighting should be provided around the toilet including along the path from the
large carpark to the toilets

28

Item 11.1

Attachment 1

Page 222



COUNCIL AGENDA 23 NOVEMBER 2021

Anderson Park Masterplan Draft Report

- Improving the general appearance of the reserve by removing some of the internal fencing in the
reserve such as the fence between the large and small carparks, landscaping along the edges of
the carparks and at the entrance to the pavilion carpark and improving the paved surfaces

- Providing more park furniture in the reserve

- Sealing the area around where the drinks fountain is located

- Overtime replacing the high chain wire fencing behind the soccer goals with suitable netting.

6.4 Football Victoria (FV)

FV was asked to comment on the suitability and quality of Anderson Park as a soccer venue and the strength

and viability of the Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club. FV's comments were as follows:

. Doncaster Rovers Soccer Club is a strong viable club. It is well managed and after a period of decline
is now growing in player numbers. It is anticipated that player numbers will continue to grow in the
future.

. Anderson Park is an excellent community soccer venue. It has two good size fields, sufficient
carparking and a large well designed pavilion and undercover spectator area.

. FV supports the Club’s proposal to convert one (or both) of the fields to a synthetic surface. FV's
preference is that the main field be converted. It is the larger field and located next to the pavilion.

. FV indicates that the surface choice is critical to the playability and longevity of the synthetic field.
Some surfaces roll better and are hardier. Some are more acceptable to the higher skilled players.

. FV also supports the Club’s desire to upgrade the lights over both playing fields
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7. SUMMARY OF SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENTS/ASSESSMENT OF MERIT

Table 7 lists the improvements to the reserve that were identified in the literature review, audit of the reserve and consultation process. The table includes assessments of
the merits of the improvements and make recommendations about whether the improvements should be included as actions in the reserve masterplan. The assessments of
merit has been informed by further consultation with Council officers, Doncaster Wolves Soccer Club and Football Victoria.

Item SUGGESTED IMPROVEMENT SOURCE ASSESSMENT OF MERIT
Lit review | Audit Consultation
1 Erect a more visible directional sign to the v ® The existing small blue finger board sign on the east side of Anderson Creek
reserve on Anderson Creek Road. Road advising of the reserve’s presence is easily missed by visitors.
Recommended
2 Repair the open drain at the entrance to the v * There is a swale drain assaciated with the grassed nature strip reserve at the
reserve off Anderson Creek Road. vehicular entrance to the carpark. The drain presents poorly with large puddles
of water. Consider reconstruction of the entrance.
Recommended
3 Repair the damaged pavement and kerbing in v ® The existing carpark has edges defined by concrete kerb and channel
the large carpark. throughout the 150 space carpark. Some of the kerb and channel and nodal

projections that support trees are cracked due to vehicles mounting the kerbs.

® In some cases, this is further exacerbated by large Ironbark Gum Trees growing
in the central median strips. In several area